
The Mission of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District is to protect public health and the environment by providing effective wastewater 
collection, treatment, and recycling services. 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

     BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

 June 1, 2023 

MATERIALS RELATED TO ITEMS ON THIS AGENDA ARE AVAILABLE FOR 

PUBLIC INSPECTION DURING NORMAL BUSINESS HOURS AT THE DISTRICT 

OFFICE, 101 LUCAS VALLEY ROAD, SUITE 300, SAN RAFAEL, OR ON THE DISTRICT 

WEBSITE  WWW.LGVSD.ORG 

OPEN SESSION: 

1. PUBLIC COMMENT

This portion of the meeting is reserved for people desiring to address the Board on matters not on the

agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District. Presentations are generally

limited to three minutes. All matters requiring a response will be referred to staff for reply in writing and/or

placed on a future meeting agenda. Please contact the General Manager before the meeting.

2. CONSENT CALENDAR:

These items are considered routine and will be enacted, approved or adopted by one motion

unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is received from the staff or the Board.

A. Approve the Board Minutes for May 18, 2023

B. Approve the Warrant List for June 1, 2023

C. Approve Yezman attendance at  CASA CWEA Partnering for Impact meeting June 6, 2023

D. Approve Call for Bids - Primary Clarifier #1 Rehabilitation Using In-Kind Mechanism

E. Approve Regional Government Services Master Agreement Extension Amendment No. 3

F. Approve ArcSine Engineering SCADA Support Services Contract for July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2026

G. Approve Data Instincts Agreement Amendment No. 1

H. Approve Award of Contract for Revisions to LGVSD Standard Specifications and Drawings

I. Approve 2023 Sewer Rate Study Final Report

J. Approve Strategic Plan

Possible expenditure of funds:  Yes, Item B through H.

Staff recommendation:  Adopt Consent Calendar – Items A through J.

4:30 PM 

4:35 PM 

Estimated 
Time 

1

http://www.lgvsd.org/


June 1, 2023 Page 2 of 3 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

3. INFORMATION ITEMS:

STAFF/CONSULTANT REPORTS:

1. General Manager’s Report – verbal

2. Engineering Department Report – written

3. Operations Department Report – written

4. Proposed Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget – written

4. APPROVE RESOLUTION 2023-2307 SETTING TIME AND PLACE FOR PUBLIC HEARING ON THE
BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024

Board to review Resolution 2023-2307 fixing the time and place for a public hearing on the 2023-2024
budget.

5. DRAFT ORDINANCE 193 AMENDING TITLE 3, CHAPTER 2 RELATING TO REIMBURSEMENT FOR
PUBLIC SEWER MAIN EXTENSIONS AND SET PUBLIC HEARING DATE

Board to discuss draft Ordinance 193 and set Public Hearing date.

6. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS:

1. CLARK
a. NBWA Board Committee, 2023 Operations Control Center Ad Hoc Committee,

Other Reports

2. FORD
a. NBWRA, 2023 Operations Control Center Ad Hoc Committee,

2023 McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc Committee, 2023 Fleet Management  Ad Hoc Committee,
2023 GM Evaluation Ad Hoc Committee, 2023 San Francisco Bay Trail Ad Hoc Committee,
Other Reports

3. MURRAY
a. Marin LAFCO, 2023 Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, CASA Energy Committee,

2023 Development Ad Hoc Committee, 2023 San Francisco Bay Trail Ad Hoc Committee,
Other Reports

4. ROBARDS
a. Gallinas Watershed Council/Miller Creek, 2023 Engineering Ad Hoc Committee re: STPURWE,

2023 McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc Committee, 2023 Development Ad Hoc Committee,
2023 GM Evaluation Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports

5. YEZMAN
a. Flood Zone 7, CSRMA,  2023 Ad Hoc Engineering Committee  re: STPURWE,

Marin Special Districts, 2023 Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee,  Other Reports

7. BOARD REQUESTS:
A. Board Meeting Attendance Requests – Verbal

B. Board Agenda Item Requests – Verbal

6:10 PM 

4:40 PM 

5:40  PM 

6:00  PM 

5:45  PM 

2



June 1, 2023 Page 3 of 3 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

8. VARIOUS INDUSTRY RELATED ARTICLES

9. ADJOURNMENT

 FUTURE BOARD MEETING DATES: JUNE 15  AND JUNE 30, 2023 

CERTIFICATION:  I, Teresa Lerch, Board Secretary of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, hereby 
declare under penalty of perjury that on or before May 29, 2023 4:30 p.m., I posted the Agenda for the 
Board Meeting of said Board to be held  on June 1, 2023, at the District Office, located at 101 Lucas Valley 
Road, Suite 300, San Rafael, CA. 

DATED: May 25, 2023 

_______________________ 
Teresa L. Lerch 
Board Secretary 

 _________________________________________________________________  

The Board of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District meets regularly on the first and third Thursday of  
each month. The District may also schedule additional special meetings for the purpose of completing unfinished 
business and/or study sessions. Regular meetings are held at the District Office, 101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300, San 
Rafael, CA.  

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, 
please contact the District at (415) 472-1734 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. Notification  
prior to the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable accommodation to help ensure accessibility  
to this meeting. 

6:15 PM 

AGENDA APPROVED: Megan Clark, President Patrick Richardson, Legal Counsel 

6:20  PM 

3



 

 
 

 

6/1/2023 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board on 

matters not on the agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Las Gallinas Valley 

Sanitary District. Presentations are generally limited to three minutes. All matters 

requiring a response will be referred to staff for reply in writing and/or placed on a 

future meeting agenda. Please contact the General Manager before the meeting. 
 

AGENDA ITEM 1 

4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



 

 

 Page 1 of 1 

  Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 
To: Board of Directors 
From: Michael P. Cortez, PE, District Engineer 
 (415) 526-1518; mcortez@lgvsd.org  
Mtg. Date: June 1, 2023 

Re: Call for Bids – Primary Clarifier #1 Rehabilitation Using In-kind Mechanism  

Item Type:   Consent     X  Action        Information  Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes           No     (See attached) Not Applicable        X     . 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board approves Call for Bids for Primary Clarifier #1 (PC#1) Rehabilitation with an engineer’s 
estimate of $850,000 using in-kind clarifier mechanism manufactured by Ovivo (formerly Dorr-
Oliver/Eimco).  
 
BACKGROUND  
District staff completed the evaluation of alternatives for the rehabilitation of existing Primary 
Clarifier #1 and determined that the most efficient solution is replacement in kind of the existing 
clarifier mechanism installed in the 1980s. This would allow minimum modifications to the existing 
concrete structure by utilizing existing anchor bolt patterns, center column dimensions, and other 
design features without significantly impacting downstream piping and treatment processes.  
 
The existing PC#1 mechanism manufacturer, Dorr-Oliver/Eimco (now Ovivo) has the original 
shop drawings, submittal revisions, and other special requirements that would allow the future 
contractor and Ovivo adhere to the original intent of the design prepared by Nute Engineering in 
the 1980s. 
 
PC #1 Rehabilitation project has a budget of $300,000 for FY 22-23, and it is scheduled to 
commence after completion of the Secondary Treatment Plant Upgrade and Recycled Water 
Expansion (STPURWE) project. Staff has included the additional funding needed in the proposed 
2023/2024 Budget. 
 
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTIONS 
N/A 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
N/A  

Item Number_______2D_______ 

GM Review   ____CP__________ 

 

16

mailto:mcortez@lgvsd.org


 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2023\Agenda Packet 2023\06012023\RGS\ASR-RGS Master Agreement Extension.docx Page 1 of 2 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 

To: Board of Directors  

From: Dale McDonald, Administrative Services Manager  

 (415) 526-1519   dmcdonald@lgvsd.org 

Meeting Date: June 1, 2023  

Re: Regional Government Services Master Agreement Extension Amendment No. 3 

Item Type:   Consent X  Action        Information  Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes      X    No  (See attached) Not Applicable             . 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board to approve one-year master agreement extension with Regional Government Services 
Authority as defined in the attached Additional Scope of Services in an amount not to exceed an 
additional $64,500 for the period July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Since 2002, Regional Government Services Authority (RGS) has been serving the needs of 
cities, counties, special districts, joint powers authorities, and other governmental entities by 
providing a ready source of support and consulting services to meet the needs of its partner 
agencies in a broad range of disciplines. The District has had a relationship with RGS for over 
four years. During that time, RGS has provided a range of human resources, finance, 
administrative, Board of Director support and organizational development services under 
multiple agreements.  
 
The most recent support provided to the Board is with the General Manager (GM) Evaluation 
being conducted by RGS Human Resource Service Director Bobbie Bennett. Ongoing financial 
consultation and Caselle Government Accounting software implementation assistance has also 
been beneficial to the District, allowing staff to focus on budget development, capital project 
prioritization, payroll processing, and other day-to-day accounting aspects of government 
without the cost of adding an additional in-house financial or Human Resource position to the 
payroll.   
 
The most recent, Master Agreement Amendment No. 2, extending the term of the agreement 
through June 30, 2023, was executed on September 26, 2022. 
 
Extension of the master agreement would allow RGS to continue providing support to the District 
in the areas outlined in the Additional Scope of Service. 
 
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 

• On November 5, 2020, the Board of Directors approved the current RGS Master Services 
Agreement for on-call Human Resources, financial management, and Board of Director 
support and organizational development services. 
 

Item Number_______2E_______ 

GM Review   _____CP_________ 

 

17

mailto:dmcdonald@lgvsd.org


 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2023\Agenda Packet 2023\06012023\RGS\ASR-RGS Master Agreement Extension.docx Page 2 of 2 

 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The Master Agreement from 2020 has a not to exceed of $126,000 for three lines of services, 
funded over two fiscal years. The District has spent $106,946 for services through March 31, 
2023, averaging $3,820 a month. Expenses through June 30 are expected to be higher because 
of the ongoing GM Evaluation and as the District goes live with its Caselle Accounting software 
system, scheduled for June 12. 
 
An additional $64,500 would be added to the current agreement, bringing the total cost to 
$190,500 providing for 3 years and 7 months of service. 
 
This does not include direct costs associated with work outside the Scope of Services, such as 
recruitment. If RGS Advisors must travel to the District, mileage and other travel expenses will be 
invoiced at the current IRS rate. RGS bills for actual hours worked. 

18



   

AMENDMENT NO. 3 

AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 

HUMAN RESOURCES, FINANCIAL MANGEMENT AND ORGANIZATONAL SERVICES 

(JOB NO 2360-100) 

  

 THIS AMENDMENT made this ______ day of ________________ 2023 by and 

between the LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT (hereinafter referred to as 

“District”), and REGIONAL GOVERNMENT SERVICES, whose address is, P.O. BOX 

1350, CARMEL VALLEY, CA. 93924 (hereinafter referred to as “Consultant”); 
  

WHEREAS, the District wishes to continue partnering with the Consultant to provide 

quality, innovative, and cost-effective services to the District; and    
 

WHEREAS, the original Agreement dated December 4, 2020 and subsequent 

Amendments is set to expire on June 30, 2023 unless action is taken. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 

which are hereby acknowledged, the parties do hereby agree to amend and supplement the 

original agreement dated December 4, 2020 as follows: 
 

1. Additional Scope of Work.   

a. The term of the original Amendment is hereby extended through June 30, 2024 

subject to early termination by either party as outlined in Section 20 of the original 

agreement. 

b. The original Total Contract Price of $126,000 is hereby increased $64,500, and the 

new total contract price is $190,500. 

c. The Additional Scope of Services dated May 2023 describes the additional services to 

be performed for Human Resource Management, Finance Management, and 

Organizational Development services. 
 

2. Successors And Assigns.  This Amendment shall be binding upon and inure to the 

benefit of the successors and permitted assigns of the parties hereto. 
 

3. Entire Agreement.  Except as expressly modified by this Amendment, the Agreement 

shall be and remain in full force and effect in accordance with its terms and shall constitute the 

legal, valid, binding and enforceable obligations to the parties.  This Amendment and the 

Agreement (including any written amendments thereto), collectively, are the complete agreement 

of the parties and supersede any prior agreements or representations, whether oral or written, 

with respect thereto. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Amendment to be duly executed 

by their authorized representatives. 

     LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT 
 

     By _____________________________________________ 

     Curtis Paxton, General Manager  Date 

 

     REGIONAL GOVERNMENT SERVICES (RGS) 
 

     ________________________________________________ 

      Signature   Date 
 

     By _____________________________________________ 

      Print Name   Title 

19



1  

ADDITIONAL SCOPE OF SERVICE 

For Fiscal Year 2023-2024 

 

May 15, 2023 
 

Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, Regional Government Services Authority 

(RGS) shall assign RGS employees to perform the functions described below as needed. Services 

may be performed onsite or remotely. 

 

The additional Scope of Services is not to exceed $64,500. This is in addition to the 

original agreement contracted price of $126,000 dated December 4, 2020. Mileage and 

travel will be billed at the current IRS rate and is billed separately. 

 

1. Provide ongoing as-needed Human Resources Management services. The cost of Human 

Resources services will not exceed $17,500. 

1.1. Provide professional guidance and assistance with the performance evaluation 

process, including the General Manager classification. 

1.2. Facilitate staff compliance with departmental policies, procedures, and regulations 

governing human resources activities, as needed. 

1.3. Draft specific documentation relevant to resolving a range of personnel issues. 

 
 Estimated Year 

Hours 
Estimated Cost 

On Call HR Support & General Manager 

Evaluation 
125 $17,500 

Support to Board for GM evaluation 90 $13,200 

On-call support 20 $2,500 

Assist with written documents, including but not 

limited to performance job description 
15 $1,800 

 

Please note significant HR issues and recruitments are additional services outside this Scope 

of Service. RGS recognizes the District has a contract with an HR company to provide non- 

transactional HR work. RGS will coordinate with this company as needed. 

 

2. Provide ongoing Finance Management services. The cost for additional Finances Services is 

estimated not exceed $47,000. Services will include: 

2.1. Accounting review FY 2022-23, preparation of fiscal year end, audit preparation support. 

2.1.1. Bank reconciliation 

2.1.2. Correcting entries 

2.1.3. Journal entries 

2.1.4. Year-end close 

2.2. Financial accounting support during Caselle Accounting Enterprise Resource 

Planning (ERP) implementation and conversion from Quick Books. 

2.3. Implementation of District’s FY 2023-24 budget and budget monitoring procedures, 

including mid-year adjustments and CIP project tracking. 

  

20



2  

 

2.4. Consult on District  compliance  and  administrative  and  financial  policies  and 

procedures. 

2.4.1. Continuing disclosure (bonds) 

2.4.2. Internal control environment 

2.4.3. Banking procedures 

2.4.4. Accounting transactions 

2.4.5. Financial controls 

2.4.6. Project budget control and reporting 

2.4.7. Other best practices 

2.5. Coach finance staff as needed in operations activities and budget monitoring. 

2.6. Produce and contribute financial and other staff reports to District leadership, as 

needed. 
 

    Estimated Hours  Estimated Cost  

Finance Management 335 $47,000 

Fiscal administrative support, including but not 

limited to FY 2022-23 accounting review, support 

on audit preparation, FY 2023-24 budget & CIP 

monitoring, OPED, GASB 68, GASB 96 SaaS, 

Vehicle Equipment Reserve Fund, bank 

reconciliation. 

 
185 

 
$28,000 

Caselle ERP accounting support during initial 

year of implementation. 

100 $12,000 

District compliance and administrative & fiscal 

policies & procedures & coaching staff, & assisting 

with staff reports. 

 
50 

 
$7,000 

 

3. Organization Development.  Any incidental costs related to the utilization of the 

organizational assessment completed in 2020 are to be identified and billed separately. The 

remaining cost for this service is to be funded from any balance remaining under the master 

agreement, approximately $1,500 as of June 1, 2023. 

4. Be reasonably available to perform the services during the normal work week. Meet 

regularly and as often as necessary for the purpose of consulting about the additional scope 

of work performed with the appropriate District manager and with the RGS Lead Advisor 

or Advisors. 

 

5. The District will only be invoiced for the actual hours worked. The work will be done 

remotely and/or onsite. RGS Advisors may only work onsite with the authority of the RGS 

Lead Advisor or Human Resources Services Director. 

21



 
 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2023\Agenda Packet 2023\06012023\ASR for SCADA Support Services Proposal for FY 2023-26.docx Page 1 of 2 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 

To: Board of Directors  

From: Mel Liebmann, Plant Manager  mliebmann@lgvsd.org 415-526-1526 

Mtg. Date: June 1, 2023 

Re: Approve ArcSine Engineering SCADA Support Services Contract for July 1, 2023 
to June 30, 2026  

Item Type:   Consent__ X ____ Discussion______ Information_______ Other______  

Standard Contract:    Yes__ X ___   No_____(See attached)  Not Applicable_______ 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board to approve ArcSine Engineering SCADA Support Services Agreement for July 1, 2023 to June 30, 
2026 to cover costs associated with the scope of work items. 

 
BACKGROUND 

The District utilizes a Supervisory and Control Data Acquisition (SCADA) System to perform the 
functions necessary to provide continuous operation of the wastewater treatment plant, recycled 
water facility and sewage pump stations. Staff’s ability to monitor, control, make operational 
decisions and present performance data from the many treatment process areas is reliant on a 
network of integrated equipment that requires maintenance and occasional modification when 
necessary.  
 
ArcSine Engineering has provided annual SCADA support services to maintain and improve the 
district’s Rockwell Automation based control systems since 2016. ArcSine also provided systems 
integration support for the District’s recently completed Secondary Treatment Plant Upgrade and 
Recycled Water Expansion project. They have worked with staff to remedy many shortcomings of 
the existing control system. ArcSine staff continue to develop documentation in the programmed 
environment that makes troubleshooting easier. Other important improvements include the 
installation and configuration of new control system computer servers, implementing the inclusion 
of the collections crew into the alarm delivery system, configuration changes to improve pump 
station radio telemetry and an innumerable amount of treatment plant supervisory, process 
control and database modifications. 
 
ArcSine, has worked with staff to develop a scope of work and fee estimate to provide ongoing 
support of the District’s SCADA system covering fiscal years 2023/2024 – 2025/2026. ArcSine’s 
proposal is included with this summary report. ArcSine Engineering’s billing is based on time and 
material expended.  
 
Staff believe that continuing to utilize ArcSine Engineering for SCADA Support Services is the 
most advantageous way to maintain continued effective and reliable monitoring and control 
systems utilized in district operations and treatment processes.  
  

Item Number________2F______ 

GM Review   _____CP_________ 

 

22

mailto:mliebmann@lgvsd.org


 
 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2023\Agenda Packet 2023\06012023\ASR for SCADA Support Services Proposal for FY 2023-26.docx Page 2 of 2 

ArcSine Engineering staff are intimately familiar with the District’s SCADA network, a critical and 
complex District asset. The selection of ArcSine Engineering was based on a well-established 
reputation for delivering excellent service to several regional utilities. An increase in scope and 
cost for general support services in FY 22-23 was an anticipated result of the transition from the 
firm’s focus on STPURWE project related activities to more general support related activities. 
 
ArcSine Engineering has continued to work with staff over the last several years to implement a 
plan that applies industry best practices that will ensure a uniform well documented environment 
for both the programmer and end user. This foundational work expedites troubleshooting, ensures 
consistency, reduces errors, and allows for rapid transition to other service providers, if desired, in 
the future. Staff recommends continuing to use ArcSine Engineering as the District’s SCADA 
Support Services provider to maintain continuity of services, and not go out for a Request for 
Proposals at this time. 

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 

The Board approved ArcSine Engineering’s support services in FY 2022-23 for an estimated 
scope of work in the amount of $63,318 at the May 5, 2022, Meeting. At the December 22, 2022 
Board meeting the Board approved Amendment 1 to ArcSine Engineering SCADA Support Services 
Agreement for July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023 for covering costs associated with additional scope of work 
items in the amount of $21,377 bringing the total for FY 2022-23 to $84,695. 

 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW:  
NA 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
$184,571 or $61,523 divided evenly per year for FY’s 2024-26. 
 
 
 

23



SCOPE OF WORK 

SCADA ON-CALL SUPPORT 2023-2026 

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT 

   

ArcSine Project No.  1663.11/T1  April 27, 2023 

P:\1663.11\Contract\On Call Support  2023 - 2026.docx 

INTRODUCTION 

This Scope of Work covers professional services to be provided by ArcSine Engineering 

(Consultant) for ongoing support of Plant Control Systems. 

This Scope is of similar character and a follow-on to prior support scopes for the District.  The 

work under this Scope will be performed on an as-needed basis, as requested by the District over 

a 3-year period.  The Scope is limited, and is not intended to provide a level of effort to make 

improvements.  Instead its goal is to provide resources to support existing systems and 

functionality, as issues arise. 

This Scope provides an estimating basis for annual support, although resources will be applied to 

the work as it comes up. 

Task 1 – Recordkeeping 

The District has in place electronic files and related documentation, all of which is in a state of 

evolution and ongoing improvement.  Examples include Control Strategies which describe how 

things work.  

This Task consists of recordkeeping associated with support work items, such as receiving 

District requests and writing/editing Control Strategies, editing documents and files to reflect 

work performed. 

Provide brief status reports. 

This Task does not provide for expansion of documentation. 

Task 2 – On-Call Support, On Site And Off Site  

This Task is comprised of remote on-call support, and emergency on-site support of the Plant 

Control System.  The Secondary Treatment Improvements project made significant changes to 

Plants processes and control, and ArcSine has continued to work with the Plant’s Operations 

Staff and District Contractors to refine these controls.  The following consists of the estimating 

basis for continued on-call support.  

2.1 Provide remote on-call SCADA support to Plant staff.  Provide telephone support and 

remote troubleshooting support through VPN access.  For estimating purposes, allow for 

the following:   

2.1.1 Per year, twelve (12) programmer telephone consultations, at 4 hours each, with 

20 hours of engineering oversight, with no formal documentation or followup.   

24



 
  

ArcSine Engineering  Page 2 of 3 
P:\1663.11\Contract\On Call Support  2023 - 2026.docx 

2.1.2 Per year, seven (7) programmer consultations at 8 hours each, with 15-hours 

engineering oversight, with the time covering correspondence, teleconferences, 

work, testing, and recordkeeping.   

2.1.3 District-requested programming changes for reporting. 

2.2 Provide on-site response to SCADA urgent events.  Per year, allow for three on-site 

visits, allow for 16 hours each event (preparation, coordination, resources for the on-site 

visit, followup), total, plus reasonable expenses and time of senior staff for technical 

oversight and consultation.   

Task 3 – SCADA Support For District Engineers And District Consultants   

This Task is included to account for coordination, and data requests from District Engineers and 

Consultants.  Participate in meetings, workshops, and extract archived historical data as 

requested.  The following is the estimating basis for continued support. 

3.1 Provide remote on-call SCADA support to District Engineers and Consultants.  Provide 

telephone support and remote troubleshooting support through VPN access.  For 

estimating purposes, allow for the following:   

3.1.1 Per year, three (3) programmer telephone consultations at 4 hours each, with 5 

hours of engineering oversight, documentation will be provided as needed.   

3.1.2 Per year, ten (3) programmer consultations at 8 hours each, with 4-hours 

engineering oversight, with the time covering correspondence, teleconferences, 

work, testing, and recordkeeping.   

3.2 Per year, provide on-site response to SCADA related meeting and/or workshops. Per 

year, allow for two on-site visits, allow for 12 hours each event, total, plus 

reasonable expenses and time of senior staff for technical oversight and consultation.   

RELATED WORK 

Not covered in this Scope is work associated with responding to Cyber Security interests.  It is 

expected that a separate scope(s) will be developed, as measures to be implemented are defined.  

Work will likely include the following: 

• Cyber Security workshops/meetings 

• Network improvements 

• Improvements/changes to remote access 

• SCADA hardware changes 

• SCADA software modifications 

  

25



 
  

ArcSine Engineering  Page 3 of 3 
P:\1663.11\Contract\On Call Support  2023 - 2026.docx 

NOT INCLUDED 

Other support for the District is available, but is not included in this Scope.  Examples include 

the following: 

• Design of Plant/pumping station upgrades 

• Programming for Plant/pumping station upgrades 

• Design/implementation of other improvements 

 

26



ArcSine Project No. 1663.11 Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District

2023-2026 SCADA Support

Fee Estimate

4/27/2023

Review

Senior 

Programmer

Senior 

Design Programmer Technician Drafting Clerical

$240 $198 $181 $144 $85 $116 $93

Task 1 – Recordkeeping

A.  Receiving requests, responding 2 8 16 4

B.  Control Description edits, prior to work 2 16 4

C.  Edits following work 10 2

D.  Other recordkeeping

E.  Status reports 2 6 2

Subtotal - Hours 6 8 0 48 4 0 8

Subtotal  - Fee 1,440$          1,584$             -$                 6,912$             340$            -$               744$          -$                   

Subtotal 11,020$        

Contingency Note 3 10% 1,102$          

Task Subtotal 12,122$        

1

Task 2 - On-Call Support, On Site And Off Site 

2.1 Provide Remote On-Call SCADA Support To Plant Staff; Allow The Following:

A. Twelve telephone programmer consultations at 4 hours (plus 12-hours engineering oversight) 5 7 48 6

B. Seven involved programmer consultations at 8 hours each (plus 15-hours engineering oversight) 5 10 56 8 4

2.2 Allow Three On-Site Visits, 16 Hours Each Event (48 Hours Total), Plus Expenses And Oversight
3 3 48 6 $1,200

Subtotal - Hours 13 20 0 152 20 0 4

Subtotal  - Fee 3,120$          3,960$             -$                 21,888$           1,700$         -$               372$          1,200$           

Subtotal 32,240$        

Contingency Note 3 10% 3,224$          

Task Subtotal 35,464$         

Task 3 - SCADA Support For District Engineers And District Consultants  

3.1 Provide Remote On-Call SCADA Support To Plant Staff; Allow The Following:

A. Three telephone programmer consultations at 4 hours (plus 5-hours engineering oversight) 1 4 2 12

B. Three involved programmer consultations at 8 hours each (plus 4-hours engineering oversight) 1 3 2 21 4

3.2 Allow Two On-Site Visits, 12 Hours Each Event Plus Expenses And Oversight 2 3 24 $800

Subtotal - Hours 4 10 4 57 0 0 4

Subtotal  - Fee 960$             1,980$             724$            8,208$             -$                 -$               372$          800$              

Subtotal 13,044$        

Contingency Note 3 10% 1,305$          

Task Subtotal 14,349$         

 2023 - 2024 Support Total $61,935

Task 4 – 2024 - 2025 Support

Subtotal  - Fee $61,935

Escalation 6.9% Estimated CPI 4,274$          

Task Subtotal 66,209$        

Task 5 – 2025 - 2026 Support

Subtotal  - Fee 66,209$        

Escalation 6.9% Estimated CPI 4,568$          

Task Subtotal 70,777$        

Total 184,571$      

NOTES

1.  Individual hourly rates include salary, overhead, and profit.

2.  Other direct costs (ODC's) such as reproduction, delivery, mileage (rates will be those allowed by current IRS guidelines), and travel expenses will be billed at actual cost plus 5%.

3.  Task Subtotals include a 10% contingency to account for estimating variances.

ExpensesDescription Year 1

P:\1663.11\Contract\On Call Support  Estimate 2023 to 2026.xlsx Page 1 of 127



Page 1 of 1 

  Agenda Summary Report  

To: Board of Directors 

From: Teri Lerch, Executive Assistant/Board Secretary 
  (415) 526-1510; tlerch@lgvsd.org 

Mtg. Date: June 1, 2023 

Re: Data Instincts 2022-23 Agreement Amendment No. 1 

Item Type: Consent  X  Action  Information    Other  . 

Standard Contract:    Yes   No (See attached) Not Applicable     X   . 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board approve Amendment No. 1 with Data Instincts. 

BACKGROUND 
The District has contracted with Data Instincts to provide Public Information and Awareness 
Services. The increased cost estimate from Data Instincts includes video production services for 
the June 8, 2023 ribbon cutting event of $10,000 which is over their budgeted amount.  

Board Policy F-90 requests contracts which total over $60,000. be brought to the Board. 

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
N/A 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 

FISCAL IMPACT 
Minimal impact to the 2022-23 budget. 

Item Number______2G_____ 

GM Review   ____CP______ 

28



   

AMENDMENT NO. 1 

AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 

PROVIDING PUBLIC INFORMATION AND AWARENESS SERVICES  

(JOB NO.2223-100,  2223-600 AND 2223-650 

  

 THIS AMENDMENT made this ______ day of ________________ 2023 by and 

between the LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT (hereinafter referred to as 

“District”), and DATA INSTINCTS whose address is, 9481 WINECREST ROAD, 

WINDSOR, CA. 95492 (hereinafter referred to as “Consultant”). 

 

 WHEREAS, the original Agreement between both parties dated August 29, 2022 is 

amended and supplemented as follows; and  

 

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 

which are hereby acknowledged, the parties do hereby agree as follows: 

 

1. Scope of Work.   

a. The District required additional Public Relations services to be performed as 

described in Consultant’s email dated May 8, 2023, on a time and materials basis, 

value of services not-to-exceed $10,000. 

b. The adjusted Total Contract Price to date is $69,250. (Previous Amount = $59,250.) 

c. The term of this Amendment extends the Revised Agreement to August 31, 2023, 

subject to early termination by either party as outlined in Section 20 of the original 

agreement. 

 

2. Successors And Assigns.  This Amendment shall be binding upon and inure to the 

benefit of the successors and permitted assigns of the parties hereto. 

 

3. Entire Agreement.  Except as expressly modified by this Amendment, the Agreement 

shall be and remain in full force and effect in accordance with its terms and shall constitute the 

legal, valid, binding and enforceable obligations to the parties.  This Amendment and the 

Agreement (including any written amendments thereto), collectively, are the complete agreement 

of the parties and supersede any prior agreements or representations, whether oral or written, 

with respect thereto. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Amendment to be duly executed 

by their authorized representatives. 

 

     LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT 

 

     By _____________________________________________ 

     Curtis Paxton  General Manager  Date 

 

     DATA INSTINCTS 

 

     ________________________________________________ 

      Signature   Date 

 

     By _____________________________________________ 

      Print Name   Title 
 

29



Page 1 of 2 

  Agenda Summary Report 

To: Board of Directors 
From: Michael P. Cortez, PE, District Engineer 

(415) 526-1518; mcortez@lgvsd.org  
Mtg. Date: June 1, 2023 

Re: Award of Contract to Hazen & Sawyer for Revisions to LGVSD Standard 
Specifications and Drawings 

Item Type:  Consent     X  Action     Information Other     . 

Standard Contract:    Yes       X    No (See attached) Not Applicable    . 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board authorizes the General Manager to execute a contract with Hazen & Sawyer for Revisions 
to LGVSD Standard Specifications and Drawings in the amount of $95,330. 

BACKGROUND 
The District Standard Specifications and Drawings (District Standards) was most recently updated 
in 2000. In recent years, District staff encountered substantial discrepancies on acceptable design 
requirements between current industry standards and the 2000 District Standards, such that 
District staff determined that some requirements in the drawings and specifications are obsolete. 
Hence, a thorough update is warranted for conformity with current industry published standards, 
applicable codes, and regulatory requirements. The updated District Standards would provide 
developers with procedural guide and minimum general requirements for the design, acceptable 
materials, and other special considerations specific to the District. 

On March 10, 2023, District staff issued a Request for Proposal (RFP) and reached out to multiple 
consulting firms; however, only one consultant responded. As the sole proposer, Hazen & Sawyer 
submitted a proposal for the following scope of work: 

1. Review and evaluate the 2000 District Standards for conformity with LGVSD Specifications
for Lateral Sewers approved by the Board in 2019.

2. Research current standard practices of engineering design and construction requirements.
3. Revise and update specifications and drawings by incorporating research results and

District staff input.
4. Provide final LGVSD standard specifications and drawings in Microsoft Word and AutoCAD

formats, which would provide third-party consultants flexibility in incorporating District
requirements in their projects.

5. Update the sewer design criteria for single and multi-family residential units and
commercial developments to be used by developers for sanitary sewer flow calculations
when applying for allocation of sewer capacity.

Staff reviewed the Hazen & Sawyer proposal including the fee schedule and deemed it 
reasonable and meets District requirements. 

Item Number______2H__________ 

GM Review   ____CP____________ 

30

mailto:mcortez@lgvsd.org


 
 

 Page 2 of 2 

 
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
N/A 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
$95,330 

31



  

 hazenandsawyer.com 

Hazen and Sawyer 
90 New Montgomery Street, Suite 333 
San Francisco, CA 94105 

 

April 7, 2023 
Mr. Mike Cortez, PE 
District Engineer 
Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 
101 Lucas Valley Road Suite 300 
San Rafael, CA 94903  

Re: Revisions to LGVSD Standard Specifications and Drawings, Job No. 22125-02 

Dear Mr. Cortez: 

Hazen and Sawyer (Hazen) understands that Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District’s (LGVSD’s, 
District’s) Standard Specifications and Drawings (District Standards), last updated in 2000, are ready to 
be updated.  For example, over the last 22 years, there have been significant improvements to water 
conservation resulting in reduced wastewater flows from new developments than those developed over 20 
years ago.  The District Standards are used both for District projects and to provide guidelines for 
planning and design of projects (e.g., new housing developments) with proposed wastewater connections 
within the District’s service area.  

With that background, the District is faced with an important decision. Your challenge will be to distinguish 
between the firms proposing to assist the District with updating your standards. Each firm will offer 
extensive experience and staff qualifications and provide supporting documentation about their unique 
knowledge of District’s facilities. However, the following are key messages that help define and distinguish 
the Hazen Team, who have completed similar assignments locally as well as throughout the country: 

Understanding the Importance of Updating the District Standards. Hazen is currently 
preparing a hydraulic model for the District’s collection system, and we have been using the 
District Standards for inputting flow demands into the model.  Hazen, with the District’s 
cooperation, is also working with several developers to help them evaluate the impact of their 
new wastewater flows on the District’s collection and treatment system, using the District 
Standards to provide uniformity for these evaluations.    
  

The Hazen Team’s 
Local Wastewater 

Experience 

32



 

Page 2 

A Proven Team with a Local, Committed, and Accessible Project Manager Who Produces 
Results. Our Team, led by Gregg Cummings, consists of the same core members who recently 
delivered on the On-Call task orders, including the 245 Nova Albion and Los Gamos permit 
applications, as well as the San Francisco Public Utilities Commission (SFPUC) Standards 
update.   

Experience with Updating Standards.  Hazen is currently updating collection system design 
standards for the SFPUC, and Central Contra Costa Sanitary District.  We can bring our SFPUC 
experience to efficiently and effectively update the District Standards. 

Hazen is pleased to provide the proposal, which includes General Firm Information, Project 
Understanding and Approach, and a Compensation Matrix. 

The local Hazen Team offers Standard Specifications and Drawings experience, exceptional service, and 
recent experience with how developers and other users will use the updated District Standards, making 
Hazen an outstanding choice for this assignment. We confirm that Hazen can meet the required insurance 
levels, agrees to the previously negotiated contract language, and that Marc Solomon has authority to 
negotiate and contractually bind Hazen. If you have any questions about this proposal, please do not 
hesitate to contact Gregg Cummings at gcummings@hazenandsawyer.com or (415) 307-9505. 

Sincerely,        
Hazen 
 
  

Gregg A. Cummings, PE     Marc Solomon, PE, BCEE, D.WRE 
Project Manager/Senior Associate    Principal-In-Charge/Vice President 
 
Cc:  Irene Huang, PE 
  

33



 

Page 3 

General Firm Information 

Hazen is a nationally and internationally recognized environmental engineering consulting firm founded 
in 1951, with over 1,500 employees who specialize in the engineering and construction of wastewater, 
water, and stormwater facilities. Hazen has eight offices in California, including four in the Bay Area.  
We are currently conducting several projects for the District, including the Digester Room MCC-2 
Upgrade, Collection System Hydraulic Model Development, and As-Needed Engineering and On-Call 
Services.  Hazen is also working with District staff and developers on four development projects using 
District Standards. 

Hazen’s Firm Project References, Organizational Chart, Brief Resumes of Key Staff, and Hourly Rates 
are included at the end of this proposal. 

Project Understanding and Approach 

Project Understanding 

The Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District’s (LGVSD’s, District’s) Standard Specifications and Drawings 
(District Standards) were last updated in 2000.  These documents have some outdated information, such 
as water usage factors based on a less intensive water conservation era, which need to be updated to 
reflect current District conditions.  Also, as noted in the Request for Proposal, some of the language in the 
District Standards may be obsolete and some of the standards may no longer conform to current industry 
published standards, applicable codes, and regulatory requirements.   

Hazen’s goal with this project is to address these issues and update the District Standards to meet current 
industry standards, codes, and regulations and to provide District Standards that facilitate working with 
developers and other potential discharges to District systems. 

Project Approach 

For this project to update the District Standards, Hazen proposes the following Project Approach: 

1. Manage the scope, schedule, and budget for this project, including monthly reporting. 

2. Coordinate a 1-hour Kickoff Meeting to review the scope, schedule, and budget for the project 
with District staff, obtain relevant documents, and discuss project overview to better 
understand the District’s concerns and goals for this project. For meetings included in this 
project Hazen will prepare and distribute agenda in pdf format via email. 

3. Review and evaluate the 2000 District Standard, including the following: 
a) Part A – General Information 
b) Part B – Engineering and Design Requirements 
c) Part C – General Construction Requirements 
d) Part D – Technical Construction Requirements 
e) Part E – Standard Drawings 

34



 

Page 4 

It is understood that the District will provide the Standard Specifications as Word files and the 
Standard Drawings as AutoCAD files. 

4. Review and update six standard drawings (LD-1 to LD-6) included in the current District 
Standards for sewer laterals , and update details of acceptable materials shown on AM-1 to 
AM-11.  It is understood that the District will provide the drawings as AutoCAD files. 

5. Identify potential updates to the Standard Details that are recommended to be reviewed by 
District Counsel.  These updates to be reviewed will be highlighted in the documents to 
facilitate review. 

6. Research current construction standard practices of engineering design and construction 
requirements for four to five comparable Bay Area Wastewater Agencies.  An initial list of 
these agencies we propose to contact, based on our familiarity with their design standards, are 
San Francisco Public Utilities Commission (SFPUC), Union Sanitary District (USD), East Bay 
Municipal Utility District (EBMUD), and Napa Sanitation District, and Central Marin 
Sanitation Agency (CMSA).  The results of this research will be summarized in a Technical 
Memo, focusing on common practices and industry standards as well as providing suggested 
justification for recommended updates to District Standards based on our research. 

7. Evaluate the most effective way to incorporate the following District specific requirements into 
the District Standards: 

a) Vehicle access in new developments for all new manholes and new sewer mains, 
include accommodating design and access requirements for providing access for 
District maintenance activities. 

b) Design criteria in District Standards Section 4-01 for gravity sewer design in new 
developments. 

c) LGVSD Specifications for Lateral Sewers, verifying consistency with District 
Standards. 

8. Mark-up the existing District Standards, based on the results of Tasks 2 to 7 above, and provide 
the mark-ups to the District for review. 

9. Mark-up the existing 19 District Standard Drawings, and provide up to an additional 21 
District Standard Drawings, including the following: 

a) Shallow Manhole 
b) Flat Top Manhole 
c) Inside Drop Manhole 

Connection 
d) Precast Manhole Base 
e) 5-foot Diameter Sewer 

Manhole 
f) Manhole Connection 
g) Waterproofing Manhole Ring 

Section (Inflow & Infiltration 
Seal) 

h) Air Release Valve 

i) Air Release Valve Vault 
j) Backwater Prevention Devices 
k) Construction Signage 
l) 4-inch Sewer Lateral Detail 
m) 6-inch and 8-inch Sewer 

Lateral Detail 
n) Lateral Connection to Sewer 

Main 
o) Steep Slope Lateral Installation 
p) Private Sewage Pump Station 
q) Vehicular Access to Manholes 
r) Private Road Access 

35



 

Page 1 

10. Develop a list of suggested Construction Specification Institute (CSI) sections that could be 
added as an optional task. 

11. Prepare and submit the updated District Standards at the 10%, 60%, 95%, and final levels. 

12. Coordinate meetings with District staff at the 10%, 60%, and 95% levels.  The Tasks 8 and 9 
mark-ups will be provided at the 60% level, and District comments will be incorporated into 
the 95% submittals. 

The following deliverables are included: 
1. Comparable Wastewater Agency Technical Memorandum 
2. Mark-ups of District Standard Specifications and Standard Drawings, provided as pdf’s. 
3. Final District Standard Specifications, provided as Word files. 
4. Final District Standard Drawings, provided as AutoCAD files 
5. Compiled final version of District Standards in pdf format. 

Schedule  

The proposed for this project is summarized below: 

 Notice to Proceed: May 1, 2023 
 Submit Comparable Wastewater Agency Technical Memorandum:  June 9, 2023 
 Submit Mark-ups of District Standard Specifications and Standard Drawings: June 30, 2023 
 Submit Final District Standard Specifications, Standard Drawings, and Compiled Version of 

District Standards: July 31, 2023 

Firm Project References 

San Francisco Public Utilities Commission, Wastewater & Stormwater Utility 
Standards, San Francisco, CA 

Hazen is developing Utility Standards for the San Francisco Public Utilities 
Commission (SFPUC).  Thes Standards  include design guidelines, drainage design 
standards, standard specifications and details, stormwater outfall guidelines, and sea 
level rise procedures. As part of this work, we contacted other agencies and 
reviewed their sea level rise standards, presented at Technical Advisory Group 
meetings made up of SFPUC and Public Works staff, and provide Ad Hoc 
assistance related to on-going development projects such as Hunter’s Point and 
Balboa Reservoir. 
 

Relevant Highlights Reference 
 Design guidelines and drainage standards 
 Standard specifications and details 
 Sea Level Rise flow chart and Ad Hoc reviews 

Andrew Corrales | SFPUC 
acorrales@sfwater.org 

 
  

36



 

Page 2 

Las Gallinas Valley Santiary District, As-Needed Engineering and On-Call, San 
Rafael CA 

As part of Hazen’s As-Needed Engineering and On-Call contracts, we 
assisted the District by applying District Standards for 245 Nova Albion and  
reviewed the connection request for the Los Gamos development. Hazen 
also assisted the District with obtaining air permits and reviewing submittals 
for a new generator, evaluating Administration Building constructability, 
and conducting a condition assessment inspection of a digester. 
 

Relevant Highlights Reference 
 Familiarity with District Standards 
 Understanding of developer requirements 
 Constructability and permitting assistance 

Ms. Irene Huang, PE, | LGVSD  
(415) 472-1734 
ihuang@lgvsd.org  

 

CAD and BIM Standards Development as well as As-Needed CAD and BIM 
Services., Central San, CA 

Central Contra Costa Sanitation District (Central San) retained Hazen to 
provide professional engineering services for their CAD and BIM Standards 
Development as well as As-Needed CAD and BIM Services. Development 
of Central San’s Cad/BIM Standards that includes stakeholder workshops; 
performing a gap analysis; developing a CAD Standards Manual; developing 
CAD templates, standard details, library and resources files, developing a 
BIM Execution Plan and BIM Standards Manual as well as developing 3D templates, details and resource 
files. The as-needed CAD/BIM support to Central San will includes but is not limited to reviewing and 
providing QA/QC for CAD/BIM submittals for various Treatment Plant projects; ensuring that project 
documentation and contracts are consistent and follow the standards developed for CAD and BIM 
Standards; conducting CAD BIM Standards training to Central San CAD users and stakeholders; 
updating and monitoring CAD/BIM design standards and procedures pursuant to industry best practices 
and national guidelines; and recommending software and/or workflow for design review process to 
incorporate live PDF editing/ commenting to facilitate communication between consultants and District 
staff and integrate comments into final deliverables.  
 

 Relevant Highlights Reference 
 Developing CAD and BIM Design 

Standards 
 Development of Revit and Civil 3D 

Templates 
 Stakeholder Engagement 

Khae Bohan, LSIT, GISP | CCCSD 
District PM (Asset Management Program Administrator) 
(925) 229-7327 
kbohan@centralsan.org 

 
 
 

  

37



 

Page 3 

Organizational Chart 

The Hazen Team, presented in the organizational chart below, was selected based on two very important 
criteria: familiarity with the District and experience  with wastewater detailed design and design 
standards.  Our team members have the required technical and management expertise and are prepared to 
begin your project immediately. 

 

Key Staff Qualifications  

Gregg Cummings, PE | Project Manager 

M.S., Environmental/Structural Engineering, San Jose State University  
B.S., Civil Engineering, University of California, Berkeley 
Professional Engineer 

Gregg will be the Project Manager and the day-to-day contact for the District. He 
has over 37 years of experience in the planning, design, and construction support 
of water, wastewater, and recycled water projects, utility upgrades, hydraulic 
modeling, and engineering support related to design standards. Gregg is 
currently the Project Manager for the District’s Digester Room MCC2, 
Collection System Hydraulic Model Development, and On-Call projects.  He is 
also Contract Manager and Technical Reviewer for SFPUC’s Wastewater and 
Stormwater Utilities Standards Project and Civil Design Manager for Union 
Sanitary Districts’ Campus Building project. 

  

38



 

Page 4 

Marc Solomon, PE, BCEE, W.DRE | Principal in Charge 

B.S., Civil Engineering, Duke University, North Carolina 
M.S., Public Health, Tulane University, Louisiana 
Professional Engineer, Water Treatment Plant Operator; Water Distribution System Operator 
Board Certified Environmental Engineer Diplomate, Water Resource Engineer, Value 
Engineering Certification 

Marc will be the Principal in Charge and responsible for ensuring that the 
resources are available for these projects. Marc is an accomplished principal and 
project manager on a wide range of wastewater projects. Marc’s broad project 
experience has exposed him to all phases of project planning, design, system 
modeling, system controls, construction management, and operational reliability. 
This unique and diverse experience enhances his project management abilities 
and his ability to work effectively with project teams and externally with elected 
officials, engineers, operators, contractors, and the general public. Marc is a 
hands-on Principal and Project Manager and has worked closely with Gregg  on 
all District projects and is also involved with Hazen’s standards update for 
Central Contra Costa Sanitary District’s CAD/BIM.. 

Jerimy Borchardt, PE | Technical Reviewer 

B.S., Civil Engineering, California State University, Fresno, CA 
Professional Engineer 

Jerimy is a Project/Program Manager with expertise in civil engineering and 
pipeline design. His diverse experience includes planning, design, and 
construction of multidiscipline projects requiring public outreach, permitting, 
environmental compliance, traffic control, hydraulics, trenchless technologies, 
condition assessment, survey and mapping, routing studies (pipeline), cost 
estimates, construction schedules and coordination of sub consultants. His 
experience also includes construction management, construction inspection, and 
the QA/QC and design of water conveyance and transmission systems. Jerimy 
has worked with and developed a strong collaborative working relationship with 
a wide range of clients and agency staff including  districts, water companies, 
and local, state and federal governments.  He is technical advisor for updating 
the SFPUC Wastewater & Stormwater Utility Standards. 

  

39



 

Page 5 

Eric Neill, PE | Updating Standards 

M.S., Civil Engineering (Water Resources), Oregon State University 
B.S., Civil Engineering, University of California, Davis 
Professional Engineer 

Eric is an engineer supporting conveyance and water resource projects 
throughout California. He has design, construction, and condition assessment 
experience with municipal sanitary sewers, water distribution systems, urban 
utilities, and other conveyance infrastructure including pump stations, canals, 
and large diameter pipelines. He has extensive experience with construction 
inspection, change management, and utility relocation design and coordination. 
Eric has additional experience with trenchless rehabilitation design, distribution 
system modeling, and emergency response assessment and planning. His 
advanced education includes experience in hydraulic and hydrologic modeling 
for applications such as flood modeling, sediment transport, stormwater system 
design and analysis, culvert analysis, and pipeline network analysis. Eric 
assisted with updating design standards and specifications for the SFPUC 
Wastewater & Stormwater Utility Standards. 

 

Patrick DeLong | Updating Standards 

BS, Civil Engineering, Minor in Environmental Engineering, 
New Jersey Institute of Technology (Albert Dorman Honors College), Newark, NJ 

Patrick is an assistant engineer within the San Francisco Office with diverse 
experience in sanitary sewer systems, green infrastructure, and stormwater 
management.  He assisted with updating design standards and specifications and 
led the development of stormwater outfall guidelines for the SFPUC 
Wastewater & Stormwater Utility Standards.  Pat is also assisting SFPUC with 
reviewing green infrastructure proposals from developers and assisted SFPUC 
with updating their green infrastructure design standards.  He is also conducting 
green infrastructure inspections for SFPUC for projects during construction. 
 

Victor Panez | Drafting 

AOS, Drafting/CAD Technology, Hi-Tech Institute 

Victor is a Lead CAD/BIM Coordinator and Senior Principal Designer for 
Hazen and Sawyer with over 18 years of experience in the consulting field 
providing 3D CAD Design and CAD Coordination services. He is experienced 
working in Revit and AutoCAD, Autodesk BIM 360, Bentley MicroStation V8i 
and Bentley OpenPlant Piping system. Also using Bentley Project Wise 
Explorer for our current projects in the firm. 

 

  

40



 

Page 6 

Compensation 

The two tables below provide our Hours and Fee Matrix along with our Hourly Fees: 
 
Hours and Fee Matrix 
 

 
 
Hourly Rates 
 

  Name                       Classification             Hourly Rate 

  Marc Solomon   Principal in Charge   $320 

  Gregg Cummings   Project Manager   $310 

  Jerimy Borchardt   QA/QC   $290 

  Eric Neill   Staff Engineer   $190 

  Pat DeLong   Staff Engineer   $160 

  Victor Panez   Drafting   $170 

   
  Reimbursable Charges                 Rates 
  Mileage   IRS Rate 

  Consumable Charge   $6/hour 

  Prints, Plots, Messenger Services and other direct expenses markup   Cost + 10% 

  Outside Consultant Services Markup   10% 

  Other   Cost + 10% 

 
     Billing Rates are subject to yearly escalation based on cost of living. 

41



 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2023\Agenda Packet 2023\06012023\ASR Final 2023 Sewer Rate Study.docx Page 1 of 1 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Dale McDonald, Administrative Services Manager  
 (415) 526-1519   dmcdonald@lgvsd.org 
Meeting Date: June 1, 2023 

Re: Accept 2023 Sewer Rate Study Final Report 

Item Type:   Consent   X  Action        Information      Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes     No  (See attached) Not Applicable      X       . 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board to accept Hildebrand Consulting’s 2023 Sewer Rate Study Final Report. 
 
BACKGROUND 
On January 19, 2023, the Board awarded a contract to Hildebrand Consulting to conduct a sewer 
user charge cost for service and rate study to assist with the development of a series of rate 
policies for the fiscal years 2023/2024 through 2026/2027. The broad objective of the study was 
to provide the necessary information and analysis to the Board to set rates and a rate structure to 
adequately fund the operating, capital costs and debt service for the next four years.  The study 
also considered future capital related expansion of facilities, especially the impact large capital 
projects, such as the new operations and lab buildings at the treatment plant and new ultraviolet 
disinfection system, would have on sewer rates. 
 
The Board received the draft sewer rate report on May 8, 2023 from Hildebrand Consulting. No 
changes to the report were recommended or made. 
 
The proposed rate increases in the study will be presented at a public hearing along with 
considered adoption of the proposed rate increases on June 30, 2023. 

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
On May 8, 2023, the Board received the draft report and authorized the General Manager to bring 
the final Sewer Rate Study back to the Board for approval under consent. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Accepting the final report has no fiscal impact. 
 
Attachment: 

1. 2023 Sewer Rate Study Final Report, May 9, 2023 by Hildebrand Consulting 
  

Item Number_______2I_______ 

GM Review   _____CP_________ 

 

42

mailto:dmcdonald@lgvsd.org


2023 Sewer Rate Study 

Final Report 

May 9, 2023 

Agenda item 2I

43



 

   ES-2 

 

May 9, 2023 

 

 
Mr. Dale McDonald 

Administrative Services Manager 

Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 

101 Lucas Valley Rd. Suite 300 

San Rafael, CA 94903 

 
 

Re: 2023 Sewer Rate Study 

 

Dear Mr. McDonald, 

 

Hildebrand Consulting is pleased to present this 2023 Sewer Rate Study (Study) that we 

performed for Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District (District). We appreciate the fine 
assistance provided by you and all of the members of the District staff who participated 

in the Study.  

 

If you or others at the District have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me 

at: 

mhildebrand@hildco.com  

(510) 316-0621 

 

 

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to the District and look forward to the 

possibility of doing so again in the near future. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

    
Mark Hildebrand     

  

Hildebrand Consulting, LLC    

 

Enclosure 

  

44



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District  

2023 Sewer Rate Study Table of Contents 
 

 

   1 
 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 INTRODUCTION ....................................................................... 2 

 DISTRICT BACKGROUND ................................................................................................2 

 RATE STUDY BACKGROUND ...........................................................................................3 

 SCOPE & OBJECTIVES OF STUDY ....................................................................................3 

 STUDY METHODOLOGY ..................................................................................................4 

 FINANCIAL PLAN ...................................................................... 6 

 FINANCIAL DATA & ASSUMPTIONS ..................................................................................6 
2.1.1 Beginning Fund Balances ............................................................................................................... 6 
2.1.2 Reserve Targets ............................................................................................................................... 7 
2.1.3 Customer Growth ............................................................................................................................. 8 
2.1.4 Rate Revenues.................................................................................................................................. 8 
2.1.5 Non-Rate Revenues ......................................................................................................................... 9 
2.1.6 Operation and Maintenance Expenses and Existing Debt Service ............................................. 10 
2.1.7 Cost Escalation............................................................................................................................... 12 
2.1.8 Capital Improvement Program and Debt Strategy ..................................................................... 12 

 PROPOSED RATE REVENUE INCREASES ......................................................................... 13 

 COST-OF-SERVICE & RATE STRUCTURE .................................... 15 

 RATE SETTING OBJECTIVES ........................................................................................ 15 

 CURRENT SEWER SERVICE CHARGES ............................................................................ 16 

 PROPOSED RATE STRUCTURE MODIFICATIONS.............................................................. 17 

 WASTEWATER COST-OF-SERVICE ANALYSIS .................................................................. 17 
3.4.1 Customer Flow and Loadings ....................................................................................................... 18 
3.4.2 Allocation of Costs ......................................................................................................................... 22 
3.4.4 Proposed Rates .............................................................................................................................. 25 

 CONCLUSION ........................................................................ 26 

 

 

LIST OF FIGURES 

Figure 1: FY 2022/23 Budgeted Revenue Categories ....................................................................... 10 

Figure 2: FY 2022/23 Expense Categories (Estimated Year End) .................................................... 11 

Figure 3: Historical and projected capital spending ....................................................................... 13 

Figure 4: Financial Plan Estimates with Recommended Rate Increases ...................................... 14 

 

 

45



Novato Sanitary District  

2022 Sewer Rate Study Table of Contents 
 

 

   2 

 

LIST OF TABLES 

Table 1: FY 2022/23 Beginning Cash Balance ..................................................................................... 6 

Table 2: Current Sewer Service Charge Schedule ........................................................................... 17 

Table 3: Customer Classifications and Example Customer Types ................................................. 19 

Table 4: Customer Account Data and Estimated Flows and Loadings.......................................... 21 

Table 5: Determination of Unit Costs ................................................................................................ 22 

Table 6: Wastewater Allocation of Annual Costs to Users .............................................................. 23 

Table 7: Wastewater Rate Determination ........................................................................................ 24 

Table 8: 4-Year Schedule of Proposed Sewer Service Charges ...................................................... 25 

 

 

LIST OF SCHEDULES 

Schedule 1 – Detailed Budgeted and Projected Operating Cash Outflows 

Schedule 2 – 5-Year Capital Improvement Program 

Schedule 3 - Cash Flow Pro Forma 

46



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District  

2023 Sewer Rate Study List of Acronyms 
 

 

   1 
 

 

 

List of Acronyms 

 
AWWA American Water Works Association 

BOD biochemical oxygen demand 

CIP Capital improvement program 

COSA cost of service analysis 

DCR debt service coverage ratio 

FY Fiscal year (which ends on June 30 for the District) 

ccf hundred cubic feet (748 gallons) 

LGVSD Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 

mg/l milligrams per liter 

mgd millions of gallons per day 

MMWD Marin Municipal Water District 

NMWD North Marin Water District 

O&M operations and maintenance 

TSS total suspended solids 

SSU Sewer Service Unit 

SWRCB  State Water Resources Control Board 

WEF Water Environment Federation 

WWTP wastewater treatment plant

47



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District  

2023 Sewer Rate Study Introduction 
 

 

   2 

 

 INTRODUCTION 

Hildebrand Consulting, LLC was retained by Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District (District 

or LGVSD) to conduct a comprehensive Sewer Rate Study (Study). This report describes 

in detail the assumptions, procedures, and results of the Study, including conclusions 

and recommendations. 

 DISTRICT BACKGROUND 

LGVSD provides wastewater collection, treatment, and disposal services in the northern 

San Rafael area. The District serves over 32,000 customers and manages over 100 miles 

of collection lines. As a multi-faceted public utility, LGVSD also generates solar energy, 

operates a garbage franchise, and oversees a water reclamation project which provides 

the public with wildlife and recreational benefits. The LGVSD service area is challenged 

by a low topography, bayside location, and sensitive receiving bodies which limit the 

ability to discharge during the summer. As a result, during the summer about two thirds 

of the District’s treated effluent is recycled in collaboration with Marin Municipal Water 

District (MMWD) and North Marin Water District (NMWD). Hildebrand Consulting is 

playing an active role as an independent consultant in refining those cost allocations 

between LGVSD and NMWD. The remainder of treated effluent is utilized at LGVSD’s 

irrigation pastures. These discharge limitations are costs that may be borne by sewer 

customers and not recycled water customers (whose use of the recycled water can be 

seen as a service rendered). 

LGVSD previously initiated a major capital program to upgrade its wastewater 

treatment plant (WWTP) and expand the existing LGVSD Recycled Water Treatment 

Facility in order to address aging infrastructure, changes in wastewater content, and 

new regulations. In addition, the District plans to complete additional WWTP upgrades 

to its primary treatment process and add ultraviolet filtration. The expansion has 

48

http://www.lgvsd.org/facilities/reclamation/green-energy-power/


Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District  

2023 Sewer Rate Study Introduction 
 

 

   3 

 

created operational efficiencies and also allows the District to serve the present and 

future residents.  

  RATE STUDY BACKGROUND 

LGVSD’s last comprehensive rate study was conducted in 2021. Generally speaking, 

residential customers are charged a flat rate per dwelling unit. Non-residential rates are 

charged based on average winter and summer water usage as well as a strength factor 

(depending on the type of commercial operation).  

The purpose of this Study is to update the District’s financial plan and evaluate the 

structure of the existing sewer user charges by updating the cost-of-service analysis 

(COSA). The broader purpose of the 10-year financial plan is to provide the necessary 

information and analysis to the District's Board of Directors for it to set rates that 

adequately fund the operating, capital costs and debt service associated with the 

collection, treatment and disposal of wastewater for the next four years (fiscal year 

2023/24 through FY 2026/27). Periodically updating the COSA is a best practice and 

necessary to comply with applicable law. Rate structure updates ensure that each class 

of customer continues to pay their fair and proportional share of costs. The cost to serve 

each class of customers may vary over time due to changes in water use, sewage 

strength, number of accounts and other factors. 

In addition, the Study has reviewed the surcharge imposed on Captains Cove and Marin 

Lagoon to ensure that the rates equitably reflect the cost of operating the 

disproportionate number of pump stations needed to serve those areas.  

 SCOPE & OBJECTIVES OF STUDY 

The scope of this Study was to prepare a multi-year financial plan, update the COSA, 

review the District’s existing rate structure, and propose a 4-year rate schedule. The 

primary objectives of this Study were to: 

49



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District  

2023 Sewer Rate Study Introduction 
 

 

   4 

 

i. Develop a multi-year financial management plan that integrates the District’s 

operational and capital project funding needs 

ii. Propose annual rate adjustments to the Sewer Service Charges that will ensure 

adequate revenues to meet the District’s ongoing service and financial 

obligations 

iii. Determine the cost of providing sewer service to the District’s customers using 

equitable and industry-accepted methodologies 

iv. Recommend specific modifications to the District’s existing rate structure in 

order to ensure that the District is equitably recovering the cost of service and 

comporting with industry standards and California’s legal requirements 

 STUDY METHODOLOGY 

This Study applied methodologies that are aligned with industry standard practices for 

rate setting as promulgated by the Water Environment Federation (WEF) and all 

applicable law, including California Constitution Article XIII D, Section 6(b), commonly 

known as Proposition 218.  

The Study began with development of a multi-year financial management plan that 

determined the level of annual rate revenue required to cover projected annual 

operating expenses, debt service (including coverage targets), and capital cost 

requirements while maintaining adequate reserves. A financial planning model was 

customized to reflect the District’s financial dynamics and latest available data for the 

sewer operations in order to develop a long-term financial management plan, inclusive 

of projected annual revenue requirements and corresponding annual rate adjustments. 

Revenue requirements calculated in the financial plan for FY 2023/24 were then used to 

perform a detailed COSA. The COSA and rate structure design were conducted based 

upon principles outlined by the WEF, legal requirements (Proposition 218) and other 

generally accepted industry practices to develop rates that reflect the cost of providing 

service.  

50



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District  

2023 Sewer Rate Study Introduction 
 

 

   5 

 

Recommendations for the financial plan and updated rate structure have been 

presented to the District’s Board of Directors and a Public Hearing to adopt the rates 

has been scheduled for late June of 2023.  

51



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District  

2023 Sewer Rate Study Financial Plan 
 

 

   6 

 

 FINANCIAL PLAN 

This Study’s 10-year financial plan was developed through interactive work sessions 

with District staff. As a result of this process, the Study has produced a robust financial 

plan that will allow the District to meet revenue requirements and financial 

performance objectives throughout the projection period while striving to minimize 

rate increases. This includes maintaining prudent reserves and ensuring that the 

District’s customers are all paying fair and equitable amounts for services provided.  

 FINANCIAL DATA & ASSUMPTIONS 

The District provided historical and budgeted financial information associated with 

operation of the sewer system, including historical and budgeted operating costs, a 

multi-year capital improvement program (CIP), and outstanding debt service 

obligations. District staff also assisted in providing other assumptions and policies, 

operating and capital reserve targets, and escalation rates for operating costs (all of 

which are described in the following subsections).  

2.1.1 BEGINNING FUND BALANCES 

The District’s beginning fund balance for FY 2022/23 is summarized in Table 1. 

Table 1: FY 2022/23 Beginning Cash Balance 

 

Unrestricted Cash and Operating Reserve $27,909,000

Emergency Repair Reserve $1,000,000

Capital Reserve $2,951,500

Vehicle & Equipment Reserve $841,700

Total: $32,702,200

Restricted Debt Service Reserves $904,600

Restricted (Capital Facility Charges) $587,700

Total Reserves: $34,194,500

52



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District  

2023 Sewer Rate Study Financial Plan 
 

 

   7 

 

2.1.2 RESERVE TARGETS 

Reserves for utilities are cash balances that are maintained in order to (a) comply with 

contractual obligations (e.g., bond covenants), (b) protect the utility from unexpected 

financial events, and/or (c) accommodate operational and capital program cash flow 

needs. Often multiple reserves or fund targets are maintained, each with a specific 

function. In addition to the direct benefits of financial stability, reserves can help 

utilities obtain higher credit rankings, which can then help qualify the utility for cheaper 

debt. Credit rating agencies evaluate utilities on their financial stability, which includes 

adherence to formally adopted reserve targets.  

The following describes recommended reserve targets which are partially informed 

based on existing District reserve policies (Policies and Procedures F-50-10) and are 

consistent with 1) the author’s industry experience for similar systems, 2) findings of 

reserve studies conducted by the American Water Works Association (AWWA), and 3) 

healthy reserve levels for public utilities per the evaluation criteria published by rating 

agencies (e.g., Fitch, Moody’s, and Standard & Poor’s).  

Operating and Rate Stabilization Reserve Target – The Operating and Rate 

Stabilization Reserve target is maintained in order to meet the liquidity and cash flow 

needs for the District’s day-to-day operations and debt service obligations. This reserve 

ensures continuity of service regardless of short-term changes in cash flow or sudden 

increases in operating costs. The District has a policy to maintain the Operating fund at 

a level equal to 7 months of the annual operating budget plus the annual debt service.  

Given the FY 2022/23 estimated end of year expenses of $10.4 million plus debt service 

of $4.2 million, the targeted reserve for that year would be about $8.5 million.  

Emergency Reserve Target: This reserve is maintained with the intention of protecting 

the District from catastrophic failure of critical infrastructure and managing the 

inherent volatility of capital spending needs. By policy, the District maintains a target 

level of $1 million.  

53



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District  

2023 Sewer Rate Study Financial Plan 
 

 

   8 

 

Capital Reserve Target: The Capital Reserve is designed to allow the District to manage 

the inherent variability in annual capital spending. For example, in the current financial 

plan the annual capital spending is as high as $26 million in one year and as low as $4 

million in another year. The District’s policies describe the reserve as a source of 

“capital for major capital projects that span two or more years” and that the targeted 

level should be informed by accumulated depreciation. The District’s current Capital 

Reserve Target is $4 million. 

Given that this reserve is designed to smooth the inherent variability of the capital 

spending program, the reserve may be drawn down during years of higher-than-

average capital spending and conversely the reserve should be built up during years 

when capital spending is below average. Such an approach can help reduce the need 

for large rate adjustments and help ensure continuous funding for capital replacement 

and rehabilitation projects.  

Vehicle and Equipment Reserve – Vehicle and equipment purchases can be cyclical 

and vary considerably from one year to the next, particularly when more expense 

vehicles need to be replaced (e.g., vac trucks). Much like the Capital Reserve, the Vehicle 

and Equipment Reserve is designed to absorb this inherent volatility in the annual cost 

of vehicles and expensive equipment. The District’s current reserve target is $1 million. 

2.1.3 CUSTOMER GROWTH 

Generally speaking, the District's service area is largely built-out with growth mostly 

coming in the form of densification. The recent average District capital facility charge 

revenue of about $340 thousand per year over the last two years indicates that the 

annual growth rate has been approximately 0.3 percent. This Study assumes that this 

rate of growth will continue over the next 10 years.  

2.1.4 RATE REVENUES 

Rate revenue is the revenue generated by Sewer Service Charges from customers for sewer 

service. Sewer Service Charges are collected from individual residential and non-residential 

54



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District  

2023 Sewer Rate Study Financial Plan 
 

 

   9 

 

customers within the District. This Study’s financial plan proposes annual rate revenue 

adjustments that will meet the District’s revenue requirements. Budget and projected Sewer 

Service Charge revenues are listed in Schedule 31. The rate revenue used for FY2022/23 is 

based on the District’s projected revenue for that year. 

2.1.5 NON-RATE REVENUES  

In addition to rate revenue, the District receives other revenue, including property 

taxes, miscellaneous fees, operating revenue, capital facility charge revenue2, MMWD 

capacity purchase payments, recycled water rate revenue, grants, and interest revenue 

on investments. Estimates of interest income were calculated annually based upon 

estimated average fund balances and historic effective return of 0.30 percent on cash 

and invested funds, which is consistent with the District’s historical earnings. This 

financial plan assumes that property tax revenue will increase by 2 percent per year. 

Projections of all other non-rate revenues were based on FY 2022/23 budgeted revenues 

and were projected to remain flat. Connection fee revenue is not treated as restricted, 

but the revenues go to the Capital Improvement Fund and therefore are used to fund 

capital projects (which is consistent with the intended use of those fees). Budgeted 

revenues FY 2022/23 are depicted in Figure 2 below and listed in detail in Schedule 3. 

 

 

1 The rate revenue in Schedule 3 includes the proposed rate adjustment recommended by this Study, as 

described in Section 2.2 

2 It should be noted that California law (Government Code 66013 et. seq.) requires that Capital Facility 
Charge revenue be spent “solely for the purposes for which the charges were collected”.  

55



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District  

2023 Sewer Rate Study Financial Plan 
 

 

   10 

 

 

Figure 1: FY 2022/23 Budgeted Revenue Categories 

 

2.1.6 OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE EXPENSES AND EXISTING DEBT SERVICE 

For the purpose of this Study, the District’s operating and maintenance expenses 

include all ongoing collection, treatment, disposal, and administrative expenses, and 

debt service payments. The financial plans’ assumed annual operating and 

maintenance costs are based on the FY 2022/23 year-end estimates and are adjusted 

for future years based on inflation (see Section 2.1.7). The District currently has six 

outstanding revenue loans. The combined annual debt service is $4.2 million in FY 

2022/23 after accounting for the portion of the debt that is paid by MMWD. In 2026/27 

the annual debt service will fall to approximately $3.5 million. 

56



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District  

2023 Sewer Rate Study Financial Plan 
 

 

   11 

 

Debt service coverage is a measure of how easily an entity is able to afford its 

outstanding debt. Typically, loans (such as revenue bonds) require a minimum debt 

coverage ratio (DCR) of 1.2. This Study recommends maintaining a DCR of at least 1.5 to 

ensure access to favorable borrowing terms in the future. The District currently has an 

estimated DCR of 2.47 (see Schedule 3) and the financial plan forecasts the DCR 

remaining above 1.85 over the next 10 years.  

Budgeted expense categories for year-end estimates for FY 2022/23 are depicted in 

Figure 2. Budgeted and projected operating and debt expenses are listed in detail in 

Schedule 1. Capital program expenses are discussed in Section 2.1.8 and detailed in 

Schedule 2. 

 

Figure 2: FY 2022/23 Expense Categories (Estimated Year End) 

 

57



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District  

2023 Sewer Rate Study Financial Plan 
 

 

   12 

 

2.1.7 COST ESCALATION  

Annual cost escalation factors for the various types of expenses were developed based 

upon a review of historical inflation trends, published inflation forecasts, industry 

experience, and discussions with District staff. During the projection period, all of the 

District’s operating and capital expenses are projected to increase gradually at 3 

percent per year based on long-term historic average inflation rates.  

2.1.8 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM AND DEBT STRATEGY 

In the past three years (from FY 2019/20 to FY 2021/22) the has District averaged $21.2 

million in annual capital spending, most of which (82 percent) was debt financed. 

Between FY 2022/23 and FY 2030/31 the District has budgeted an average capital 

spending level of $17.9 million (after accounting for inflation). The budgeted capital 

spending is a product of the District’s master planning effort, evaluation of risk and 

priorities by management, as well as multiple meetings with Board committees. 

Due to the spike in capital spending proposed in the near term, this financial study 

proposes to debt finance approximately $65 million in capital spending over the next 7 

years. The projects to be debt financed are identified in Schedule 2. The financial model 

assumes that the interest rate will be 3.56 percent with a 1 percent cost of issuance and 

a repayment period of 20 years. 

This Study assumes that the annual capital spending during the “outyears” (the years 

beyond FY 2030/31, which have not been planned yet) will be equal to the average 

capital spending of the prior three years (about $16.6 million). 

Figure 3 shows the projected capital spending for the next 10 years. A detailed list of 

projected capital projects and associated costs is provided in Schedule 2.  

58



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District  

2023 Sewer Rate Study Financial Plan 
 

 

   13 

 

 

Figure 3: Historical and projected capital spending 

 

 PROPOSED RATE REVENUE INCREASES 

All of the above information was entered into a financial planning model to produce a 

financial plan that evaluated the sufficiency of current revenues to meet current and 

estimated future financial obligations and determined the level of rate revenue 

increases necessary in each year of the planning period.  

Based upon the previously discussed financial data, assumptions, and reserve targets, 

this Study proposes a 4-year schedule of rate revenue adjustments as shown at the 

bottom of Figure 4. The numbers provided in Schedule 3 (cash flow proforma) are 

summarized graphically in Figure 4.   

59



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District  

2023 Sewer Rate Study Financial Plan 
 

 

   14 

 

 

Figure 4: Financial Plan Estimates with Recommended Rate Increases 

 

Note that the actual rate increases in Year 1 (FY 2023/24) will be slightly different for 

various customer classes, due to the minor structural changes that are being proposed 

for the rates (see Section 3). The structural changes will shift cost responsibilities 

among the District’s customers and will result in some customers experiencing slightly 

higher rate increases and some customers experiencing slightly lower rate increases. 

This phenomenon is limited to Year 1, with the remaining rate revenue increases (Year 

2, 3 and 4) being the same for all customers. The cost-of-service findings, and resultant 

impact to the District’s customers, is explained in more detail in Section 3.  

 

FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 FY2031 FY2032 FY2033

Rate Revenue Increase: 11.0% 10.0% 10.0% 10.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%

Debt Coverage Ratio: 2.47 2.78 3.12 1.87 2.34 2.48 2.31 2.45 2.60 2.84 3.13

Net Debt Proceeds: $19.1M $16.1M $4.0M $10.5M $6.5M $6.5M

Proposed Forecasted

$0 

$10 

$20 

$30 

$40 

M
IL

LI
O

N
S

Projected Ending Fund Balance
Combined Reserve Targets
Minimum Reserves

$0

$5

$10

$15

$20

$25

$30

$35

$40

$45

FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 FY2031 FY2032 FY2033

To
ta

l R
e

ve
n

u
e 

/ E
xp

en
se

s 
($

M
)

Non-Rate Revenue Existing Rate Revenue Additional Rate Revenue

Operating Expenses Debt Cash Capital

E
x
p
e
n
s
e
s

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
s

60



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District   

2023 Sewer Rate Study Cost of Service and Rate Structure 

  

 

   15 

 

 COST-OF-SERVICE & RATE STRUCTURE 

This section of the report explains the COSA and design of Sewer Service Charges 

intended to meet the District’s financial obligations for FY 2023/24 and beyond. 

Proposed Sewer Service Charges are intended to meet the utility’s financial needs, 

satisfy legal requirements, and achieve other rate-setting objectives. The Sewer Service 

Charge analyses and related recommendations address each of the following: 

o Identification of Sewer Service Charge rate-setting objectives 

o Evaluation of customer account and wastewater production data 

o A COSA used to allocate costs to each customer and customer class in 

proportion with service demands 

o Design of the Sewer Service Charge rate structure to meet revenue needs, satisfy 

legal requirements, and achieve rate-setting objectives in a fair and reasonable 

manner 

 RATE SETTING OBJECTIVES 

There are two rate setting objectives that are primary and fundamental to guiding the 

rate-setting process. They include: (1) Sewer Service Charges must generate sufficient 

revenue to meet the utility’s service and financial obligations, and (2) Sewer Service 

Charges must be calculated consistent with the requirements of the California 

Constitution, Article XIII D (Proposition 218) and relevant case law. Other rate-setting 

objectives are secondary and can be addressed so long as the primary objectives are 

first achieved. Beyond the primary objectives, other rate-setting objectives identified to 

help guide the rate design process included the following: 

• Sewer Service Charges should be viewed as fair and equitable by the public 

• Sewer Service Charges should be simple, understandable, and easy to 

administer 

• Sewer Service Charges should strike an appropriate balance between fixed and 

usage-based charges, with consideration of: 

61



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District   

2023 Sewer Rate Study Cost of Service and Rate Structure 

  

 

   16 

 

o Revenue stability 

o Affordability for basic usage 

 CURRENT SEWER SERVICE CHARGES 

The District’s current Sewer Service Charges were last increased in July 2023 by about 

9 percent and are presented in Table 2. 

Residential Rates 

Residential customers are charged per dwelling unit, with multifamily dwelling units 

paying 90 percent of the rate of a single-family dwelling unit. This has been a long-

standing policy of the District based on past studies and is not proposed to be changed 

in this study. 

Non-Residential Rates 

The Sewer Service Charge for non-residential accounts is based on the assignment of 

sewer service units (SSU). One SSU is assigned for every 8 ccf (hundred cubic feet, or 

748 gallons) of average water usage during the summer and winter, as reported by 

Marin Municipal Water District (MMWD). Each account pays a minimum of one (1) SSU. 

As an exception, schools are assigned one SSU for each 100 ADA (average daily student 

attendance). 

The rate per SSU paid by non-residential accounts depends on the type of account and 

the associated strength of the sewage produced by the commercial activities. The 

strength is measured in terms of biochemical oxygen demand (BOD) and total 

suspended solids (TSS), both of which affect the cost of treating the sewage that the 

treatment plant. The proposed strength factors are discussed in more detail in Section 

3.4. 

62



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District   

2023 Sewer Rate Study Cost of Service and Rate Structure 

  

 

   17 

 

Table 2: Current Sewer Service Charge Schedule 

 

 

 PROPOSED RATE STRUCTURE MODIFICATIONS 

The District’s current rate structure and cost of service methodology is consistent with 

established and common industry practices. The only proposed modifications are to 

update the cost-of-service calculations and to simplify the list of non-residential 

customer types, as described in Section 3.4.  

 WASTEWATER COST-OF-SERVICE ANALYSIS 

There are three steps to determining Sewer Service Charges. These are: 

▪ Determine annual Sewer Service Charge revenue requirements 

▪ Analyze the cost of providing service and proportionately allocate costs to each 

customer class and customer 

▪ Design Sewer Service Charges to recover costs from each customer class and 

customer 

Residential (per dwelling unit per year)
Single Family $1,122

Multi-Family $1,010

Mobile Home $1,122

Non-Residential (per SSU per year) 1

Domestic Strength $1,122

Dry Industry $1,122

Schools $1,122

Mortuaries $2,244

Hotels w/ Restaurants $2,244

Mixed Uses $2,244

Restaurants/Café $2,693

Markets w/ Disposals $2,917

Bakeries $3,590

1 
Non-residential accounts are assigned one SSU for every 8 ccf of 

average water usage during the summer and winter, as reported by 

MMWD. As an exception, schools are assigned one SSU per 100 ADA.

63



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District   

2023 Sewer Rate Study Cost of Service and Rate Structure 

  

 

   18 

 

The District’s ten-year financial plan (see Section 2) was used to identify the wastewater 

rate revenue required to meet financial obligations for each fiscal year of the planning 

period. As presented in Section 2.2 of this report, no rate revenue increase is proposed 

for FY 2022/23, however an update to the cost-of-service analysis will result in a change 

to the sewer rates.  

Once the annual Sewer Service Charge revenue requirement has been determined, the 

next step in the rate-setting process is to evaluate the cost of providing service. The 

COSA is intended to allocate the costs of providing wastewater service to customers in 

proportion to the extent to which each customer contributes to the utility’s incursion of 

costs. The COSA evaluates the cost of providing wastewater services and allocates 

those costs to rate structure components to ensure the proposed rates are aligned with 

the costs to provide service.  

3.4.1 CUSTOMER FLOW AND LOADINGS 

To develop equitable Sewer Service Charges, the revenue requirement is allocated to 

various customer classifications according to the services provided and the demands 

placed on the wastewater system. This Study allocates costs based on estimated 

wastewater flows and sewage strength. Collection system costs are allocated entirely 

based on flow, whereas treatment costs are allocated on the basis of both flow and 

strength. 

Sewer Service Charges calculations are based on several factors related to how 

wastewater customers impact the cost to provide service. The rates are calculated 

based on the cost to provide service. Costs are allocated to each customer class 

(residential and non-residential) based on their respective estimated wastewater flows 

and loadings. “Loading” refers to the quantities of BOD and TSS that are delivered to 

the WWTP, both of which drive the cost to treat wastewater.  

The wastewater flows for the non-residential customers are estimated based on the 

average of summer and winter water usage as reported by MMWD, while single family 

and mobile home dwelling units are assumed to produce an average of 8 ccf per month. 

64



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District   

2023 Sewer Rate Study Cost of Service and Rate Structure 

  

 

   19 

 

Multifamily dwelling units are assumed to produced 7.2 ccf (90 percent of single-family 

homes) 

This study proposes to simplify the list of non-residential customer classes from the 

current list of 9 types (see Table 2) to three broader categories (Domestic Strength, 

Elevated Strength, and High Strength). This will simplify the administration of the 

billing system and make it easier for the District to classify its customers. It is 

recommended that the District retain the right to categorize non-residential customers 

at its sole discretion and judgement. Table 3 provides an example of how various 

commercial enterprises could be classified. 

 

Table 3: Customer Classifications and Example Customer Types 

  

 

Domestic Elevated High

BOD 175 mg/L 500 mg/L 900 mg/L

TSS 175 mg/L 500 mg/L 800 mg/L

Residential Hotel with food Restaurants

Mobile Home Commercial laundry Coffee shops

Retail/office Café

Dry industry Bakery

Schools/institutions Market with disposal

Bar (no food)

Car wash

Hotel without food

Laundromat

Auto repair

Approximate Strength

Example Customer Types

65



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District   

2023 Sewer Rate Study Cost of Service and Rate Structure 

  

 

   20 

 

Strength assumptions for elevated and high strength non-residential customers are 

based on previous wastewater rate analyses, SWRCB guidelines3 and industry 

standards (see Table 4).  

The flow and loading assumptions for all customer classes have been assessed and 

updated as needed by this Study. Table 4 summarizes customer account and water 

usage data obtained from the utility billing system for FY 2021/22. Table 4 also 

summarizes the assumed strength characteristics and the resulting estimated loading 

characteristics for each customer class.

 

3 Revenue Guidelines, Appendix G, March 1998, SWRCB 

66



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District   

2023 Sewer Rate Study Cost of Service and Rate Structure 

  

 

     21 

 

Table 4: Customer Account Data and Estimated Flows and Loadings 

 

Customer Class

No. of 

Accounts
 1

Estimated Annual 

Sewer Flow
 3

BOD 

Strength
 4

Annual BOD 

Loading

TSS 

Strength 
4

Annual TSS 

Loading
MG mg/l lbs mg/l lbs

Residential
Single Family 9,293 9,330    Accounts 667.3 175 973,941 175 973,941

Multi-Family 100 2,446    dwelling units 158.1 175 230,715 175 230,715

Mobile Home 2 715       dwelling units 51.3 175 74,935 175 74,935

Non-Residential

Domestic Strength 354 2,261    SSUs 2 162.4 175 236,961 175 236,961

Elevated Strength 31 302       SSUs 21.7 500 90,431 500 90,431

High Strength 33 156       SSUs 11.2 900 84,083 800 74,740

Totals 9,813 15,210 1,072.0 1,691,066 1,681,723

Notes:
1  Customer count based on District billing records.
2   Includes schools, which were assigned SSUs based on an ADA of 4,964 students.  One (1) SSU is assigned per 100 ADA per historical

         District practice.
3  

 Assumes 8 ccf of monthly wastewater production per single family and mobile home dwelling units and 90 percent of that amount 

        per multi-family dwelling unit.
4   Assigned for defined customer classes based on SWRCB guidelines.

    Number of Units    

67



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District  

2023 Sewer Rate Study  Cost of Service and Rate Structure 

 

 

     22 

 

3.4.2 ALLOCATION OF COSTS 

The sum of the rate revenue to be recovered in FY 2023/24 is $19.035 million (see 

Schedule 3). Table 5 shows how these revenue requirements have been split between 

three cost categories (54 percent to flow, 23 percent to BOD and 23 percent to TSS). The 

allocation of costs to these three categories is consistent with past District practices 

and is also consistent with the author’s experience with other studies and common 

industry practices. A more in-depth analysis of the exact proportion of costs associated 

with flow, BOD treatment and TSS handling is beyond the scope of this study. Once 

these costs are allocated, unit costs are determined by dividing the cost for each 

component by the number of system units identified in Table 4. 

 

Table 5: Determination of Unit Costs 

 

In Table 6 the unit costs from Table 5 are applied to the annual wastewater flows, BOD 

loadings and TSS loadings associated with residential and non-residential customers 

to arrive at the allocation of total costs to each customer class.  

 Cost Category 

Parameter 

Allocation 

Percentages
 1

 Annual Cost 

Allocated to 

Each Parameter 
Flow (MG) 54% $10,279,062 1,072.0              MG $9,588.87 /MG

BOD (lbs) 23% $4,378,119 1,691,066          lbs $2.59 /lbs

TSS (TSS) 23% $4,378,119 1,681,723          lbs $2.60 /lbs

$19,035,300

Notes:
1 Collection and treatment costs are allocated 54 percent to flow and 23 percent to each strength factor based on

 the District's historical practices, which are consistent with common industry standards.
2 

Quantities are derived from Table 4.

 Total Annual Rate Revenue 

Requirement for FY 2023/24: 

Total Annual 

Quantities
 2

 Unit Cost for Each 

Parameter 

68



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District  

2023 Sewer Rate Study  Cost of Service and Rate Structure 

 

 

     23 

 

Table 6: Wastewater Allocation of Annual Costs to Users 

 

Finally, in Table 7 the Sewer Service Charge rates are calculated by adding the strength-

adjusted flow rates, which are derived by dividing the usage-based costs from Table 6 

by the estimated wastewater flows for the respective customer classes, which yields an 

effective usage rate (per ccf).  

The total residential annual fixed rate is then calculated by multiplying the effective 

usage rate by the assumed volume of wastewater per dwelling unit per year (8 ccf per 

month for single family and mobile homes and 7.2 ccf per month for multifamily 

dwelling units). 

Similarly, the total non-residential annual rate per SSU is calculated by multiplying the 

effective usage rate by the assumed 8 ccf per month per SSU. It is the District’s policy 

that all customers pay a minimum of 1 SSU. 

 

No. of

 Flow               Unit 

Cost = 

 BOD                

Unit Cost = 

 TSS                   

Unit Cost = 

Accounts Customer Class $9,588.87 $2.59 $2.60

/MG /lb /lb

Residential

9,293             Single Family $6,398,800 $2,521,500 $2,535,500 $11,455,800

100                Multi-Family $1,515,800 $597,300 $600,600 $2,713,700

2                    Mobile Home $492,300 $194,000 $195,100 $881,400

Non-Residential

354                Domestic Strength $1,556,800 $613,500 $616,900 $2,787,200

31                  Elevated Strength $207,900 $234,100 $235,400 $677,400

33                  High Strength $107,400 $217,700 $194,600 $519,700

9,813            Totals: $10,279,000 $4,378,100 $4,378,100 $19,035,200

Notes:
1 Costs are derived by multiplying the units costs (see Table 5) by the estimated sewer flows, BOD loading and TSS loadings

 for each customer class (see Table 4).

 Allocation of 

Total Costs 

Usage-Based Costs 1

69



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District  

2023 Sewer Rate Study  Cost of Service and Rate Structure 

 

 

     24 

 

Table 7: Wastewater Rate Determination 

 

  

No. of Customer

 Estimated 

Annual Sewer 

 Total Effective 

Usage Rate Annual

 Accounts  Class Flow (ccf)  Flow  BOD  TSS  ($/ccf)  Revenue 

Residential  1

9,293 Single Family 892,128 $7.17 $2.83 $2.84 $12.841 $1,233 per DU $11,455,800

100 Multi-Family 211,334 $7.17 $2.83 $2.84 $12.841 $1,109 per DU $2,713,700

2 Mobile Home 68,640 $7.17 $2.83 $2.84 $12.841 $1,233 per DU $881,400

Non-Residential

354 Domestic Strength 217,056 $7.17 $2.83 $2.84 $12.841 $1,233 per SSU $2,787,200

31 Elevated Strength 28,992 $7.17 $8.08 $8.12 $23.368 $2,243 per SSU $677,500

33 High Strength 14,976 $7.17 $14.54 $12.99 $34.701 $3,331 per SSU $519,700

9,813 Totals 1,433,126 $19,035,300

Notes:
1 The residential annual fixed rate is calculated by multiplying the effective usage rate by the assumed volume of wastewater 

      per dwelling per year (8 ccf per month).

 per Unit 

 Strength Adjusted Flow 

Rates

($/ccf) 

 Annual Fixed 

Rate 

70



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District  

2023 Sewer Rate Study  Cost of Service and Rate Structure 

 

 

     25 

 

3.4.4 PROPOSED RATES 

 

Table 8 summarizes the proposed wastewater rate schedule for the next four years 

starting on July 1, 2023. The proposed wastewater rates will increase annually in 

accordance with the percent increases presented in Table 8 (as explained in Section 2.2) 

to continue to meet service and financial obligations.  

 

Table 8: 4-Year Schedule of Proposed Sewer Service Charges 

 

The proposed wastewater rates reflect the cost of providing wastewater service to 

customers. In particular, the proposed wastewater rates reflect a proportionate 

distribution of costs to all customers and customer classes, and better reflect the cost 

of providing service. 

July 1, 2023 July 1, 2024 July 1, 2025 July 1, 2026

District's rate revenue increase 1: 11% 10% 10% 10%

Residential  (per dwelling unit per year)
Single Family $1,233 $1,356 $1,492 $1,641

Multi-Family $1,109 $1,220 $1,342 $1,476

Mobile Home $1,233 $1,356 $1,492 $1,641

Non-Residential (per SSU per year)  2

Domestic Strength $1,233 $1,356 $1,492 $1,641

Elevated Strength $2,243 $2,467 $2,714 $2,985

High Strength $3,331 $3,664 $4,030 $4,433

Notes:
1 

Actual rate increases may vary by customer class during Year 1 due to updates to cost allocation

Effective Date

2 
Non-residential accounts are assigned one (1) SSU for every 8 ccf of average water usage during the summer 

and winter, as reported by Marin Municipal Water District.  Each account shall pay a minimum of one (1) SSU.

71



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District  

2023 Sewer Rate Study  Conclusion 

 

 

     26 

 

 CONCLUSION 

This Study used methodologies that are aligned with industry standard practices for 

rate setting as promulgated by WEF, AWWA and all applicable laws, including 

California’s Proposition 218. The proposed annual adjustments to the rates will allow 

the District to continue to provide reliable sewer service to customers while meeting 

the state’s mandates.  

The Sewer Service Charges will need to be adopted in accordance with Proposition 218, 

which will require a detailed notice describing the proposed rates to be mailed to each 

affected property owner or customer at least 45 days prior to conducting a public 

hearing to adopt the rates.  

 

 

 

72



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District  

2023 Sewer Rate Study Schedules  
1 

 

    
 

 

 

SCHEDULES 

_____________________________________________________ 

 

Schedule 1 - Budgeted and Projected Cash Outflows  

Schedule 2 – 5-Year Capital Spending Plan 

Schedule 3 - Cash Flow Pro Formas  

73



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District  

2023 Sewer Rate Study Schedules  
1 

 

   S1-1 
 

 

Budgeted and Projected Cash Outflows Schedule 1

FY2023/24 FY2024/25 FY2025/26 FY2026/27 FY2027/28 FY2028/29 FY2029/30 FY2030/31 FY2031/32 FY2033/34

EMPLOYEE WAGES

1 Regular Staff Salaries  (1901) $3,709,000 $3,821,000 $3,935,000 $4,053,000 $4,175,000 $4,300,000 $4,429,000 $4,562,000 $4,699,000 $4,840,000 

2 Extra Hire  (1005) $74,000 $76,000 $78,000 $80,000 $83,000 $85,000 $88,000 $91,000 $93,000 $96,000 

3 Over Time  (1011) $91,000 $94,000 $97,000 $99,000 $102,000 $106,000 $109,000 $112,000 $115,000 $119,000 

4 Stand By $81,000 $84,000 $86,000 $89,000 $91,000 $94,000 $97,000 $100,000 $103,000 $106,000 

5 Emergency Response Stipend $58,000 $59,000 $61,000 $63,000 $65,000 $67,000 $69,000 $71,000 $73,000 $75,000 

6 Certification Stipend $135,000 $139,000 $143,000 $147,000 $151,000 $156,000 $161,000 $166,000 $171,000 $176,000 

7 Longevity Pay $104,000 $107,000 $110,000 $113,000 $117,000 $120,000 $124,000 $127,000 $131,000 $135,000 

8 Directors Fees $76,000 $78,000 $80,000 $83,000 $85,000 $88,000 $90,000 $93,000 $96,000 $99,000 

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

9 Directors Benefits $117,000 $120,000 $124,000 $127,000 $131,000 $135,000 $139,000 $143,000 $148,000 $152,000 

10 Payroll Taxes (SSI) $249,000 $256,000 $264,000 $272,000 $280,000 $288,000 $297,000 $306,000 $315,000 $325,000 

11 Group Life Insurance $10,000 $10,000 $11,000 $11,000 $11,000 $12,000 $12,000 $12,000 $13,000 $13,000 

12 PERS $744,000 $766,000 $789,000 $813,000 $837,000 $862,000 $888,000 $915,000 $942,000 $971,000 

13 Health Insurance $716,000 $738,000 $760,000 $783,000 $806,000 $831,000 $856,000 $881,000 $908,000 $935,000 

14 Dental Insurance $40,000 $41,000 $43,000 $44,000 $45,000 $47,000 $48,000 $50,000 $51,000 $53,000 

15 Vision Insurance $4,000 $4,000 $4,000 $4,000 $4,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 

16 Long Term Disability $29,000 $30,000 $31,000 $32,000 $33,000 $34,000 $35,000 $36,000 $37,000 $38,000 

17 Auto Allowance $9,000 $9,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $11,000 $11,000 $11,000 $12,000 $12,000 

INSURANCE

18 Workers' Comp Insurance $143,000 $147,000 $152,000 $156,000 $161,000 $166,000 $171,000 $176,000 $181,000 $187,000 

19 Pooled Liability & Property Insurance $134,000 $138,000 $142,000 $146,000 $151,000 $155,000 $160,000 $165,000 $170,000 $175,000 

20 Fidelity Bond $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 

REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE

21 Vehicle Parts & Maintenance $27,000 $28,000 $28,000 $29,000 $30,000 $31,000 $32,000 $33,000 $34,000 $35,000 

22 Building maintenance $56,000 $58,000 $60,000 $61,000 $63,000 $65,000 $67,000 $69,000 $71,000 $73,000 

23 Grounds Maintenance $105,000 $109,000 $112,000 $115,000 $119,000 $122,000 $126,000 $130,000 $134,000 $138,000 

24 Reclamation Pasture and Pond Maint. $184,000 $190,000 $196,000 $201,000 $207,000 $214,000 $220,000 $227,000 $233,000 $240,000 

25 Power Generation Maint & Repair $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 

26 Equipment Maintenance $54,000 $56,000 $58,000 $59,000 $61,000 $63,000 $65,000 $67,000 $69,000 $71,000 

27 Equipment Repair $274,000 $282,000 $290,000 $299,000 $308,000 $317,000 $327,000 $336,000 $347,000 $357,000 

28 Capital Repairs/Replacements $213,000 $220,000 $226,000 $233,000 $240,000 $247,000 $255,000 $262,000 $270,000 $278,000 

(1 of 3) 

74



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District  

2023 Sewer Rate Study Schedules  
1 

 

   S1-2 
 

 

 

Budgeted and Projected Cash Outflows Schedule 1

FY2023/24 FY2024/25 FY2025/26 FY2026/27 FY2027/28 FY2028/29 FY2029/30 FY2030/31 FY2031/32 FY2033/34

SUPPLIES & SMALL TOOLS

29 Hypochlorite $266,000 $274,000 $283,000 $291,000 $300,000 $309,000 $318,000 $328,000 $337,000 $348,000 

30 Bisulfite $44,000 $46,000 $47,000 $49,000 $50,000 $52,000 $53,000 $55,000 $56,000 $58,000 

31 Miscellaneous Chemicals $45,000 $46,000 $48,000 $49,000 $51,000 $52,000 $54,000 $56,000 $57,000 $59,000 

32 General Operating & Lab Supplies $51,000 $53,000 $54,000 $56,000 $58,000 $59,000 $61,000 $63,000 $65,000 $67,000 

33 Fuel, Oil, and CNG for Vehicles $51,000 $53,000 $54,000 $56,000 $57,000 $59,000 $61,000 $63,000 $65,000 $67,000 

34 Safety Equipment & Supplies $64,000 $66,000 $68,000 $70,000 $72,000 $75,000 $77,000 $79,000 $81,000 $84,000 

35 Safety Services $58,000 $60,000 $62,000 $64,000 $66,000 $68,000 $70,000 $72,000 $74,000 $76,000 

36 Small Tools $13,000 $13,000 $14,000 $14,000 $15,000 $15,000 $16,000 $16,000 $16,000 $17,000 

CONTRACTED SERVICES

37 Lab Contract Services $39,000 $41,000 $42,000 $43,000 $44,000 $46,000 $47,000 $48,000 $50,000 $51,000 

38 Pollution Prevention Program $15,000 $16,000 $16,000 $17,000 $17,000 $18,000 $18,000 $19,000 $19,000 $20,000 

39 Outside Services $140,000 $144,000 $148,000 $153,000 $157,000 $162,000 $167,000 $172,000 $177,000 $182,000 

40 Janitorial $23,000 $24,000 $25,000 $26,000 $26,000 $27,000 $28,000 $29,000 $30,000 $31,000 

41 Uniform Service $15,000 $15,000 $16,000 $16,000 $16,000 $17,000 $18,000 $18,000 $19,000 $19,000 

42 Sludge Disposal Inject $106,000 $109,000 $112,000 $116,000 $119,000 $123,000 $126,000 $130,000 $134,000 $138,000 

43 SCADA Engineering Support $79,000 $82,000 $84,000 $87,000 $89,000 $92,000 $95,000 $98,000 $101,000 $104,000 

44 Regulatory Consultant $180,000 $186,000 $191,000 $197,000 $203,000 $209,000 $215,000 $222,000 $228,000 $235,000 

45 Engin. Pass-thru & Gen. Small Projects $52,000 $54,000 $55,000 $57,000 $59,000 $60,000 $62,000 $64,000 $66,000 $68,000 

46 Feasibility Studies $68,000 $70,000 $72,000 $74,000 $77,000 $79,000 $81,000 $84,000 $86,000 $89,000 

47 Consultants - Other $201,000 $207,000 $214,000 $220,000 $227,000 $233,000 $240,000 $248,000 $255,000 $263,000 

48 Legal $111,000 $114,000 $117,000 $121,000 $124,000 $128,000 $132,000 $136,000 $140,000 $144,000 

49 Audit $23,000 $24,000 $25,000 $26,000 $26,000 $27,000 $28,000 $29,000 $30,000 $31,000 

50 Financial Services $2,000 $3,000 $3,000 $3,000 $3,000 $3,000 $3,000 $3,000 $3,000 $3,000 

51 Private Lateral Rehab Assist. Program $52,000 $53,000 $55,000 $56,000 $58,000 $60,000 $61,000 $63,000 $65,000 $67,000 

52 Low-Income Rate Assistance Program $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 

(2 of 3) 

75



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District  

2023 Sewer Rate Study Schedules  
1 

 

   S1-3 
 

 

Budgeted and Projected Cash Outflows Schedule 1

FY2023/24 FY2024/25 FY2025/26 FY2026/27 FY2027/28 FY2028/29 FY2029/30 FY2030/31 FY2031/32 FY2033/34

UTILITIES

53 Internet $9,000 $9,000 $9,000 $9,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $11,000 $11,000 $11,000 

54 Telephone $39,000 $40,000 $41,000 $42,000 $44,000 $45,000 $46,000 $48,000 $49,000 $51,000 

55 Utility Power $731,000 $753,000 $776,000 $799,000 $823,000 $847,000 $873,000 $899,000 $926,000 $954,000 

56 Water $34,000 $35,000 $36,000 $37,000 $38,000 $39,000 $40,000 $42,000 $43,000 $44,000 

57 GENERAL & ADMINSTRATIVE

58 Payroll Processing $12,000 $13,000 $13,000 $14,000 $14,000 $14,000 $15,000 $15,000 $16,000 $16,000 

59 Conferences $44,000 $45,000 $47,000 $48,000 $50,000 $51,000 $53,000 $54,000 $56,000 $57,000 

60 Mileage and Travel $3,000 $3,000 $3,000 $3,000 $3,000 $3,000 $3,000 $3,000 $3,000 $3,000 

61 Office Supplies $46,000 $47,000 $49,000 $50,000 $52,000 $53,000 $55,000 $56,000 $58,000 $60,000 

62 Meeting Supplies $4,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $6,000 $6,000 $6,000 

63 Computer Services and Software $100,000 $103,000 $106,000 $109,000 $113,000 $116,000 $120,000 $123,000 $127,000 $131,000 

64 Bank Charges $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 

65 User Charge Collection Fee $34,000 $35,000 $36,000 $37,000 $38,000 $40,000 $41,000 $42,000 $43,000 $45,000 

66 Publication and Legal  Ads $12,000 $12,000 $12,000 $13,000 $13,000 $14,000 $14,000 $14,000 $15,000 $15,000 

67 Public Education and Outreach (1) $73,000 $75,000 $77,000 $79,000 $82,000 $84,000 $87,000 $89,000 $92,000 $95,000 

68 Taxes, Other $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $3,000 

69 Memberships $68,000 $70,000 $72,000 $74,000 $76,000 $79,000 $81,000 $83,000 $86,000 $88,000 

70 Permits $86,000 $89,000 $91,000 $94,000 $97,000 $100,000 $103,000 $106,000 $109,000 $112,000 

71 Fines $69,000 $71,000 $73,000 $75,000 $77,000 $80,000 $82,000 $85,000 $87,000 $90,000 

72 Rents and Leases $147,000 $151,000 $156,000 $160,000 $165,000 $170,000 $175,000 $180,000 $186,000 $191,000 

73 Employee Recognition (1) $8,000 $8,000 $8,000 $9,000 $9,000 $9,000 $9,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 

74 Employee Training and Education $11,000 $12,000 $12,000 $12,000 $13,000 $13,000 $13,000 $14,000 $14,000 $15,000 

75 Miscellaneous expense $67,000 $69,000 $72,000 $74,000 $76,000 $78,000 $81,000 $83,000 $85,000 $88,000 

76 Existing Debt Service $4,221,000 $4,232,000 $4,234,000 $3,504,000 $3,506,000 $3,503,000 $3,506,000 $3,503,000 $3,255,000 $2,993,000 

77 Total Operating Expenses $14,959,000 $15,297,000 $15,630,000 $15,237,000 $15,591,000 $15,954,000 $16,331,000 $16,714,000 $16,859,000 $17,008,000

(3 of 3) 

76



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District  

2023 Sewer Rate Study Schedules  
1 

 

   S2-1 
 

 

Capital Spending Plan (1 of 2)

FY2023/24 FY2024/25 FY2025/26 FY2026/27 FY2027/28 FY2028/29 FY2029/30 FY2030/31

PLANNING, SOFTWARE, & OTHER ENGINEERING

1 Integrated Wastewater Master Plan Phase 2 and Phase 3 $100,000 

2 Biosolids Program Monitoring Research Support& Flood Protection $340,000 $350,200 

3 Asset Management CMMS Centricity (Plant, PS, Rec Phases 2-4) $500,000 $250,000 $116,600 

4 Sea Level Rise Mitigation Program Planning $100,000 

5 Hydraulic Modeling of Collection System $75,000 $77,250 $79,500 $81,750 $84,000 $86,250 

6 Emergency Bypass Pumping Analysis & Response Plan $35,000 $36,050 

7 On-Call Engineering Contract $200,000 $206,000 $212,180 $218,545 $225,102 $231,855 $238,810 $245,975 

8 On-Call Inspection $60,000 $61,800 $63,600 $65,400 $67,200 $69,000 $71,070 $73,202 

9 On-Call Construction Contract (2021-2023) $250,000 $257,500 $265,225 $273,182 $281,377 $289,818 $298,513 $307,468 

10 Standard Specifications and Drawings Update Project $35,000 

11 Accounting Caselle ERP Integration $20,000 

12 Website Improvement Design and Implementation $25,000 

13 Arc Flash Study $10,000 

14 Lab Software LIMS for TNI Standards Reporting $45,000 

FLEET & EQUIPMENT AND OTHER EQUIPMENT

15 Fleet Replacement Vehicles $100,000 $109,000 $115,000 

16 Utility Collection System Replacement Trucks $560,000 

17 Equipment for Collection System Reponse (trailers, hoses) $10,000 $10,300 $10,609 $10,927 $11,255 $11,593 $11,593 $11,593 

18 Standby/Towable Generators for Minor Pump Stations $281,125 

19 2023 Vac-Con Flusher Truck - clean diesel $332,476 

COLLECTION SYSTEM

20 John Duckett PS & HWY 101 Terra Linda Trunk Sewer Design $1,520,368 

21 Electrical System VFD Upgrade & SCADA Integration for (7) PS $500,000 $1,030,000 $1,060,000 

22 Automatic Transfer Switches for Pump Stations $225,000 

23 Pump Station Site Lighting, Safety, & Security Improvements $206,877 

24 Annual Site Improvement - Paving, Fencing, Lighting $35,000 $36,050 $37,100 $38,150 $39,200 $40,250 $40,250 $40,250 

25 Captains Cove Pump Station Upgrades (2) $25,000 

26 Marin Lagoon Pump Stations Upgrades (2) $20,000 $60,000 $61,800 $63,654 $65,564 $67,531 $69,557 $71,644 

27 Smith Ranch Pump Station Generator Diesel Conversion $109,000 $560,000 

28 Rafael Meadows Pump Station - Fencing $150,000 

29 Force Main Assessment, Install Ports, Cleaning, Location Marking, & Mapping $380,000 $250,000 $257,500 $265,225 $273,182 

30 Smith Ranch Rd Combined Force Main $257,500 $2,650,000 

31 Lower Marinwood TS Capacity Upgrade & Relocation $257,500 $1,590,000 

32 Sewer Main Collection System Rehabilitation Program $2,000,000 $1,030,000 $1,060,000 $1,090,000 $1,122,700 $1,156,381 $1,191,072 $1,226,804 

33 Sewer I&I Reduction Program (annual per SSMP) $500,000 $515,000 $530,000 $545,000 $560,000 $575,000 $592,250 $610,018 

34 Manhole Frame & Cover Adjustment Allowance $50,000 $51,500 $53,000 $54,500 $56,000 $57,500 $59,225 $61,002 

35 Upper Terra Linda TS & Siphon Improvements $500,000 $4,000,000 

36 Northgate Industrial Park 8" Hwy 101 Undercrossing $180,250 $1,855,000 

37 Mulligan PS & 18" TS  and Hwy 101 Undercrossing Capacity Upgrades $981,000 $6,720,000 

38 IWMP Pump Station & Force Main Projects $1,700,000 $5,900,000 $4,100,000 

39 Sea Level Rise Mitigation Construction $1,090,000 $1,120,000 

77



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District  

2023 Sewer Rate Study Schedules  
1 

 

   S2-2 
 

 

 

Capital Spending Plan (2 of 2)
RECLAMATION

40 Reclamation Pump Station Improvements  - MCC, Pumps, Wet Well $150,000 $257,500 

41 St. Vincent's Pump Station Improvements $100,000 $257,500 $530,000 

42 Solar PV System Replacement $250,000 

43 Center Pivot No. 1 Replacement $25,500 

44 Sludge Lagoon Liner Replacement/Repair $75,000 $77,250 $79,500 

45 Storage Pond 1 Transfer Pipe Repair $100,000 

46 Marsh Pond Vegetation Removal & Long-Term Vegetation Management Plan $61,800 $67,200 

47 Miller Creek Vegetation Maintenance Repair, Maintenance $75,000 

48 Levee Road Restoration $63,600 $67,200 

49 Reclamation Levee Capping - SLR mitigation $567,500 

50 Biosolids Program Implementation & Construction $2,300,000 $2,300,000 $2,300,000 

51 Sea Level Rise Mitigation Construction $1,090,000 $1,120,000 

TREATMENT PLANT

52 Laboratory Building Design (Lab / Education Center / Boardroom) $750,000 

53 Operations & Admin Building Design $1,200,000 

54 Corporation Yard Design $500,000 

55 Primary Clarifier #1 Repair $1,000,000 

56 Primary Clarifier Sludge Pump Addition $150,000 

57 Treatment Plant Upgrade Phase 2 Design -  Primary Clarifiers $400,000 

58 Treatment Plant Upgrade Phase 3 Design - Flow Eq, UV, Headworks $500,000 

59 Digester Room MCC #2 Upgrade Design & Construction $1,400,000 

60 TWAS Enclosure / Sludge Basin and Reception Pad $1,400,000 

61 Fueling Station Project (diesel & gas) $300,000 

62 Plant Lighting Improvements and Other Electrical Ethan. $110,000 

63 Annual Site Improvement - Paving, Fencing, Lighting $60,000 $61,800 $63,600 $65,400 $67,200 $69,000 

64 Boiler Relocation Project $515,000 

65 Vac Truck Recycled Water Filling Station & Wash Rack $63,600 

66 Digester Replacement and Solids Improvement Design $1,300,000 

67 Sea Level Rise Mitigation Construction $1,090,000 $1,120,000 

FINANCED AND BOND PROJECTS

68 John Duckett PS & HWY 101 Terra Linda TS Crossing Debt $7,612,500 $7,612,500 

69 Laboratory Building Construction - (Lab / Education Center / Boardroom) (Financed) Debt $4,000,000 $3,500,000 

70 Corporation Yard Construction Debt $5,000,000 

71 Operations & Admin Building (Cash) $6,000,000 

72 Operations & Admin Building (Financed) Debt $6,500,000 

73 Treatment Plant Upgrade Phase 2 Construction -  Primary Clarifiers Debt $7,500,000 

74 Treatment Plant Upgrade Phase 3 Construction - Flow Eq, UV, Headworks Debt $3,975,000 $3,975,000 

75 Digester Replacement and Solids Improvement Construction Debt $6,540,000 $6,540,000 

76 Total Capital Spending $14,276,346 $24,792,500 $26,341,314 $18,989,583 $23,997,180 $14,491,678 $20,839,840 $12,937,956

78



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District  

2023 Sewer Rate Study Schedules  
1 

 

   S3-1 
 

Cash Flow Proforma Schedule 3

Estimate Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast
FY 2023 FY2024 FY2025 FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 FY2031 FY2032 FY2033

1 Rate Revenue Increase: 11.0% 10.0% 10.0% 10.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%

Rate Revenue

2 Service Charge Revenue $17,102,300 $17,102,300 $19,035,000 $20,997,000 $23,161,000 $25,547,000 $26,902,000 $28,329,000 $29,831,000 $31,414,000 $33,080,000

3 Change due to growth & use $52,000 $58,000 $64,000 $70,000 $78,000 $82,000 $86,000 $91,000 $95,000 $100,000

4 Increase due to rate adjustments $1,881,000 $1,904,000 $2,100,000 $2,316,000 $1,277,000 $1,345,000 $1,416,000 $1,492,000 $1,571,000 $1,792,000

Non-Rate Revenues

5 Tax Revenue $1,778,000 $1,802,000 $1,827,000 $1,852,000 $1,878,000 $1,904,000 $1,931,000 $1,958,000 $1,986,000 $2,015,000 $2,044,000

6 Miscellaneous Fees $194,000 $194,000 $194,000 $194,000 $194,000 $194,000 $194,000 $194,000 $194,000 $194,000 $194,000

7 Interest Earnings $303,000 $104,980 $84,700 $94,582 $84,941 $69,284 $61,142 $69,983 $63,208 $64,183 $58,858

8 Operating Revenue $291,000 $291,000 $291,000 $291,000 $291,000 $291,000 $291,000 $291,000 $291,000 $291,000 $291,000

9 Grants $25,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

10 Capital Facility Charges $379,000 $354,000 $354,000 $354,000 $354,000 $354,000 $354,000 $354,000 $354,000 $354,000 $354,000

11 MMWD Capacity Purchase $631,000 $631,000 $631,000 $631,000 $631,000 $631,000 $631,000 $631,000 $631,000 $631,000 $631,000

12 Recycled Water Revenue $81,000 $81,000 $81,000 $81,000 $81,000 $81,000 $81,000 $81,000 $81,000 $81,000 $81,000

13 Total Revenue $20,784,300 $22,493,280 $24,459,700 $26,658,582 $29,060,941 $30,426,284 $31,872,142 $33,409,983 $35,014,208 $36,710,183 $38,625,858

O&M Costs
14 Wages $4,201,000 $4,327,000 $4,656,000 $4,796,000 $4,940,000 $5,088,000 $5,241,000 $5,398,000 $5,560,000 $5,727,000 $5,899,000

15 Benefits $1,863,000 $1,919,000 $1,976,000 $2,036,000 $2,097,000 $2,160,000 $2,224,000 $2,291,000 $2,360,000 $2,431,000 $2,503,000

16 Insurance $270,000 $278,000 $286,000 $295,000 $304,000 $313,000 $322,000 $332,000 $342,000 $352,000 $363,000

17 Repairs and Maintenance $888,000 $915,000 $942,000 $971,000 $1,000,000 $1,030,000 $1,061,000 $1,093,000 $1,125,000 $1,159,000 $1,194,000

18 Supplies and Small Tools $577,000 $594,000 $612,000 $630,000 $649,000 $668,000 $688,000 $709,000 $730,000 $752,000 $775,000

19 Contracted Services $1,076,000 $1,108,000 $1,141,000 $1,176,000 $1,211,000 $1,247,000 $1,285,000 $1,323,000 $1,363,000 $1,404,000 $1,446,000

20 Utilities $788,000 $812,000 $837,000 $862,000 $887,000 $914,000 $942,000 $970,000 $999,000 $1,029,000 $1,060,000

21 General and Administrative $765,000 $788,000 $811,000 $836,000 $861,000 $886,000 $913,000 $940,000 $969,000 $998,000 $1,028,000

22 Total Operating Expenses $10,428,000 $10,741,000 $11,261,000 $11,602,000 $11,949,000 $12,306,000 $12,676,000 $13,056,000 $13,448,000 $13,852,000 $14,268,000

Capital Costs
23 Total Capital Spending $4,153,000 $14,276,000 $24,793,000 $26,341,000 $18,990,000 $23,997,000 $14,492,000 $20,840,000 $12,938,000 $16,573,000 $17,070,000

24 Bond Proceeds $0 $0 $19,113,000 $16,113,000 $3,975,000 $10,475,000 $6,540,000 $6,540,000 $0 $0 $0

25 Existing Debt Service $4,201,000 $4,221,000 $4,232,000 $4,234,000 $3,504,000 $3,506,000 $3,503,000 $3,506,000 $3,503,000 $3,255,000 $2,993,000

26 Cash Funded Capital Projects $4,153,000 $14,276,000 $5,680,000 $10,229,000 $15,015,000 $13,522,000 $7,952,000 $14,300,000 $12,938,000 $16,573,000 $17,070,000

27 New Debt Service $0 $0 $0 $3,800,000 $3,800,000 $3,800,000 $4,801,000 $4,801,000 $4,801,000 $4,801,000 $4,801,000

28 Total Capital Expenses $8,354,000 $18,497,000 $9,912,000 $18,263,000 $22,319,000 $20,828,000 $16,256,000 $22,607,000 $21,242,000 $24,629,000 $24,864,000

Transfers In / (Out)

29 Capital Reserve $1,048,500

30 Vehicle & Equipment Reserve $158,300

31 Capital Facility Reserve ($379,000) ($354,000) ($354,000) ($354,000) ($354,000) ($354,000) ($354,000) ($354,000) ($354,000) ($354,000) ($354,000)

32 Total Revenue Requirement $18,782,000 $28,031,200 $21,173,000 $29,865,000 $34,268,000 $33,134,000 $28,932,000 $35,663,000 $34,690,000 $38,481,000 $39,132,000

 (1 of 2) 

79



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District  

2023 Sewer Rate Study Schedules  

 

3 

    S3-2 
 

 
 

 

 

Cash Flow Proforma Schedule 3

Estimate Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast
FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 FY2031 FY2032 FY2033

33 Beginning Year Balance $27,909,000 $29,532,300 $23,640,380 $26,573,080 $23,012,662 $17,451,603 $14,389,887 $16,976,029 $14,369,012 $14,339,220 $12,214,403

34 Surplus/(Shortfall) $1,623,300 ($5,891,920) $2,932,700 ($3,560,418) ($5,561,059) ($3,061,716) $2,586,142 ($2,607,017) ($29,792) ($2,124,817) ($860,142)

35 End of Year Balance $29,532,300 $23,640,380 $26,573,080 $23,012,662 $17,451,603 $14,389,887 $16,976,029 $14,369,012 $14,339,220 $12,214,403 $11,354,261

36 Reserve Target $8,533,583 $8,727,833 $9,037,583 $11,454,333 $11,230,917 $11,440,333 $12,238,333 $12,461,750 $12,688,667 $12,779,667 $12,869,500

37 Available Cash $20,998,717 $14,912,547 $17,535,496 $11,558,329 $6,220,686 $2,949,553 $4,737,696 $1,907,262 $1,650,553 ($565,264) ($1,515,239)

Other Reserves (beginning balance)

38 Emergency Repair Reserve $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000

39 Capital Reserve $2,951,500 $1,903,000 $1,903,000 $1,903,000 $1,903,000 $1,903,000 $1,903,000 $1,903,000 $1,903,000 $1,903,000 $1,903,000

40 Vehicle & Equipment Reserve $841,700 $683,400 $683,400 $683,400 $683,400 $683,400 $683,400 $683,400 $683,400 $683,400 $683,400

41 Capital Facility Reserve $587,700 $941,700 $1,295,700 $1,649,700 $2,003,700 $2,357,700 $2,711,700 $3,065,700 $3,419,700 $3,773,700 $4,127,700

Debt Coverage Calculations
42 Debt Coverage Ratio 2.47 2.78 3.12 1.87 2.34 2.48 2.31 2.45 2.60 2.84 3.13

(2 of 2) 

80



 

 

 Page 1 of 1 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

To: Board of Directors 

From: Curtis Paxton, General Manager 
   (415) 526-1511; cpaxton@lgvsd.org 

Mtg. Date: June 1, 2023 

Re: Approval of 2023-2027 Strategic Plan 

Item Type:   Consent  X  Action        Information           

Standard Contract:    Yes     No     (See attached) Not Applicable             . 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approve the final 2023-2027 Strategic Plan (attached) prepared by Brent Ives of BHI 
Management Consulting. 

BACKGROUND  
The Board authorized a contract with Brent Ives of BHI Management Consulting in April 2022 to 
facilitate Strategic Plan workshops with the Board of Directors and produce an update to the 
current Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District (LGVSD) Strategic Plan.  Brent Ives interviewed 
individual Board members to gain insight on ideas and desires for the District in the next 5 years 
and what would be necessary to carry out these desires.   
 
Board Workshops to review the draft Strategic Plan documents were conducted in June 2022, 
October 2022 and February 2023.  LGVSD staff provided input into the various drafts discussed 
with the Board and did a recent review of the Final Draft that incorporated the input received from 
the Board.  The Final Strategic Plan (attached) is ready for approval by the Board.  
 
The expectation is that the Strategic Plan will be reviewed on an annual basis, with the next 
review being performed in Spring 2024. 
 
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
On April 7, 2021, the Board approved a contract with Brent Ives (BHI Management Consulting) to 
update the LGVSD Strategic Plan.  Workshops with the Board were conducted on June 6, 2022, 
October 6, 2022, and February 2, 2023, to receive input from the Board on the Strategic Plan. 
 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
N/A 
 

Item Number______2J________ 

GM Review       CP__________ 

 

81



LGVSD
LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT

STRATEGIC 
PLAN
2023-2027

82



CO
NT

EN
TS

Core Values
In carrying out our commitment, our core 
values are:
• Protect public health and the environment
• Provide high quality customer service
• Use public funds responsibly
• Maintain a safe and challenging workplace

Our Board
Megan Clark, President
Craig K. Murray, Vice-President
Crystal J. Yezman, Director
Ronald Ford, Director
Gary E. Robards, Director

Our Mission
The Mission of the Las Gallinas Valley San-
itary District is to protect public heath and 
our environment, providing effective waste-
water collection, treatment, and resource 
recovery.

Our Vision
In the next 5 years, we will strengthen the 
District management of all assets, use practi-
cal operational methods, employ healthy or-
ganizational practices and properly analyze 
infrastructure investments and resource 
utilization.

Recognizing that sanitation and wastewater 
treatment is vital to protecting the public 
health, in the course of normal operations 
the District will:
• Manage our treatment and collection 
systems in a planned and sustainable way to 
reduce impact on natural resources;
• Proactively manage risks created by cli-
mate change, sea level rise, fire, earthquakes 
and flooding when developing and design-
ing projects (‘through the lens’);
• Create and maintain a more suitable work-
place to promote a sustainable, motivated, 
long-term and cohesive workforce;
• Provide high-quality, transparent, and 
accesible customer service;
• Strive for zero spills;
• Meet or exceed regulatory requirements 
for treatment (effluent, emissions and biosol-
ids);
• Strive toward beneficial recycling of waste-
water, biosolids and other resources using 
safe and effective processes and systems to 
achieve our zero-waste vision;
• Collaborate with neighboring agencies to 
achieve efficiencies for the public;
• Cooperate with stakeholders to leverage 
opportunities for protecting the Bay and 
regional water resources;
• Increase public education, acceptance and 
understanding of what we do;
• Promote the District through industry 
participation and seek industry competitive 
awards;
• Responsibly manage the refuse franchise;
• Use public funds responsibly;
• Aggressively seek grant and financial op-
portunities for support of District priorities

Message From the General Manager 05

Process and Organization of LGVSD Strategic Plan 05

1.0 Integrated Wastewater Master Plan (IWMP) 07

2.0 Bio-Solids 08

3.0 Workplace 09
 

4.0 Workforce 10

5.0 Administrative and Executive Focus Areas 11

Vision to Action Table 12

Attachment - Heat Map 14

83



The Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary 
District (LGVSD) proudly presents 
our updated Strategic Plan cov-
ering Fiscal Years 2023 through 
2027.  This Strategic Plan is the 

result of collaborative work by the Board 
of Directors and LGVSD staff in casting a 
vision for the next five years as well as the 
specific implementation actions needed to 
fulfill that vision.

Curtis Paxton
General Manager

Our goals can only 
be reached through 
a vehicle of a plan, 
in which we must 
fervently believe, 
and upon which we 
must vigorously act.  
There is no other 
route to success. 
- Pablo Picasso

MESSAGE 
FROM THE 
GENERAL 
MANAGER

LGVSD Strategic 
Plan 2023-2027 54 LGVSD Strategic 

Plan 2023-2027

LGVSD has been providing excellent 
service to our customers in the North San 
Rafael area since the mid-1950s.  We cur-
rently serve approximately 32,000 people 
in our service area and look forward to this 
Strategic Plan providing the roadmap to 
continue that excellent service in waste-
water collection, treatment and resource 
recovery for years to come.

In 2023, the Board of Directors adopted the 

Strategic Plan which reaffirms the Mission, 
Vision, and Core Values of the District.  
Although the past few years have been 
extremely challenging dealing with the COV-
ID-19 pandemic, LGVSD staff, under the 
leadership of the Board of Directors, were 
able to continue to provide effective service 
to our community without interruption.  
LGVSD staff and the Board of Directors are 
excited to be able to now direct resources 
and energy towards the successful imple-
mentation of the Strategic Plan.

This Strategic Plan outlines the specific 
focus areas and objectives that LGVSD will 
employ.  There is a lot of work to be done 
over the course of this Strategic Plan, and 
we look forward to using this roadmap to 
achieve continued effective and excellent 
service to our community.

MESSAGE FROM THE GENERAL MANAGER

PROCESS AND ORGANIZATION OF LGVSD 
STRATEGIC PLAN

In 2022, LGVSD retained the services 
of BHI Management Consulting (BHI) 
to facilitate and coordinate the updating 
of the District’s five-year Strategic Plan.  
BHI first gathered input directly from 

LGVSD staff and individual members of the 
Board of Directors.  This was followed by 
two Board and staff planning workshops.  
At each meeting the District Mission and 
5-year Vision, areas of strategic focus and 
implementation of actions were discussed.

The Board developed a new Mission 
Statement to describe the overall purpose 
of the District and cast a new Vision for the 
District.  District core values were carefully 
reviewed and updated to reflect the Board’s 
commitment to effective and ethical prac-
tices.  The Board also identified five areas 
of strategic focus around which implemen-
tation of tactical tasks, projects and actions 
are organized.

The organization of the Plan is outlined by 

Mission/Vision/Values, followed by five, five-
year strategic focus areas, and the associ-
ated tasks, projects and actions needed to 
fulfill the vision.  The Vision to Action Table, 
completes the plan by providing a one-page 
overview of the plan providing associated 
dates for action.

Using this process, this Strategic Plan 
provides a roadmap for the District guided 
by the Board’s Vision for the next five years.  
A collective review of the Board of Direc-
tors was made a final time prior to Board 
approval.

Strategic Focus Areas
Strategic Focus Areas are the organized and 
prioritized directions for LGVSD in the next five 
years.  Each will be described in further detail in 
the following pages.  They are:
1.0 Integrated Wastewater Master Plan (IWMP)
2.0 Biosolids
3.0 Workplace
4.0 Workforce
5.0 Administrative and Executive Focus Areas

Photo: San Pablo Bay

Photo: LGVSD Reclamation Ponds

84



LGVSD Strategic 
Plan 2023-2027 76 LGVSD Strategic 

Plan 2023-2027

1.0 
INTEGRATED 

WASTEWATER 
MASTER PLAN 

(IWMP)

1.1
Refine scope of work for IWMP 
for more plan completion 
FY 2023
1.1.1 Staff defined needed 
refinements (complete condition 
assessments, including sea level rise, 
and develop CIP project list).
FY 2023
1.1.2 Prioritize projects identified.  
Board endorsement.  Design and 
construct short-term projects 
identified above.
FY 2023

1.2
Evaluate primary and 
disinfection treatment 
processes 
FY 2023 - 2027
1.2.1 Conduct a condition 
assessment to determine 
refurbishment needs.  This 
assessment will forecast capacity 
needs and identify necessary 
resources to complete identified 
refurbishment actions within the 
scope of the five-year plan.
FY 2023-2027

1.3
Refurbish collection system 
FY 2023 - 2027
1.3.1 Conduct a comprehensive 
condition assessment to identify 
system needs and determine a 
multi-year refurbishment plan.  
This assessment/plan will forecast 
capacity needs and identify 
necessary resources to complete 
identified refurbishment actions 
within the scope of the five-year 
plan. 
FY 2023-2027
1.3.2 Develop cost-sharing program 
for collection system upgrades.
FY 20241.4

Using previously developed 
tools (i.e. - Heat Map, Effective 
Utility Management - EPA) 
as basis we will prioritize 
infrastructure work needed 
within planning term.
FY 2024 - 2027
See Attachment - Heat Map

1.5
Integrate the management of 
LGVSD assets through a refined 
Asset Management Program
FY 2025

There is immense 
power when a 
group of people 
with similar 
interests gets 
together to work 
toward the same 
goals.
- Idowu Koyenikan

OUR OBJECTIVE IS TO ACTIVELY AND 
EFFECTIVELY PLAN AND MANAGE OUR WASTEWATER UTILITY.

CHALLENGES AND OPPORTUNITIES
LGVSD has a number of challenges and opportunities over the course of this Strategic Plan.  LGVSD has a variety of 
capital projects to address, especially with the sewer collection system.  While the major project at the treatment plant 
has been completed, and a second phase of treatment plant upgrade projects are considered, a major focus of the 
capital program will be on rehabilitation and/or replacement of major sewers and pump stations.

As we seek to ensure a smooth transition as our workforce reaches retirement age, workforce development and 
succession planning efforts will help us maintain excellent service to our customers and community.

Maintaining and balancing adequate revenues with expenditures is another area of effort for the District.  A four-year 
study is underway to ensure the District is adequately funded on both the operations and maintenance budget side as 
well as the ambitious capital program that is required.

Photo: San Pablo Bay

85



2.0 BIOSOLIDS

2.1
Consider the feasibility of all 
options per the EPA National 
Priorities Program three-year 
research project, Unregulated 
Organic Chemicals in Biosolids: 
Prioritization, Fate and 
Risk Evaluations for Land 
Applications (Research Project) 
and the Biosolids Program work 
being performed by GHD, Inc.
(i.e. - Dedicated land disposal, 
land application, composting) 
for the beneficial use of biosolids.  
Implementation options that are best 
suited to LGVSD.
FY 2027

2.2
Work with potential partners 
to create memorandums of 
understanding and agreements 
for the funding, design, 
constructions, and operations 
of the selected biosolids option.  
Public/Private Partnerships 
(PPP) will be considered.
FY 2027

OUR OBJECTIVE IS TO MIGRATE BIOSOLIDS FROM 
DISPOSAL TO BENEFICIAL USE.

3.1
Review project objectives, 
design (begun 2016), bid, and 
build an Operations and Control 
Center.
FY 2022-2025

3.2
Build a new corporation yard 
and employee parking
FY 2023-2027

3.3
Consider an optional satellite 
corporation yard and employee 
parking.
FY 2026

3.4
Improve software systems and 
IT infrastructure, District-wide 
internet connectivity and cyber-
security to support operations 
and business management.
FY 2023-2027

3.5
Integrate low-emission and 
electric vehicles (EV) into our 
fleet.
FY 2023-2027

3.0 WORKPLACE
OUR OBJECTIVE IS TO MAKE THE DISTRICT 
WORKPLACE ONE THAT IS SOUGHT OUT BY TOP TALENT.

8 LGVSD Strategic 
Plan 2023-2027

LGVSD Strategic 
Plan 2023-2027 9

Photo: LGVSD Reclamation Ponds Photo: LGVSD Reclamation Ponds

86



LGVSD Strategic 
Plan 2023-2027 1110 LGVSD Strategic 

Plan 2023-2027

4.1
Develop a workplace culture 
statement by the Board of 
Directors providing clear 
guidance to management, 
respecting the value of each 
employee and developing a 
strong team culture.
FY 2023

4.2
Develop a District succession 
plan to provide uninterrupted 
service to the public through 
organizational stability and a 
smooth transfer of knowledge.
FY 2024

4.3
Perform a comprehensive 
organizational analysis 
FY 2023 - 2027
4.3.1 Perform a classification and 
compensation study.
FY 2026
4.3.2 Perform organizational health 
surveys/assessments.
Ongoing
4.3.3. Consider commensurate 
staffing changes necessary to 
support work as identified.
Annually, in yearly budget proposal.

4.4
Consider options regarding 
workforce housing 
opportunities.
FY 2025

5.0 
ADMINISTRATIVE AND 
EXECUTIVE FOCUS 
AREAS 

5.1
Provide a well-devised annual 
performance evaluation process 
for the General Manager.
FY 2023
5.1.1 GM self-assessment.
5.1.2 Full Board Participation
5.1.3. Cooperatively (Board/GM) 
developed annual performance 
goals and objectives.

5.2
Refine the LGVSD public 
relations program to potentially 
include comprehensive/
intuitive website improvements, 
social media, school outreach, 
programs for the education of 
the public.
FY 2024

5.3
Achieve CSDA District of 
Distinction acknowledgement.
FY 2024

5.4
Consider alternate financial 
strategies for addressing Other 
Post-Employment Benefits 
(OPEB) liabilities.
FY 2024

4.0 WORKFORCE
OUR OBJECTIVE IS TO MANAGE AND VALUE OUR 
WORKFORCE TO OPTIMIZE THIS GREAT PUBLIC ASSET.

OUR OBJECTIVE IS TO PRODUCTIVELY GOVERN 
AND MANAGE THE DISTRICT FOR THE GREATEST PUBLIC 
BENEFIT.

Photo: Mother duck with ducklings

Photo: Heron

87



If you want to go 
quickly, go alone.  
If you want to go 
far, go together.

12 LGVSD Strategic 
Plan 2023-2027

LGVSD Strategic 
Plan 2023-2027 13

- African Proverb

VISION TO ACTION TABLE
Strategic 
Focus

Strategic Goals Proposed 
Completion Dates

1.0 Integrated 
Wastewater 
Management Plan 
(IWMP)

1.1 Refine Scope of Work for IWMP for more plan completion.
1.2 Evaluate primary and disinfection treatment processes.
1.3 Refurbish collection system.
1.4 Using previously developed tools (i.e. Heat Map, Effective 
Utility Management - EPA) as a basis we will prioritize infra-
structure work needed within planning term.
1.5 Integrate the management of LGVSD assets through a 
refined Asset Management Program.

1.1 FY 2023
1.2 FY 2023 - 2027
1.3 FY 2023 - 2027
1.4 FY 2024 - 2027

1.5 FY 2025

2.0 Biosolids 2.1 Consider the feasibility of all options per the EPA National 
Priorities Program three-year research project, Unregulated 
Organic Chemicals in Biosolids: Prioritization, Fate and Risk 
Evaluations for Land Applications (Research Project) and the 
Biosolids Program work being performed by GHD, Inc.
2.2 Work with potential partners to create a memorandum 
of understanding for the funding design, construction and 
operation of the selected biosolids option.

2.1 FY 2027

2.2 FY 2027

3.0 Workplace 3.1 Review project objectives, design (begun 2016), bid, and 
build an Operations and Control Center.
3.2 Build a new corporation yard and employee parking.
3.3 Consider an optional satellite corporation yard and em-
ployee parking.
3.4 Improve software systems and IT infrastructure, Dis-
trict-wide internet connectivity and cybersecurity to support 
operations and business management.
3.5 Integrate low-emission and electric vehicles (EV) into our 
fleet.

3.1 FY 2022 - 2025

3.2 FY 2023- 2027
3.3 FY 2026

3.4 FY 2023- 2027

3.5 FY 2023- 2027

4.0 Workforce 4.1 Develop a workplace culture statement by the Board of 
Directors providing clear guidance to management, respect-
ing the value of each employee and developing a strong team 
culture.
4.2 Develop a District succession plan to provide uninterrupt-
ed service to the public through organizational stability and 
a smooth transfer of knowlege.
4.3 Perform a comprehensive organizational analysis.
4.4 Consider options regarding workforce housing opportu-
nities.

4.1 FY 2023

4.2 FY 2024

4.3 2023 - 2027
4.4 FY 2025

5.0 Administrative & 
Executive Focus Areas

5.1 Provide a well devised annual performance evaluation 
process for the General Manager.
5.2 Refine the District public relations program to potential-
ly include comprehensive/intuitive website improvements, 
social media, school outreach, programs for the education of 
the the public.
5.3 Achieve CSDA District of Distinction acknowledgement.
5.4 Consider alternate financial strategies for addressing 
other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) liabilities.

5.1 FY 2023

5.2 FY 2024

5.3 FY 2024
5.4 FY 2024

88



Attachment B  

\\kjc\kjc-root\kj-projects\sanfrancisco\pw-proj\2020\2068001.00_lgvsd_integratedwwmp\10-brva\brva tm\attachment b.docx   
 

Figure 7: Total Risk Score Scatter Plot Shows that 42% of District Systems are Ranked Highly Critical 

 

LGVSD Strategic 
Plan 2023-2027 1514 LGVSD Strategic 

Plan 2023-2027

ATTACHMENT - HEAT MAP

89



LAS GALLINAS 
VALLEY 
SANITARY 
DISTRICT
101 LUCAS VALLEY ROAD, 
SUITE 300
SAN RAFAEL, CA 94903
(415) 472-1734
WWW.LGVSD.ORG

Photo: Sunset at San Pablo 
Bay

90



 

 
 

 

6/1/2023 
 

 General Manager Report 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

 Verbal Report  

□ Presentation 

 

AGENDA ITEM 3.1 

91



Engineering Department Report – Feb through May 2023       6/1/2023 

Engineering Department Report  (See attached for additional info) Page 1 of 5

DESIGN (Number of projects in design phase: 12) 
 Rafael Meadows Pump Station Standby Generator Installation

o Generator enclosure has been repaired through a change order.
o Completed start‐up testing with Peterson/Caterpillar.
o Staff prepared responses to submittals and RFI's for compliance requirements.
o Punchlist items are in progress.

 Solar Photovoltaic System Upgrades
o Power Purchase Agreement with ForeFront Power (FFP) has been fully executed.
o FFP and its subcontractor began preliminary site investigations and testing of existing

equipment in March.
o Submitted application to PG&E's Self‐Generation Incentive Program.
o Conducting weekly meetings with FFP and Kenwood Energy on design and permitting

aspects of the project.
o Design of new solar PV system is in progress by ForeFront.
o Tentative construction start date: Nov 2023.
o Tentative construction completion date: Oct 2024.

 Standby Generator System Installation for Adrian, McPhail, and Industrial Park Pump Station
o Received BAAQMD permits for all three pump stations. Two generators have been

ordered. Pending confirmation from the contractor on the procurement of the third
generator.

o Contractor was on site in March 2023 to review site layouts and perform preliminary
measurements.

o Provided inspection requirements to Bellecci & Associates.
o Contractor started construction in May 2023.

CONSTRUCTION (Number of projects in construction: 8) 
 Secondary Treatment Plant Upgrade & Recycled Water Expansion (“Big Project”)

o Target completion date: June 2, 2023, pending site fencing and minor AC paving.
o Target ribbon cutting: June 8, 2023.

CALL FOR BIDS (Number of projects: 5) 
 Primary Clarifier 1 Rehabilitation

o Obtained equipment pricing from Ovivo to match existing primary clarifier mechanism.

 Combined Project ‐ TWAS Enclosure/Sludge Basin & Reception Pad

 Digester MCC‐2 Upgrades

 Terra Linda Force Main Access Structures

 Pump Station Site Lighting Improvements

OTHER (Number of projects: 9) 
 Integrated Wastewater Master Plan

o Staff reviewed Phase 3 re‐scoping memo from Kennedy Jenks (KJ) and finalized District

comments after meeting with management.

o Conducted re‐scoping meeting with KJ to discuss District comments.

o KJ is finalizing Phase 2 technical memos, including condition assessment on treatment

plant, collection system, disaster resilience, and asset management. Anticipates

submittal in May 2023.

Agenda Item 3.2

92



Engineering Report (Feb through May 2023)

Job No. Project Name/Updates % Completion

DESIGN PROJECTS

11200‐03 30%

20100‐02 16%

(On‐hold)

20600‐04 25%

(On‐hold)

21600‐03 50%

20300‐09 51%

21350‐01 50%

21600‐01 50%

21600‐09 75%

22500‐03 8%

23200‐01 40%

TBD 5%

TBD 5%

Emergency Bypass Pumping Analysis & Emergency Response Plan 

• Freyer & Laureta continues to prepare the draft emergency response plan.

Collection System Hydraulic Model

• Hazen reviewed record drawings and prepared model for existing conditions.

• A subconsultant (ADS) installed one rain gauge and 10 flow meters in the collection system. Flow 

monitoring will end in May.

• Staff and Hazen met to discuss preliminary flow monitoring results based on collected data.

• Staff to redefine scope, e.g. plant entrance, or reuse and combine with other locations.

• Five (5) additional flat panel light fixtures and conduit trenching were completed as part of STPURWE.

• Staff is evaluating if additional area lighting is still required for safe operations at night.

Plant Lighting Improvements

Solar Photovoltaic System Upgrades

• Power Purchase Agreement with ForeFront Power (FFP) has been fully executed.

• FFP and its subcontractor began preliminary site investigations and testing of existing equipment in 

March.

• Submitted application to PG&E's Self‐Generation Incentive Program.

• Conducting weekly meetings with FFP and Kenwood Energy on design and permitting aspects of the 

project.

• Design of new solar PV system is in progress by ForeFront.

• Tentative construction start date: Nov 2023.

• Tentative construction completion date: Oct 2024.

• Staff is developing scope for replacement of critical gates at two diversion boxes.

• Staff has reached out for informal bids from several contractors.

Reclamation Pond Diversion Boxes

Annual Plant Paving at Various Locations

• Freyer & Laureta and staff are evaluating the feasibility to expand current design scope to replace the 

existing variable frequency drive with a prefabricated single or duplex control panels at Captains Cove 

and Marin Lagoon pump stations.

• Staff will provide additional instruction to F&L.

Smith Ranch Pump Station Electrical Upgrades

• Freyer & Laureta is updating the design per District staff input.

• Scope: New control panel, ATS, standby natural gas‐powered generator, etc.

• Received draft design submittal.

John Duckett Pump Station & Sewer Main Capacity and Storage

Automatic Transfer Switches for Pump Stations

• Redefined scope to reflect the following in the current CIP budgeting:

1) Maintain current proposed pump station location for sea level rise mitigation.

2) Remove force main realignment as project component.

3) Designate exposed pipe creek crossing replacement and Hwy 101 trunk sewer crossing as critical 

project components.

• Schematic Design is currently on hold.

• Fire Hydrant Line is currently being installed under the STPURWE project.

• Comcast fiber cable line is under design by Comcast staff and contractors.

Operation Control Center Building Design

• On‐hold pending evaluation of final treatment facility layout.

• Need to discuss rescoping of design services with Hazen & Sawyer to reprioritize tasks based on recent 

storms and new secondary treatment process performance.

Flow Equalization Basin

Venetia Harbor Paving

• Staff to finish the grading and paving plan based on topographic data and prepare informal bid set.

Engineering Department Report Page 2 of 593



Job No. Project Name/Updates % Completion

CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS

11500‐09 17%

12300‐05 Rafael Meadows Pump Station Standby Generator Installation 90%

Secondary Treatment Plant Upgrade & Recycled Water Expansion 99%

21300‐03 45%

21300‐06 100%

21600‐08 37%

22125‐04 Continuous

23500‐05 10%

REQUESTS FOR PROPOSALS

CALL FOR BIDS

12600‐07

20200‐01

21300‐04

21600‐07

22600‐01

• On‐going with Hanford ARC. 

• Received comments from the Water Board on the annual vegetation and geomorphic monitoring 

reports.

• Generator enclosure has been repaired through a change order.

• Completed start‐up testing with Peterson/Caterpillar.

• Staff prepared responses to submittals and RFI's for compliance requirements.

• Punchlist items are in progress.

Combined Project ‐ TWAS Enclosure/Sludge Basin and Reception Pad

• Issue Call for Bids for combined project in May 2023.

Terra Linda Force Main Access Structures 

• Freyer & Laureta submitted 100% design for ten access points along John Duckett Force Main.

• Staff is preparing formal bidding documents.

• Obtained equipment pricing from Ovivo to match existing primary clarifier mechanism.

• Preparing bidding documents.

Pump Station Site Lighting Improvements 

• Freyer & Laureta provided design specifications and drawings.

• Light fixture type and model shall meet Dark Sky Initiative specifications.

• Staff is preparing bidding documents.

Digester Room MCC#2 Upgrades

• Hazen included provisions for future boiler relocation in the design.

• Hazen submitted 100% design plans.

• Staff is finalizing formal bidding documents for public bids.

Primary Clarifier 1 Rehabilitation

12600‐07 &

16650‐02

None.

Center Pivot No.1 Replacement

• Center pivot equipment was delivered on site.

• Demolition began in May.

On‐Call Construction Contract

• Received BAAQMD permits for all three pump stations. Two generators have been ordered. Pending 

confirmation from the contractor on procurement of the third generator.

• Contractor was on site in March 2023 to review site layouts and perform preliminary measurements.

• Provided inspection requirements to Bellecci & Associates.

• Contractor started construction in May 2023.

• North San Pedro Road Sewer Repair (100% complete)

• Las Gallinas Easement Sewer Repair (100% complete)

Venetia Harbor Pump Station Concrete Slab Repair

• Linscott completed installation of a retaining wall around the concrete slab for subsidence repair.

• Target completion date: June 2, 2023, pending site fencing and minor AC paving.

• Target ribbon cutting: June 8, 2023.

Grit Screw Conveyor Systems Replacement 

• Held pre‐construction meeting for construction in May.

• Hazen & Sawyer will provide inspection services for the project.

• Grit screw conveyor equipment has been delivered to the contractor for installation.

Standby Generator System Installation for Adrian, McPhail, and Industrial Park PS

Miller Creek Vegetation Maintenance

Engineering Department Report Page 3 of 594



Job No. Project Name/Updates % Completion

OTHER PROJECTS

20100‐04 Phase 2: 85%

20125‐01 Continuous

21500‐08 Continuous

21500‐08 100%

21500‐08 95%

N/A

21600‐07 100%

22125‐02 2%

22125‐03 Continuous

LAND DEVELOPMENT

Flood Protection Plan

Groundwater Monitoring Well Installation

• Completed project close out.

• Completed.

Integrated Wastewater Master Plan

• Staff reviewed Phase 3 re‐scoping memo from Kennedy Jenks and finalized District comments after 

meeting with management.

• Conducted re‐scoping meeting with KJ to discuss District comments.

• Kennedy Jenks is finalizing Phase 2 technical memos, including condition assessment on treatment 

plant, collection system, disaster resilience, and asset management. Anticipates submittal in May 2023.

On‐Call Engineering Contract

• Hazen & Sawyer will provide inspection services for the Grit Screw Conveyor Systems Replacement 

project.

• Submitted Flood Protection Plan prepared by ESA to the Water Board in compliance with the NOA.

• Waiting for comments from the Water Board.

• Staff provided comments and bidding format guidance to GHD on the RFP for biosolids land 

application.

• Continue to hold biweekly progress meetings with GHD.

• Submitted Biosolids and Site Characterization Workplan and Sampling and Analysis Plan to the Water 

Board in compliance with the Notice of Availability (NOA).

Biosolids Program

Secondary Digester Inspection

Sludge Lagoon Liner Replacement/Repair

• Staff and GHD agreed to include the repair in the biosolids land application RFP. Service provider 

selected for the land application task can be utilized to empty the lagoon prior to repair/replacing the 

liner. 

• Total of 192 apartment units.

• Pending Land Development Ad Hoc Committee discussion.

• Construction of a new 23,317 SF two‐story building (synagogue) to replace the existing 14,357 SF 

building.

• Coordinated District's pipebursting project with developer's contractor.

• Bellecci & Associates inspected the sewer lateral tie‐in.

Los Gamos Apartments

Standard Specifications and Drawings Update

245 Nova Albion Way

• Total of 100 living units.

• Pending Land Development Ad Hoc Committee discussion.

Northgate Redevelopment  ‐ 5800 Northgate Mall

• Redevelop Northgate Mall to include both retail and multi‐family units. 

   Project Concept 2025: retail space plus 965 multi‐family units

   Project Concept 2040: retail space plus 1374 multi‐family units

• Pending Land Development Ad Hoc Committee discussion.

On‐Call Inspection 

• On‐going with Bellecci & Associates for collection system, development, and other projects as 

necessary.

• Issued RFP to update the 2000 LGVSD Standard Specifications and Drawings. 

• Staff evaluated the only proposal received from Hazen & Sawyer in response to the RFP.

Congregation Rodef Sholom – 170 N San Pedro

Engineering Department Report Page 4 of 595



Job No. Project Name/Updates % Completion

SEWER LATERAL VIDEO INSPECTION ‐ COLLECTIONS DEPARTMENT

• 98 Duran Dr – New ADU

• 90 Esmeyer Dr – New ADU

• 216 Mirada Ave – New ADU

• 810 Pine Lane – New ADU

• 55 Ranch Rd – Barn to ADU Conversion

• Sourdough & Co. at 412 Las Gallinas Ave – New Restaurant in Existing Building

Other Projects Reviewed by Staff (Will Serve Letters Issued):

Other Projects Reviewed by Staff (Will Serve Letters Not Required):

• 754 Las Colindas Rd – Residential Remodel

• 635 Montecillo Rd – Residential Interior Remodel

• 840 Montecillo Rd – Residential Interior Remodel

• 505 Vendola Dr – Residential Interior Remodel

• 80 Wallace Wy – Residential Interior Remodel

• Embark Clinic at 4000 Civic Center Dr – Tenant Improvements

• Exchange Bank at 3950 Civic Center Dr – Tenant Improvements

• Golden Gate Veterinary Clinic at 4460 Redwood Hwy – Tenant Improvements

• Marin Aging & Disability Institute at 70 Skyview Ter – Tenant Improvements

• Starbucks at 260 Northgate Dr – Tenant Improvements

• Marin Bible Church at 3 North San Pedro Rd – Tenant Improvements

• Sol Food Warehouse at 79 Mitchell Blvd – Tenant Improvements

• Reviewed 41 sewer lateral inspection videos and issued Letters of Findings.

Building Permit Lists

• Reviewed building permit lists from City of San Rafael: 

        ‐ Issued 18 request for information letters

• Reviewed building permit lists from Marin County: 

        ‐ Placed 18 permit holds 

        ‐ Released 13 permit holds

Engineering Department Report Page 5 of 596



Plant Operations Department Report – January - March 2023 6/1/2023  

Plant Operations Department Report Page 1 of 2 

CRITICAL PROCESS 

• Treatment plant effluent was discharged to Miller Creek during this quarter.

• Blending events occurred in January, February, and March during periods of heavy

rainfall. Blending is a permitted treatment strategy that routes primary effluent,

exceeding secondary treatment capacity, directly to combine with secondary treated

effluent, both receiving disinfection and dechlorination before discharge to Miller Creek.

• Three BioWheel aeration trains were in operation in this report period. Persistent drive

chain link failures were observed by operations staff and replaced by maintenance staff

in this period. Failed trunnion assemblies were replaced by the STPURWE general

contractor for two BioWheels in aeration basin train #4 in March.

• A 5 to 6 million gallon per day (MGD) flow restriction was observed at the yard piping

between the new secondary clarifiers and the chlorine contact chamber. Air

entrainment was ruled out using contractor installed clear standpipes to measure

hydraulic head in this location during storm events. The line will be dewatered and

inspected in the dry season to determine if there is a physical obstruction in the line.

NON-CRITICAL PROCESS 

• Department supervisors and lead staff enrolled in and began attending RGS leadership

academy courses this period.

• January - Representatives from West Yost performed onsite cybersecurity field

assessment tasks required for their report the anticipated completion will be in the

second quarter of 2023.

• February – Operations Department Team welcomes Ghazaleh (Grace) Maleki to fill the

District’s Laboratory Analyst position.

• March – Department of Energy sponsored San Francisco State University Industrial

Assessment Center representatives’ treatment plant tour and initialization of energy

audit work to develop their report.

PERFORMANCE METRICS 
Sewage Treated 

• 5.18 million gallons per day average daily influent flow for January through March.
Recycled Water Production 

• 1.24 million gallons of recycled water was pumped to North Marin Water District

• 20.36 million gallons of recycled water was pumped to Marin Municipal Water District

Reclamation 

• Pond Levels Beginning of January – Pond #1 = 6.2’ - Pond #2 = 6.1’ ~ 69% of Capacity

Pond Levels at End of March – Pond #1 = 6.3’ - Pond #2 = 6.2’ ~ 70% of Capacity

Solar Power Generation 

• 10,828 kWh offsetting approximately $2,707 in PG&E/MCE electrical consumption costs

using an average rate of $0.25/kWh. Inverters A & B were shut down 12/2021 for safety.

Agenda Item 3.3

97



   Plant Operations Department Report – January - March 2023 6/1/2023   
 

 

Plant Operations Department Report  Page 2 of 2 

 

Biogas Utilization 

• Total Digester Gas Produced – 3,447,332 scf – Microturbines at 75% uptime producing a 

total of 52,225 kWh, offsetting approximately $13,056 in PG&E/MCE electrical 

consumption costs using an average rate of $0.25/kWh. 

 

NPDES PERMIT COMPLIANCE 

A single effluent copper sample result of 12 ug/l, collected on March 10, exceeded the 

maximum daily NPDES permit limit of 11 ug/l. This was reported to the water board on April 4,  

after results were received from an independent laboratory used to perform this analysis. Staff 

have a high level of confidence that the exceedance was attributable to a combination of high 

influent flow during a storm event and a settleability issue, related to filamentous bulking, that 

the secondary treatment process was experiencing at the time. All other water quality 

parameters met or exceeded permissible limits for this period. Annual and monthly reports 

were submitted to their respective regulatory agencies in accordance with permit 

requirements. On average, laboratory staff perform 138 process control and 25 regulatory 

compliance analyses per week during this report period. 

Flare
4%

Microturbines
45%

DG Boiler
51%

RNG Boiler
0%

RNG Vehicle
0%

98



 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2023\Agenda Packet 2023\06012023\Budget\ASR Proposed Budget  6-1-23.docx Page 1 of 3 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Dale McDonald, Administrative Services Manager  
 (415) 526-1519   dmcdonald@lgvsd.org 
Meeting Date: June 1, 2023 

Re: Proposed Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget 

Item Type:   Consent   Action        Information  X Other          

Standard Contract:    Yes     No  (See attached) Not Applicable      X        
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board to provide direction to staff so that the proposed budget for fiscal year 2023-2024 can be 
finalized. 

BACKGROUND 
Staff has been meeting since February 2023 developing the budget for fiscal year 2023-2024. 
The Board held a budget workshop on March 29, 2023 and provided feedback to staff. A report 
on the impact the District’s Capital Improvement Program would have on the sewer rates was 
given on April 20, 2023.  A Sewer Rate Study, which included a comprehensive financial forecast 
for the next 10 years, was completed by Hildebrand Consulting, presented as draft sewer rate 
report on May 8, 2023, and submitted to be accepted under consent by the Board on June 1, 
2023.  Revenue, operating expenses, reserves, and capital expenditures based on the above 
meetings have been updated to reflect the current financial position of the District.  
 
The proposed budget includes $32,661,147 in revenue and $38,364,834 in expenses. The District 
is projected to spend $5,703,687 more than what will be brought in in the upcoming fiscal year. 
The District will be able to draw down from its unrestricted working capital to cover this shortfall. 
Based on the proposed budget, excluding capital carryover funding and restricted reserves, the 
working cash balance at the end of fiscal year June 30, 2024 is forecast to be $2,359,496. 
 
Board Input Requested 
 
A few assumptions remain in the proposed budget. Staff is seeking input on the following items 
before the final budget is to be considered for adoption on June 30, 2023: 
 

• Confirm the Sewer Service Charge (SSC) Rate for use in the 2023-2024 budget. The 
proposed annual SSC Single-Family Residential rate increase of $111 has been 
incorporated into the proposed budget. Proposed changes to the rate structure 
methodology will impact Non-Residential rates. Based on the newly proposed strength 
levels; domestic, elevated, and high, it is estimated that the Non-Residential rate 
increases will generate approximately $125K in additional revenue. This amount may 
be higher or lower depending on the final calculation-based water use of these 
customers. This SSC increase is forecast to bring in $1,881,304 in additional revenue. 

Item Number______3.4________ 

GM Review   _____CP_________ 

 

99

mailto:dmcdonald@lgvsd.org


 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2023\Agenda Packet 2023\06012023\Budget\ASR Proposed Budget  6-1-23.docx Page 2 of 3 

 

 

• Reserve funding targets need to be reviewed and determined. Board Policy F-50 
requires that the Board review the reserve policy annually. It has historically been done 
during the budget process.  Staff is suggesting increasing the Capital Reserve target to 
$11M, consisting primarily of reserve funds for the Operation Control Center building for 
which $3M was designated in fiscal year 2022-2023 and $3M is proposed for fiscal year 
2023-2024. The Emergency Repair reserve, currently targeted at $1M, has not been 
raised since 2017. Staff is recommending raising the Emergency Reserve to $1.5M to 
adjust for inflation and construction price increases. It is healthy for the District to have 
cash reserves to provide safeguards for the District’s operations.  

• The Capital Outlay Budget for 2023-2024 identifies funding sources for identified capital 
projects planned for in the upcoming fiscal year. The Capital Outlay Budget comprises 
41.53% of the total budget. Many of the projects have previously been identified and 
contracts executed in prior years.  They are primarily funded from prior year carryover 
funds. New and ongoing capital projects are identified in the budget and are primarily 
funded from unrestricted funds, property tax revenue and sewer service charges. The 
Board should review the proposed funding sources and provide direction to staff if any 
changes should be made prior to the final budget presentation. 

• The District has an aggressive Capital Improvement Program (CIP) which has been 
expanded to 7-years to capture biosolids and sea-level rise projects anticipated to occur 
between 2028 through 2030.  It was developed based on Board priorities, risk 
assessment, and recommended projects. The CIP incorporates many projects identified 
in the preliminary Integrated Wastewater Master Plan (IWMP) currently under 
development. The list of capital projects presented is the same as what was in the 
Hildebrand Sewer Rate Study with only slight adjustments to incorporate the latest cost 
estimates and completion timelines. The Board is asked to give direction on whether to 
keep the expanded to 7-year CIP or revert to the 5-year model for the final budget.  

 
Other Information 
 
The Secondary Treatment Plant Upgrade Recycled Water Expansion (STPURWE) project is 
expected to be completed by June 30, 2023,  however the District is anticipating invoices from 
approved contracts and additional minor expenditures related to the project to trickle in between 
July and September. The District’s accounting method is based on a modified accrual basis. For 
accounting purposes, the project is considered a “Construction-in-Progress” asset, with no 
depreciation recorded until the asset is placed in service. Once the Notice of Completion is filed, 
construction is considered complete, and the asset will be reclassified as an infrastructure 
improvement. Capitalization and depreciation will then apply. The project is included in the Capital 
Outlay Budget with expenditures to be paid in 2023-2024 using prior year carryover funds. Any 
unused carryover funds after the project completion will be allocated to the undesignated capital 
reserve. 
 
Marin Municipal Water District (MMWD) Inter-Governmental revenue is expected to increase in 
2023-2024 once the cost share adjustment for the STPURWE project is calculated. Staff will be 
meeting to develop the estimate before the final budget is presented. 
 

100



 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2023\Agenda Packet 2023\06012023\Budget\ASR Proposed Budget  6-1-23.docx Page 3 of 3 

 
 
Debt Service Coverage Ratio (DSCR) for 2023-2024 is projected to be 2.03 based on lower 
operating income and increased operating expenses. It remains above the minimum DSCR 
required by the 2017 Bond convents but below the DSCR target of 2.18 suggested by HDR 
Engineering as part of their SSC Rate Study in April 2021. The recent Hildebrand Consulting 
sewer rate study recommends maintaining a DSCR of at least 1.5 to ensure access to favorable 
borrowing terms in the future. 
 
Rising operation and maintenance expenses are expected to continue into 2023. The Consumer 
Price Index (CPI-U) as of April 2023 increased 4.2% over the last 12-months. The proposed 
budget includes inflation factors between 1.0% and 6% for various expenditures with some 
outliers, like energy and chemical costs, calculated based on higher actuals. 
 
Board policy requires the District to maintain a balanced budget and to disclose deviations from a 
balanced budget when it occurs. The final proposed budget will be balanced with any identified 
shortfall being funded from the unrestricted working capital balance. Policy also requires that the 
District estimate revenues conservatively when forecasting the budget. 
 
The attached budget for fiscal year 2023-2024 is similar in format and detail to what was 
presented in the 2022-2023 budget. It includes a summary and detailed information on anticipated 
revenue, expenditures proposed, financial statements, and list of CIP projects.   
 

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
On June 16, 2022, the Board approved the budget for fiscal year 2022-2024. 
 
On May 18, 2023, the Board accepted the 2023 Sewer Charge Study Report from Hildebrand 
Consulting for fiscal years 2023-2024 through 2026-2027. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The presentation of the proposed budget itself has no fiscal impact. 
 
Board direction and feedback will influence the final budget for fiscal year 2023-2024 which will be 
presented on June 30, 2023. 
 
 
Attachment: 

A. Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Proposed Budget for Fiscal Year 2023-2024, dated 
June 1, 2023 

 

101



 

Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 

Proposed Budget 

Fiscal Year 2023-2024 

June 1, 2023 

 

 
    

102



 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Left Intentionally Blank  

 

  

103



 

 

 

 

June 1, 2023 
 
To the Board of Directors of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, 
 
The management staff of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District (“District or LGVSD”) is pleased 
to present the Proposed LGVSD Budget for the upcoming 2023-2024 fiscal year.  The proposed 
budget includes the latest data on revenue projections, expense forecasts, debt service 
requirements, reserve funding, and capital outlay expenditures.   
 
District Policy F-40-10 (Budget Preparation), requires that the General Manager and 
Administrative Services Manager prepare an annual budget proposal. The proposed annual 
budget, as amended by the Board during its review, shall be adopted at a regular meeting in June. 
 
SUMMARY 
 
The District must provide enough revenue to cover the cost of providing sanitary sewer collection, 
treatment, and recycled water service including the costs of acquisition, construction, 
reconstruction, maintenance, repairs, replacement and operation of the sanitary sewer systems 
and the payment of principal and interest on bonds or other debt instruments issued for the 
construction or reconstruction of the sanitary sewer systems.  Operating revenue includes sewer 
service charges collected, revenue from the production of recycled water, and revenue from 
permit and inspection fees related to development-related sewer system improvements of the 
collection system. Non-operating revenue, which supplements operating revenue, includes 
property taxes, interest, franchise fees, and other pass-thru reimbursement revenue. Capital 
contributions, grants, and the utilization of bond funds and reserves round out the revenue 
sources for the District.  The District is anticipating $32,661,147 in total funding for 2023-2024 
with $23,791,633 coming from revenue and $8,869,514 from prior year capital carryover and 
reserve funds. 
 
Operations and Maintenance (“O&M”) expenses are anticipated to increase over the prior year 
budget by $1,145,200, or 9.99%. O&M expenses means the reasonable and necessary expenses 
paid or incurred for maintaining and operating the collection, treatment, and recycled water 
systems (“Systems”) of the District, determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles (“GAAP”) that the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) established for 
and is used by state and local governments in the United States. O&M expenses include all 
reasonable expenses of management and repair and all other expenses necessary to maintain 
and preserve the systems of the District in good repair and working order.  These include all 
administrative costs of the District that are charged directly or apportioned to the operation of the 
systems, such as salaries and wages of employees, overhead, the cost of permits, licenses, and 
charges to operate the system and insurance premiums. Excluded from O&M expenses are 
depreciation, replacement, obsolescence charges, reserves, and amortization of intangibles.  
O&M expenses, including employee salaries and wages, comprise 32.85% of the budget. 
 
Debt service requirements are $4,496,574 and include the 2017 Revenue Bonds and 2019 IBank 
loan. The final 2012 Bank of Marin Loan payment was made in August 2022.  Debt service 
comprises 11.72% of the budget. 

104



 

 

 
New Reserve funding of $4,396,463 is proposed to be established and set aside to cover 
scheduled, routine, and unscheduled expenses that would otherwise be drawn from the General 
Fund.  Reserve funds may also be used for large-scale projects and improvements that are 
expected to happen in the future, such as the construction of the new Operations Control Center 
(“OCC”) and Laboratory Buildings at the treatment plant and the John Duckett Pump Station and 
Trunk Sewer project. The District maintains five reserve funds and four restricted funds. Restricted 
funds are monies set aside for a particular purpose and $935,157 in additional funding is proposed 
with the budget, and includes new funding for the Recycled Water Capital Repair and 
Replacement fund required under agreement with Marin Municipal Water District (“MMWD”). 
Reserve funds are permanently restricted to that purpose and cannot be used for other expenses.  
Reserves Policy F-50 establishes and explains the purpose and reasons for each of the reserves 
established, along with target thresholds. Both the reserve funds and restricted funds are included 
in the reserve funding total, but they are different in that while the board can reallocate funds from 
reserves, while the restricted funds, such as Captains Cove and Marin Lagoon, serve a specific 
purpose and therefore their use is controlled by State law and agreements in place for providing 
service. Reserve and restricted funding comprise 13.90% of the budget. 
 
The Capital Outlay effort for 2023-2024 remains the primary driver of expenditures for the District 
comprising 41.53% of the total budget. The total capital outlay for the Capital Improvement 
Program (“CIP”) for fiscal year is $15,932,540, excluding $3,000,000 that will be reserved for the 
OCC construction project in the future. During the development of the CIP, review of strategic 
initiatives established by the Board, along with anticipated implementation of the Integrated 
Wastewater Master Plan indicate that capital improvements will remain the primary expense 
driver for the District for at least the next 10 years.  The recent Sewer Rate Study by Hildebrand 
Consulting included a 10-year CIP forecast based of the District developed CIP. The good news 
is that by adding to or improving District facilities the public materially benefits from the value and 
useful life of the assets of the District. 
 
Unused prior year Capital Outlay Carryover funds is the primary funding source for the majority 
of capital projects in fiscal year 2023-2024. $8,751,119 of carryover funding is allocated for use 
on capital projects in the 2023-2024 budget. 
 
 
Sincerely, 

 
 

Curtis Paxton    Dale McDonald 
General Manager    Administrative Services Manager 
 

  

105



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 
Proposed Budget – 2023-2024 

1 
 

REVENUE 
 
Operating Revenue 
 
The District is heading into its first year of a four-year rate plan to be considered and approved by the Board on 
June 30, 2023. A Sewer Service Charge (“SSC”) rate increase of $111 annually for Single Family Residential 
(“SFR”) users is proposed.  The rate increase will provide $1,881,304 in additional revenue over last year.  Non-
residential SSC revenue is expected to increase slightly as new strength levels are implemented.  In addition, it 
is anticipated that more wastewater was generated by non-residential customers as businesses returned to 
normal as the COVID-19 pandemic wound down. Projected end of year revenue for 2022-2023 is higher than 
originally budgeted, further confirming an increase in wastewater generated is anticipated. 
 
Recycled water revenue is the estimated cost of providing water to Marin Municipal Water District (“MMWD”) 
and North Marin Water District (“NMWD”) based on the projected recoverable costs for the year. Projections for 
revenue are based on actual recycled water provided to MMWD and NMWD since April 2021.  Revenue is 
expected to increase over the prior year as demand for recycled water increases. 
 
Inspections, permits, and application fees reflect projected revenue from fees related to the Private Sewer Lateral 
Inspection program, lateral repairs and replacement, and applications for engineering review. The revenue is 
based on historical sales and permit data for properties within the District between 2019 and 2023. 
 

Non-Operating Revenue 
 
Secured property taxes are calculated based on the value of real property, land, and personal property, such as 
structures, located upon real property.  Secured property is taxed at a general rate of 1% of the assessed value.   
Property tax projections for 2023-2024 are expected to be slightly higher than 2022-2023 actuals.  For 2023-
2024, property tax revenue is budgeted at $1,229,409 and reflects a 3% increase over projected 2022-2023 
receipts.  The District has historically identified secured property taxes as General Construction Revenue since 
the State puts no limitations on its use.  It can, therefore, be considered a general fund that can be used for any 
legal purpose allowed by District Code and State law.  The Low-Income Sewer Rate Assistance Program is 
funded from secured property tax revenue. 
 
Prior Secured taxes, Supplemental Property Tax Assessments, and Home-Owner Property Tax Relief 
(“HOPTR”) funds are projected to rise 3% over last year.  These are collected by the County with and at the 
same time as the secured property taxes and SSC assessment.  They are reported separately as required by 
the State Controller’s Office and auditing standards.  Both the 1% annual Ad-Valorem tax increase for most 
property owners and the reassessment of property value upon sale of homes are factored in the reserve 
assumptions. 
 
Educational Revenue Augmentation Funds (“ERAF”) are determined by State statute.  Special districts are 
allocated a certain amount of property tax revenues; however, a portion is shifted from counties, cities, special 
districts, and redevelopment agencies to K-12 schools and community colleges. The District is subject to ERAF 
I and II tax shifts, which are specified by the State, using population and other factors. These factors are adjusted 
annually per the incremental growth rate in assessed property tax values. Staff has budgeted $507,904 for 2023-
2024 using the foundational basis from the ERAF revenue received in 2022-2023.   
 

106



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 
Proposed Budget – 2023-2024 

2 
 

The Solid Waste Franchise fee revenue is forecast based on the anticipated Marin Sanitary Service rate increase 
adopted in January of each year.  The revenue is based on the agreement with the solid waste franchisee, Marin 
Sanitary Service.  Higher rates due to costs related to implementation of SB 1383, the State’s organics recycling 
law, could be adopted in January 2024 which would increase both revenue and pass thru expenses related to 
the solids waste collection, recycling, and organic waste programs. 
 
Interest on reserves, which are invested in the Bank of Marin and the Local Agency Investment Fund with the 
State of California, are expected to yield higher than average returns with rates to remain flat in 2024.  As the 
District uses accumulated funds for construction projects, the earnings are projected to decline in 2023-2024. 
 
The Private Sewer Lateral Assistance program began in July 2012.  The budget reflects the projected direct 
repayments and annual payments to be collected on the tax roll in 2023-2024 from property owners that took 
advantage of the program to have the District pay for their sewer lateral repair or replacement.  Fewer anticipated 
loans are expected in 2023-2024 as home sales, a primary trigger for lateral sewer replacements, remain flat. 
 
The Miscellaneous revenue account allows various incidental or one-off payments to be deposited into the 
District’s operating account.  Revenue received this fiscal year included $85,900 in payment for the remaining 
unused Sharp Solar Panel Warranty value and $10,200 in payments from Marin County to reimburse the District 
for collecting wastewater samples for COVID-19 testing. Staff does not forecast a budget in this category, as 
they are difficult to project, but has included a small placeholder to assist with future accounting if needed.   

 
Capital Contributions / Capacity Related Revenue 
 
Annexation, Capital Facilities Charges (“CFC”), and Connections Fee activity for remodel permits and Accessory 
Dwelling Units (“ADUs”) has increased from prior years. CFC’s can be paid over 3 years as the project is 
developed. While the District is substantially built out and the pace of development is difficult to predict, staff are 
aware of a few large-scale development projects which are anticipated to be approved for connecting to the 
sewer system in 2023-2024.  State and local governments are looking at laws to allow additional expansion of 
ADUs to create more affordable housing and provide flexibility for families who wish to build a second unit on 
their property. ADUs are normally not subject to capacity or connection fees but can be billed a SSC depending 
on the size and number of units. Staff is budgeting $870,286 in receipts for capital facility charges for 2023-2024 
primarily the result of the two large projects under development.  A capacity fee study by HDR Engineering was 
completed in 2022 which, based on the cost-of-service for connecting to the system, adjusted the CFCs that can 
be imposed on development. Annexation and development fees are separate from the CFC connection fees. 
The interest income for this category is for existing CPC funds held on deposit, which must be expended only 
for capital projects that increase capacity to either the collection system or treatment plant. 
 
Marin Municipal Water District (“MMWD”) entered into an agreement in March 2017, to buy into the existing 
capacity of the Recycled Water Treatment Facility as well as participating in the debt service of the 2017 Revenue 
Bonds associated with the estimated cost for the expansion of the facility.  Through May 2023, the MMWD buy-
in and debt service funds were allocated to the Capital Reserves for their shared cost of the expansion project.  
Now that the project is complete, the buy-in and debt service payments received from MMWD will be allocated 
to undesignated Capital Reserves for future use by the District.  In addition, per the agreement, MMWD and 
LGVSD will meet in early 2023-2024 to review the construction costs of the projects and adjust the buy-in amount  
based on actual final costs of the project.  The Marin Municipal Water District Inter-Governmental capital 
contribution revenue line item includes $240,000 in 2023-2024 as a placeholder for anticipated revenue from the 
buy-in adjustment.    

107



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 
Proposed Budget – 2023-2024 

3 
 

 
There is only one pending disbursement of $567,760 from the IBank loan remaining, which will be disbursed 
once the Notice of Completion for the Secondary Treatment Plant Upgrade and Recycled Water (“STPURWE”) 
project is filed. The remaining funds will be returned to the general fund as STPURWE expenditures have already 
been paid. The disbursements budgeted are reflected in the Other category on the charts on the following pages. 
 
Federal and State grants may become available for wastewater infrastructure projects, but no specific grant has 
been identified let alone secured.  The District has contracted with a consultant to pursue alternative funding and 
is working with partner agencies, such as North Bay Water Reuse Authority, to investigate grant opportunities. 
It is wise for the District to design construction-ready projects to take advantage of any grants that become 
available, but it would not be prudent to anticipate revenue from grants at this time.  A Local Assistance Grant in 
the amount of $43,309 was obtained from CalRecycle in April 2022 which can be used for implementation of 
organic recycling programs in fiscal year 2023-2024 and beyond as mandated by SB 1383. A Zero Waste Marin 
reimbursement grant of $5,000 is anticipated in 2023-2024 to offset the District’s cost for various waste reduction 
laws and support projects that move Marin’s communities to Zero Waste.  
 

Utilization of Bond Funds and Reserves  
 
The Private Sewer Lateral (“PSL”) Assistance Program has continued to collect reimbursements for loans made 
to property owners.  No additional funding use has been proposed in recent years resulting in the balance in this 
program sitting at $394,015.  Funds must be sufficient to fund future assistance with anticipated revenue of 
$81,700 allocated for 2023-
2024.  The budget includes 
using $60,500 towards new 
loans in 2023-2024. 
 
The District has previously 
budgeted for projects that have 
not yet begun or are in the 
middle of construction,  which 
has created carry-over capital 
funding that is available for 
continuing projects. These 
projects are included in the 
Capital Outlay budget.  Any 
unused funding allocated to 
these projects will carry forward 
into 2023-2024.  A total of 
$8,751,119 of prior-year capital 
carry-over is budgeted for use in 
2023-2024.  
 
Capital Reserves used for the 
STPURWE Project were 
depleted by May 2023.  The Marin Municipal Water District (“MMWD”) Buy-In and their share of debt service 
payments collected for the STPURWE project and held in this reserve was used towards the completion of the 

108



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 
Proposed Budget – 2023-2024 

4 
 

project.  The projected Capital Reserve beginning balance of $5,649,747 includes $3,000,000 designated for the 
Operations Control Center (“OCC”) project.  There is no planned use of these funds in 2023-2024. 
 
Transfers from the Capacity / Connection Fee Facilities Fund, which has been growing as fees for new or 
additional connections to system are paid by developers, can be used to pay for collection system and plant 
capacity improvements necessary to serve those connections.  There is no planned use of these funds budgeted 
for 2023-2024. 
 
Transfers from the Marin Lagoon and Captains Cove restricted funds can be used towards repayment of 
operating and capital costs, including capital replacement and Board authorized capital projects, incurred for 
Marin Lagoon and Captains Cove collection systems.  A total of $52,200 is budgeted for 2023-2024. 
 
A new restricted Recycled Water Capital Repair and Replacement fund was recently established. The Bank of 
Marin Business Money Market account, previously used to receive MMWD’s contributions towards the 
STPURWE projects, has been repurposed to hold these funds.  It has been added to the Restricted Funds 
financial schedule with initial transfers into the fund expected to occur after meeting with MMWD to complete 
the first annual reconciliation of operating costs as required under the agreement between LGVSD and 
MMWD. 
 
The graph below shows the composition of District revenues for the past five fiscal years plus the projected 
2022-2023 and proposed budget for 2023-2024. 

  

109



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 
Proposed Budget – 2023-2024 

5 

EXPENDITURES 
 
The Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB), which is recognized as the official source of GAAP for 
state and local governments, establishes modified accrual accounting standards. Modified accrual accounting 
is used and accepted by governmental agencies because they focus on current-year obligations.  Las Gallinas 
Valley Sanitary District Policy F-40-20 (Basis of Budgeting), required that all budgetary procedures conform to 
state regulations and generally accepted accounting principles.  As such, the District uses a modified accrual 
basis of accounting for reporting on budgeted versus actual expenditures, with the following exceptions: 

 

• Grant revenues are budgeted on a modified cash basis rather than an accrual basis. 

• Fixed assets are depreciated for some financial reporting but are fully expensed in the year acquired for 
budgetary purposes. 

 
Modified accrual accounting is an alternative bookkeeping method that combines accrual-basis accounting with 
cash-basis accounting. It recognizes revenues when they become available and measurable and, with a few 
exceptions, records expenditures when liabilities are incurred. 
 
The General Manager and Administrative Services Manager are responsible for development of internal 
accounting policies and procedures necessary to implement financial policies and to ensure that internal 
controls, processes, and procedures follow the California State Controller’s Office Internal Control Guidelines 
pursuant to CGC section 12422.5 and are adequate to protect the finances of the District. 
 
Expenditures of the District are broken down into the following categories:  
  

1. Operations and 
Maintenance 
Expenses (including 
salary & benefits)  

2. Debt Service 

3. Reserve Funding 

4. Capital Outlay 

 
The District’s largest 
expenditure category is 
Capital Outlay followed by 
Operations and 
Maintenance. The 
operations and 
maintenance expense, debt 
service, reserve and 
restricted funding, and 
capital outlay financials 
have been reviewed and 
comments on key items of interest are being provided to the Board to facilitate discussion.  The Board can 
review its reserve policy and establish reserve funding targets for the Operating & Rate Stabilization Reserve, 
Emergency Repair, Capital Reserves, and Vehicle and Equipment Reserve as part of the budget process. 

110



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 
Proposed Budget – 2023-2024 

6 

 
 

Operations and Maintenance Expenses 
 

Employee Expenses: 
 
Staff salaries are projected to increase but the actual increase is not yet known. The current Memorandum of 
Understanding (“MOU”) between the District and Operating Engineers Local 3 (“OE3”) unpresented employees 
will expire June 30, 2023.  Bargaining sessions are underway and a cost-of-living adjustment is anticipated. The 
budget includes funding for one additional full-time position being proposed for 2023-2024. Vacant positions in 
2022-23 resulted in actual salary expenses to be lower than budgeted.  The budget for 2023-24 is based on the 
District maintaining full-staffing levels throughout the year. 
 
Payroll taxes, group life insurance, CalPERS retirement, Health benefits, Dental, and Vision insurance are 
projected to increase over prior year actuals as new employees are hired to fill approved and proposed positions. 
 
CalPERS contributions are projected from regular wages with the published employer contribution rate of 15.95% 
for classic members (up slightly from 14.03%) and 7.68% (up from 7.49%) for PEPRA in 2023-2024.  Staff who 
became CalPERS members after 2013 are covered by the PEPRA plan which requires lower retirement 
contributions by the District. PEPRA employees are required to contribute 8% towards their retirement per MOU. 
The District’s share of CalPERS contributions in 2023-2024 is projected to increase 1.4% over prior year actuals. 
 
Health insurance is projected based on the known rates for July through December 2023 and the application of 
an estimated health insurance trend rate of +1% for the remainder of 2023-2024. CalPERS Health will set the 
coverage rates for 2024 in the summer of 2023. The expense also reflects costs associated with one new 
proposed position for 2023-2024. Other Post-Employment Benefits (“OPEB”) retiree health benefits for prior 
employees and pre-funded expenditures for current employees based on the GASB 75 actuarial valuation 
measurement date June 30, 2021 are included under health benefit expenses. 
 
The Auto Allowance is a vehicle allowance benefit for management employees who have this benefit included 
in their contracts. Managers who opt to use a District vehicle are not be entitled to the auto allowance.  A cost-
of-living adjustment for the vehicle Auto Allowance will be made on July 1, 2023, subject to Board approval. 
 

Proposed New Position: 
 
Board Financial Policy F-40-40 grants exclusive authority to the Board to increase the number of authorized staff 
at the District.  Historically, new staff positions are considered as part of the budget process.  After a review of 
operational needs management is recommending the addition of one new staff position, increasing the full-time 
equivalent positions from 30 to 31.  The following position is proposed:  
 
Grant Management and Purchasing Procurement Specialist  
In today's dynamic and resource-constrained environment, organizations, especially those with limited staff and 
shared responsibilities, often find themselves overwhelmed by the administrative burden associated with grant 
writing and purchasing procurement. To alleviate this strain and maximize efficiency, the need for a dedicated 
Grant Managment and Purchasing Procurement Specialist becomes crucial. This specialized role will not only 
relieve current staff of these time-consuming tasks, but also ensure a streamlined process, increased 
competitiveness in securing grants, and effective management of procurement procedures. Currently the District 
is dependent on outside consultants to identify grant funding. By investing in a professional with expertise in 

111



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 
Proposed Budget – 2023-2024 

7 

these areas, the organization can focus on its core mission and goals while leveraging the specialist's skills to 
drive success. 
 
The Grant Management and Purchasing Procurement Specialist would be responsible for managing grant writing 
activities and overseeing the purchasing procurement process. Reporting to the Administrative Services 
Manager, this junior or senior-level position would require strong skills in accounting, grant writing, and 
procurement to support the District's financial operations and funding acquisition goals.  
 
The proposed budget includes $108,000 in salary and $46,000 for benefits for this new position. The total cost 
of $154,000 is estimated based on filling the position with a junior-level grant specialist who takes advantage of 
the District’s offered CalPERS Health family benefit option.  Actual salary will be higher if the position is filled by 
a senior-level candidate. 
 
The development of the job classification, establishment of compensation for our market, and creation of salary 
range would be initiated upon Board approval of the budget and authorization to increase staff count.  
 

Insurance: 
 
Workers compensation insurance is based on projected wages for 2023-2024, plus the addition of full-time 
positions being filled, and a decrease in the experience modification factor from 0.94 to 0.89 based on the 
District’s recent claims history. The Workers Compensation Insurance Rating Board (WCIRB) continues to use 
the simplified Experience Rating Formula which removes the first $250 of each claim for the calculation.  The 
increase in the projected 2022-2023 actuals is attributable to new employee positions filled in 2022-2023. 
 
Pooled liability insurance includes general liability and mobile equipment, billed separately.  The general liability 
insurance premium period is based on a calendar year and the mobile equipment on a fiscal year basis.  The 
liability insurance is the larger premium for which the yearly cost is known based on the current billing, a modest 
increase of 1% over 2022 has been calculated for liability insurance. Budget is to be adjusted once the invoice 
for actual July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024 insurance is received, usually in late May or early June. 
 
Property insurance is reported on the same line item with general liability.  Since 2018, significant events have 
driven the property insurance market to tighten substantially.  Prior events in 2020 and 2021 have further 
aggravated market conditions and the firming trend is expected to continue.  Property insurance rates are 
estimated to increase 20% or an additional $23,550 because of market conditions.  In addition, the new 
construction values related to the STPURWE Project will be added to the Schedule of Values (SOV) upon Notice 
of Completion which will increase the Total Insurance Value by an additional 7.5%, resulting in a significant 
premium increase at renewal estimated at an additional $32,380 for 2023-2024. Once the property insurance 
invoice is received this budget line item will be revised with the final budget presented in June. 
 

Repairs and Maintenance: 
 
Most repairs and maintenance expenses are coordinated by the Maintenance Supervisor, but actual expenses 
related to assets are allocated to the respective financial class Collection System, Pump Station, Treatment 
Plant, or Recycled Water for proper accounting. Management work together to authorize and approve expenses.  
Inflation and logistic delays have had an impact on the costs of parts and services in 2023.  It is anticipated that 
continued inflationary factors will influence costs into 2024.  The Repair and Maintenance budget for 2023-2024 
is projected to decrease $130,100 over the prior year budget (equal to 12.48%) but increase $145,928 over the 
projected actual expenses (equal to 19.05%).   
 

112



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 
Proposed Budget – 2023-2024 

8 

The building and grounds maintenance budget includes having an outside firm perform yard work on the main 
building landscape and reflects expenses related to maintenance work performed by the District’s skilled 
maintenance employees. It also includes monthly Jefferson Security Fire Suppression monitoring expenses. A 
large expense is expected for algae control at the reclamation area storage pond. 
 
Power generation maintenance and repairs consists of work performed on the photovoltaic system and its 
conversion to a new solar farm managed through a power purchase agreement (PPA), a maintenance contract 
for the BERS turbines, and maintenance of the CNG fill stations at the treatment plant and the Smith Ranch 
Road pump station. Costs will decrease once the Solar PV System Replacement project is complete in late 2024.  
 
Capital repairs/replacements consist of items that are long-lived or life extending in nature but are not included 
in the capital improvements budget. They are either items that are capital in nature, but the replacement/repair 
is not anticipated as part of the initial capital outlay budget or items such as small pumps and equipment with a 
cost under the $5,000 capitalization threshold.  The budget has been reduced from prior years anticipating fewer 
capital replacement projects. 
 

Other Operating Expenses: 
 
Chemical costs will be substantially higher in 2023-2024. The budget is based on past usage and the expected 
increased chemical use in recycled water production. As a member agency of The Bay Area Chemical 
Consortium (“BACC”), the District benefits from regional bids for chemicals by wastewater agencies in the Bay 
Area.  All agencies have experienced an increase in chemical costs over the last year.  Unit prices beginning 
July 1 for hypochlorite will increase 82% and bisulfite 25%. Costs associated with recycled water production are 
recoverable based on the percentage of water received by each of LGVSD, MMWD, and NMWD. 
 
Outside services includes services related to personnel and HR services such as CPS HR consultants, guard 
service, labor relations, janitorial services, security patrols and alarm monitoring, portable restroom rentals, 
alternate grant funding studies, and other incidental outside operating expenses. Consultants include costs for 
climate assessments, Canada goose project and reporting to NPDES, support for solar panel energy 
management in the reclamation area, MMWD water data review and rate setting assistance, recruitment, labor 
relations, and for organizational and Board development.   
 
Reclamation expenses include pasture disking and marsh pond vegetation management.  Sludge Disposal cost 
for injecting digested biosolids in the District’s dedicated disposal site is not required over the next few years 
while the biosolids feasibility study is underway, which requires land disposal of solids as part of the test study 
period. The amount is based on prior year activity, however long-range system improvements will lead to 
increased costs, which will hopefully be offset by a regional program and associated fees. 
 
Feasibility studies that are not capital improvement or capacity related are treated as an operational expense.  
These studies include projects such as biogas, compost feasibility, sea level rise adaptation and drought 
contingency planning. A total of $100,000 is budgeted for 2023-2024 for continuing and additional studies. The 
Biosolids Program Monitoring Research Support & Flood Protection program is a capital project as it is part of 
an EPA biosolids project and is budgeted separately in the District’s Capital Improvement Program.  
 
Financial services include actuarial valuations, sewer rate studies, and arbitrage compliance services. Actual 
prior year costs plus anticipated incidental financial services in 2023-2024 is the basis for this budget item. 
 
 
 

113



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 
Proposed Budget – 2023-2024 

9 

General and Administrative: 
 
Election costs are budged at $25,000 bi-annually, every even fiscal year, and is based on estimated billings from 
the Marin County Registrar of Voters if an election were to be held. 
 
Computer Services and Software includes annual software renewals, outside computer network support, Zoom 
video conference, and other incidental computer software products. As software companies move away from 
providing owned software licenses and switch to a Software-as-a-Service (“SaaS”) licensing and delivery model, 
in which software is licensed on a subscription basis and is centrally hosted, the District will see these expenses 
rise. CityWorks, ArcGIS, SCADA, and the Caselle Accounting Enterprise Resource Planning (“ERP”) software 
all follow SaaS licensing models. Computer equipment below the capital asset threshold is replaced as needed 
under the Office Supplies & Equipment cost center.  
 
Public education and outreach expenses are for the joint efforts with other Marin County wastewater treatment 
agencies, web site maintenance, donation requests from community groups for funding, special mailings and for 
the District’s newsletter and annual sewer rate change mailings. 
 
Rents and leases include the annual administration office lease at 101 Lucas Valley Road ($125,900), lease of 
the postage machine, off-site records storage, railroad easements and copiers. The District must still prepare for 
Public Safety Power Shutoffs (PSPS) events from PG&E initiated by high-risk weather conditions. While the risk 
is lower this year for wildfire related outages because of the winter rains, events such as high heat may still 
trigger power outages in our area and will require that we have standby generators and fuel ready for power 
outages. Rents and leases assigned to pump stations are for portable standby generators for PSPS events and 
is budgeted at $27,200. 
 
Employee training and education includes the cost for the District to participate in the Liebert Cassidy Whitmore 
employment relations consortium and other offsite training. The District expects an increase in offsite training 
conferences in 2023 and 2024 now that COVID-19 related restrictions have been lifted, and the budget reflects 
this increase over the current year actuals but are slightly lower than last year’s budget. 
 

Debt Service 
 
The District has five issuances of debt outstanding.  They are as follows: 
 

• Certificates of Participation (COP) with an original principal amount of $10,000,000, which were issued 
in 2005, and have annual principal and interest payments through December 2025. The District 
refinanced them at a reduced interest rate of 3.3% which will save interest over the remaining life and 
will result in lower annual payments.  The principal balance remaining is scheduled to be $2,068,800 as 
of July 1, 2023. 

• State Revolving Fund Loan (SRF) was a construction loan which originated in 2010 and was completely 
drawn down in 2012.  The original principal amount was $4,314,750 with annual principal and interest 
payments through June 2032.  The interest rate is 2.7%.  The principal balance remaining is scheduled 
to be $2,254,100 as of July 1, 2023. 

• Bank of Marin Loan #1 which originated in 2011 with a principal amount of $4,600,000.  Monthly principal 
and interest payments are due through June 2031.  The interest rate is 3.88%.  The principal balance 
remaining is scheduled to be $2,279,776 as of July 1, 2023. 

114



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 
Proposed Budget – 2023-2024 

10 

• 2017 Revenue Bonds were issued in April 2017 with a principal amount of $38,365,000.  The true interest 
rate to maturity is 3.2984%.  Annual principal and interest payments are due through April 2042.  The 
principal balance remaining is scheduled to be $32,265,000 as of July 1, 2023. 

• The District entered into an agreement with California Infrastructure and Economic Development Bank 
(IBank) in May 2019 for a loan of $12,000,000.  The loan has a maturity date ranging from August 1, 
2019 through August 1, 2043.  The interest rate on the loan is 3.0% per annum. The principal balance 
remaining is scheduled to be $10,623,024 as of July 1, 2023.  An annual service fee, $31,869 for 2023-
2024, is treated as an Operating & Maintenance expense but recognized as debt service for budget 
purposes.  The annual fee is not reported as a long-term obligation in audited financials. 

 
The debt service does not reflect the reimbursement to be received from MMWD for buying into the existing 
recycled water treatment facility or their portion of the 2017 Revenue Bonds. The payments received from 
MMWD will continue to be transferred to capital reserves. If the Board chooses to recognize debt service 
payments from MMWD as a reimbursement to the general operating account for debt service payments, rather 
than funding of the capital reserve, the District’s 2017 Revenue Bonds debt obligation would be lower.  
 
The Debt Service Coverage Ratio (DSCR) for the District for 2023-2024, based on the presented budget and 
debt service, is determined by dividing the Net Operating Income ($9,111,573) by Total Debt Service 
($4,496,574).  The calculated DSCR for 2023-2024 is therefore 2.03.  The District is required to maintain a DSCR 
of 1.25 or higher due to bond covenants and we are above this minimum. The District includes both its operating 
income and non-operating income, primarily guaranteed property taxes, in determining its Net Operating Income 
which is used in the calculation of DSCR.  When specifically included in a utility’s bond indenture, rate 
stabilization reserves can be used to help meet debt service coverage requirements during times of revenue 
shortfalls. 

 

Reserves 

 
District Financial Policy F-50 (Reserves) establishes reserves, explains the purpose and reasons for the size of 
each reserve, and provides for oversight of reserves. 
 

Operating & Rate Stabilization Reserve has a target of a minimum balance equal to 7 months of average 
annual budgeted expenses.  Based on reserve fund policy the reserve target for 2023-2024 is therefore 
$10,007,000 but the reserve only has balance $3,608,771 at the beginning of the upcoming fiscal year.  
The budget includes adding $639,823, one-tenth of the reserve target shortfall, to the budget for 2023-
2024.  The reserve has been established to fund unexpected expense increases and can be used to help 
stabilize sewer service charge rate swings.  

• Emergency repair reserve target of $1,000,000 was met in fiscal year ended June 30, 2017.  Staff 
recommends increasing this reserve to $1,500,000 to adjust for inflation and construction price increases, 
to be built up over 2-3 years.  The budget is proposing $166,667 be added to the reserve in 2023-2024. 

• The Capital Reserves has held funds for use towards the Secondary Treatment Plant Upgrade and 
Recycled Water Expansion (STPURWE) project since 2017. It included payments from MMWD required 
to service the 2017 Revenue Bonds.  With the project complete, the Board authorized transferring the 
remaining STPURWE designated Capital Reserves to the general operating account as reimbursement 
for project payments paid from the general fund.  In addition, the Board designated $3,000,000 to be 
transferred to the District’s Capital Reserve fund for the purpose of constructing an Operating Control 

115



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 
Proposed Budget – 2023-2024 

11 

Center (OCC).  The proposed budget for 2023-2024 includes adding an additional $3,000,000 to the 
OCC Designated Capital Reserve and $535,025 additional undesignated funding.   

• Vehicle and Equipment Reserve (VERF) was established in fiscal year 2019-2020 to fund vehicle and 
equipment replacements.  The reserve was established at $1,000,000 and was set up with funds held in 
the District’s LAIF account.  The Board authorized the purchase of new vehicles mid-year, reducing the 
projected end of year balance.  The Vac-Con collection truck was not replaced in 2022-2023 and 
therefore less authorized reserve was used in 2022-2023. Staff suggest restoring the VERF target 
balance over 2 to 3 years while a VERF Replacement Program and Schedule is developed.  A total of 
$58,148 is therefore budgeted for 2023-2024 to replenish the VERF to its target before anticipated 
withdraws for additional new vehicles in 2026-2027. 

• Capacity Connection Fee reserve fund is restricted for the use of collection system and plant capacity 
improvements to serve the new connections that contributed to the fund through fees collected. Two 
large projects are anticipated to add $1,453,365 to the fund over two years, with 60% ($872,019) to be 
received in 2023-2024.   

• Captains Cove and Marin Lagoon are restricted reserves built up when there is an excess of special 
assessments over projected operations, maintenance and capital expenditures which are collected for 
these developments.  Both funds will be drawn down to pay for operational and capital projects.  A rate 
surcharge rate study was undertaken as part of the 2023 Sewer Service Rate Study, and it determined 
that Captains Cove and Marin Lagoon contributions are sufficient to continue the ongoing operations and 
maintenance needs of the pump stations serving these communities. Larger capital improvement projects 
may require an increase in the surcharge in a future fiscal year budget. 

• Recycled Water Capital Repair and Replacement restricted reserve fund was created in May 2023.  
LGVSD and MMWD are required to contribute 10% of the total annual recycled water O&M costs into 
this restricted fund for future capital expenditures to the Recycled Water Treatment Facility. A total of 
$22,348 will be added to the restricted fund in 2023-2024. 
 

 

Capital Outlay 
 
The District is required to budget for the adequate maintenance of capital equipment and facilities to protect the 
public investment and ensure achievement of their maximum useful life.  The District is required to prepare and 
adopt a at minimum a 5-Year Capital Improvement Program (“CIP”) as part of the rate setting process that 
identifies and sets priorities for all major capital assets to be acquired, constructed, or replaced by the District.  
The District has prepared a 7-Year CIP to address larger projects that have been identified for 2028 through 
2030.  District policy requires the CIP be included in the adopted budget and that the status of the CIP is updated 
annually as part of the budget process. 
 
The CIP shall identify adequate funding to support the acquisition, construction and replacement of assets 
identified in the plan, and shall identify projects that the District believes beneficial to the system, but funding has 
not yet been identified.  The CIP shall include and indicate when and for what projects the District intends to 
finance through the issuance of debt.  Additionally, the District shall strive to develop a comprehensive strategy 
and funding plan for the renewal and replacement of existing capital assets. 
 
The Capital Outlay budget contains projects specifically identified in the 7-Year CIP for 2023-2024 through 
2029-2030 plus miscellaneous capital needs that change yearly.  The 2024-2030 years are rough estimates 

116



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 
Proposed Budget – 2023-2024 

12 

that will be updated as the District’s Integrated Wastewater Master Plan is finalized over the next year. The 
proposed 2023-2024 Budget only includes funding approval for projects identified in the first year of the CIP.  
 
The Capital Outlay Budget is attached at the end of this report and contains the list of projects to be funded 
with the adoption of this budget.  The additional projects listed in the Capital Improvement Programs are 
proposed for future years and they will require their own funding approval as part of their respective yearly 
budget.   
 
 
Most of Capital Outlay expenses in recent years have been related to the Secondary Treatment Plant Upgrade 
Recycled Water Expansion Project but this will change as we head into 2023-2024. Collection system projects, 
including the restarting of the Sewer Main Collection System Rehabilitation Program, will comprise most of the 
capital budget in 2023-2024, with total collection system project costs budgeted at $5,612,245. 
 
 

The following is a graph showing the composition of District expenditures for the past 4 fiscal years plus the 
budget for 2023-2024.  
 

 
 
Supporting Financial Statements are attached to this report on the following pages.  

117



2022-23 2022-23 2023-24
Adopted Projected Draft

Budget Actuals Budget

Beginning Balance (July 1): 35,050,306$        35,050,306$       29,160,891$   

     Revenue:

        Rate Revenues (1) 16,910,508$        17,102,767$       18,984,072$   
        Other Operating revenue (1) 248,770               350,136              255,835          
        Non-operating revenue (1) 2,223,923            2,391,092           2,475,766       
        Capital / Capacity Related 2,933,936            789,617              1,508,200       

     Expenditures:

        Operating expense (2) (11,458,900)         (10,760,146)       (12,604,100)    
        Debt Service (3) (4,527,723)           (4,527,724)         (4,496,574)      
        Capital outlay (23,318,068)         (11,235,158)       (15,932,540)    

Ending Balance (June 30): 18,062,752$        29,160,891$       19,351,549$   

        Reserves and Restricted Funds 7,821,358$          12,154,310$       16,992,054$   
        Unrestricted Funds 10,241,394$        17,006,581$       2,359,496$     

NOTE:

IBank Installment Sale Agreement retention of $567,460 included in the beginning balance, it is considered cash 

for accounting purposes while held by IBank until disbursement occurs.

2022-23 2022-23 2023-24
Adopted Projected Draft

   DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE RATIO (DSCR) Budget Actuals Budget

      Net Operating Income (NOI) = (1) - (2) 7,924,301$          9,083,849$         9,111,573$     
      Total Debt Service = (3) 4,527,723$          4,527,724$         4,496,574$     
      DSCR = NOI  / Debt Service  (Estimate *) 1.75 2.01 2.03

Hildeguard Consulting used 3% inflation factor in 2023 Sewer Charge Rate Study.  Actual annual inflation rate of 4.2% as of April 2023
   *  Actual DSCR will be determined at the end of the fiscal year based on actual revenue and expenditures.

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
BALANCE STATEMENT & ACCOUNT INFORMATION

DRAFT BUDGET - JUNE 1, 2023

   BALANCE STATEMENT

Last update:5/18/2023 1 of 1118



2021-22 2022-23 2022-23 2023-24 % Change
Revenue Final Adopted Projected Draft Over Prior

Description Audited Actual Budget End of Year Budget Year Budget

OPERATING REVENUE

Sewer Service User Charges 15,491,846$      16,910,508$    17,102,767$    18,984,072$          10.92%

Recycled Water (MMWD / NMWD) 127,742             172,000           165,352           165,400                 -3.99%

Inspections/Permits/Application Fee 67,176               75,520             83,500             75,150                   -0.49%
Miscellaneous Operating Revenue 500                    1,250               101,284           15,285                   

Total Operating Revenue 15,687,264        17,159,278      17,452,903      19,239,907            10.81%

NON-OPERATING REVENUE

Property Tax 1,106,077          1,262,092        1,193,601        1,229,409              -2.66%

Suppl. Property Tax Assess. 36,265               27,695             34,530             32,501                   14.79%

Educational Revenue Augmentation Fund 559,681             584,867           486,032           507,904                 -15.15%

Homeowner Property Tax Relief 4,323                 4,453               2,302               2,371                     -87.81%

Franchise Fees Marin Sanitary Service 162,382             169,776           182,480           197,991                 14.25%

Private Sewer Lateral Assistance Program 109,527             79,300             95,875             81,700                   2.94%

Interest Income 4,067                 2,640               3,991               2,790                     5.38%

Interest on Reserves and LAIF 101,501             68,100             360,130           396,100                 82.81%
Reimbursements / Pass thru -                         25,000             32,151             25,000                   

2,083,822          2,223,923        2,391,092        2,475,766              10.17%

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS / CAPACITY RELATED 

Annex, Capital Facility Charges, Connection Fees 468,273             1,740,572        396,606           870,286                 

Interest on Connection Fee Fund 750                    964                  1,155               1,733                     

Interest on Bond Funds 7                        7                      3                      4                            
Marin Municipal Water District Inter-Governmental 463,269             619,633           388,733           631,177                 

IBank Loan Disbursements 5,124,515          567,760           -                567,760                 

Federal Grants -                   -                 -                -                            
State Grants 645,535             5,000               3,120               5,000                     

6,702,350          2,933,936        789,617           2,075,960              -41.33%

TOTAL REVENUES 24,473,435$      22,317,137$    20,633,612$    23,791,633$          6.20%

UTILIZATION OF BOND FUNDS AND RESERVES
2021-22      

Actual Use
Adopted 
Available

2022-23 
Projected Use Budgeted

Operating Reserves / Rate Stabilization -                   -                 -                -                            

Private Sewer Lateral Assistance Funds -                   59,800             68,045             60,500                   

PY Capital Outlay Carryover Utilized 8,673,100          16,268,568      10,982,043      8,751,119              

Capital Construction Project Reserve 3,389,949          800,000           2,196,165        -                            
Interest Earned on Unspent IBank Funds 5,104                 -                 1,578               6,495                     

Transfers from Marin Lagoon Restricted Fund 142,989             107,700           23,304             26,600                   
Transfers from Captains Cove Restricted Fund 63,793               12,400             8,324               24,800                   

Transfers from Capacity Connection Fee Fund 200,000             -                 -                -                            

    SUB TOTAL 12,474,935        17,248,468      13,279,458      8,869,514              -94.47%

TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE FOR EXPENDITURES 36,948,370$      39,565,605$    33,913,070$    32,661,147$          

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
REVENUE

PROPOSED BUDGET FY 2023-2024  - JUNE 1, 2023

Last update:5/18/2023 1 of 1119



2021-22 2022-23 2022-23 2023-24 % Change
Final Adopted Projected Draft Over Prior

Actual Budget End of Year Budget Year Budget

OPERATING EXPENSES

   EMPLOYEE WAGES 3,984,223         4,618,500       4,082,263         4,846,200            4.93%

   EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 2,002,674         2,014,700       1,981,304         2,059,200            2.21%

   INSURANCE EXPENSE 256,721             304,000          407,170            473,100               55.63%

   REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE 684,288             1,042,200       766,172            912,100               -12.48%

   SUPPLIES & SMALL TOOLS 481,347             624,700          727,532            1,250,400            100.16%

   CONTRACTED SERVICES 999,513             1,459,300       1,146,083         1,345,300            -7.81%

   UTILITIES 643,438             567,400          834,227            873,300               53.91%

   GENERAL & ADMINSTRATIVE 445,919             828,100          815,396            844,500               1.98%

   OPERATING EXPENSE TOTALS 9,498,124$       11,458,900$   10,760,146$     12,604,100$        9.99%

DEBT SERVICE

   DEBT SERVICE TOTALS 4,728,310$       4,527,723$     4,527,724$       4,496,574$          -0.69%

RESERVE FUNDING

   OPERATING & RATE STABILIZATION 787,964             635,195          635,195            636,623               0.22%

   EMERGENCY REPAIR -                         -                      -                        166,667               

   CAPITAL RESERVES 864,274             336,464          3,977,802         3,535,025            950.64%

   VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT (VERF) 379,090             150,755          150,755            58,148                 -61.43%

   CAPACITY  (RESTRICTED FUND) 470,689             1,741,536       397,761            872,019               -49.93%

   CAPTAINS COVE (RESTRICTED FUND) 48,025               16,025            16,003              16,010                 -0.09%

   MARIN LAGOON (RESTRICTED FUND) 74,372               21,106            24,787              24,780                 17.41%

   RECYCLED WATER (RESTRICTED FUND) -                         -                      -                        22,348                 

   RESERVE FUNDING TOTALS 2,624,414$       2,901,081$     5,202,303$       5,331,620$          83.78%
  

CAPITAL OUTLAY

   CAPITAL OUTLAY 12,784,041$     23,318,068$   11,235,158$     15,932,540$        -31.67%

TOTAL BUDGET

   TOTAL BUDGET 29,634,889$     42,205,772$   31,725,331$     38,364,834$        -9.10%

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
BUDGET SUMMARY

PROPOSED BUDGET FY 2023-2024  - JUNE 1, 2023

Last update:5/18/2023 1 of 1120



2021-22 2022-23 2022-23 2023-24 % Change

Acct. Final Adopted Projected Draft Over Prior
Num. Actual Budget End of Year Budget Year Budget Notes

EMPLOYEE WAGES
1003 Regular Staff Salaries  (1901) 3,364,837$   4,072,400$        3,487,332$     4,154,700$       2.02% Vacancies in FY 22-23 resulted in lower actual salary

1004 Extra Hire  (1005) 107,039        5,200 47,693            17,400              234.62% Temp help from OTS for EIT, Plant Ops, and Lab

1008 Over Time  (1011) 148,502        165,700             120,910          170,400            2.84%

1010 Stand By 84,048          92,500               84,864            120,800            30.59% 9/80 weekend coverage began in April 2023

1014 Emergency Response Stipend 45,626          46,900               55,357            65,100              N/A

1015 Certification Stipend 88,416          84,000               118,460          137,000            N/A More employees obtaining Dual and Triple Cert

1016 Longevity Pay 66,350          71,200               100,076          103,200            N/A Increased along with salary for long term employees

1036 Directors Fees 79,405          80,600               67,572            77,600              -3.72%

TOTAL EMPLOYEE WAGES 3,984,223     4,618,500          4,082,263       4,846,200         4.93%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
1009 Vacation and Sick Accrual 79,455          64,000               64,000            64,000              N/A Actual to be calcuated as of June 30

1901 COVID-19 Leave 11,466          - 27,430            - N/A Federal program ended, use of sick leave now

1037 Directors Benefits 9,438            9,700 10,858            10,900              12.37%

1404 Payroll Taxes (SSI) 270,260        287,100             271,281          308,700            7.52%

1502 Group Life Insurance 6,802            8,700 11,435            19,200              120.69%

1507 PERS 839,477        787,500             712,444          722,400            -8.27%

1509 Health Insurance 723,307        787,000             790,071          873,800            11.03%

1510 Dental Insurance 21,459          16,500               48,177            61,600              273.33%

1514 Vision Insurance 2,786            3,300 3,787              8,200 148.48%

1516 Long Term Disability 24,045          34,100               31,991            43,000              26.10%

2006 Auto Allowance 9,582            16,800               9,831              11,400              -32.14%

2007 Commute Vehicle Stipend 4,597            - - -  Program no longer exists

TOTAL EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 2,002,674     2,014,700          1,981,304       2,059,200         2.21%

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE EXPENSE

Expense Description

PROPOSED BUDGET FY 2023-2024  - JUNE 1, 2023

Last update:5/18/2023 1 of 4121



2021-22 2022-23 2022-23 2023-24 % Change

Acct. Final Adopted Projected Draft Over Prior
Num. Actual Budget End of Year Budget Year Budget Notes

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE EXPENSE

Expense Description

PROPOSED BUDGET FY 2023-2024  - JUNE 1, 2023

INSURANCE
1701 Workers' Comp Insurance 65,489          72,900               138,848          156,200            114.27% New employees in 22-23 and  1 new proposed in 23-24

2060 Pooled Liability & Property Insurance 190,185        230,000             267,222          315,800            37.30% Prop insurance will increase once STPURWE is complete

2061 Fidelity Bond 1,047            1,100 1,100              1,100 0.00%

TOTAL INSURANCE EXPENSE 256,721        304,000             407,170          473,100            55.63%

REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE
2083 Vehicle Parts & Maintenance 32,106          31,600               52,155            55,400              75.32%

2096 Building maintenance 26,506          96,300               60,634            63,100              -34.48%

2097 Grounds Maintenance 62,964          109,300             49,798            156,700            43.37% Reclamation storage pond algae control

2331 Reclamation Pasture and Pond Maint.         (23 99,738          193,400             158,453          181,400            -6.20%

2538 Power Generation Maint & Repair 26,528          32,800               24,846            26,000              -20.73% Solar PV, BERS, and CNG stations

2365 Equipment Maintenance 65,152          81,500               76,245            93,000              14.11%

2366 Equipment Repair 311,717        174,900             200,024          153,100            -12.46%

2367 Capital Repairs/Replacements 59,578          322,400             144,018          183,400            -43.11%

TOTAL REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE 684,288        1,042,200          766,172          912,100            -12.48%

SUPPLIES & SMALL TOOLS

2107 Hypochlorite 117,444        206,900             281,520          536,600            159.35%

2110 Bisulfite 62,299          85,400               162,868          203,600 138.41%

Hypo prices up and increase use over wet weather periods

Bisulfite price up 25% plus higher use during wet weather

2109 Miscellaneous Chemicals 45,670          73,100               43,860            69,300              -5.20%

2362 General Operating & Lab Supplies (2115) 87,564          85,300               61,903            76,600              -10.20%

2501 Fuel, Oil, and CNG for Vehicles (2501-2506) 44,383          43,000               49,113            56,100              30.47% Increase in fuel costs

2389 Safety Equipment & Supplies 47,240          49,000               58,339            50,800              3.67% Satellite phones, new AEDs, new employees

2397 Safety Services 58,825          57,400               56,736            60,000              4.53% Du-All

2249 Small Tools 17,923          24,600               13,194            19,200              -21.95%

TOTAL SUPPLIES & SMALL TOOLS 481,347        624,700             727,532          1,072,200  71.63%

Last update:5/18/2023 2 of 4122



2021-22 2022-23 2022-23 2023-24 % Change

Acct. Final Adopted Projected Draft Over Prior
Num. Actual Budget End of Year Budget Year Budget Notes

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE EXPENSE

Expense Description

PROPOSED BUDGET FY 2023-2024  - JUNE 1, 2023

CONTRACTED SERVICES
2117 Lab Contract Services 50,271          54,400               57,744            70,600              29.78% New ELAP and TNI Standards

2119 Pollution Prevention Program 15,451         16,600             20,737          21,600            30.12%

2320 Outside Services  (2321, 2322, 2323, 2326) 164,626        310,700             114,605          280,900            -9.59%

2324 Janitorial 23,507          22,500               22,760            23,700              5.33%

2327 Uniform Service 13,112          13,600               14,939            15,500              13.97%

2330 Damage Claim - 20,000               - 20,000              0.00%

2334 Sludge Disposal Inject 96,919          102,700             102,650          2,000 -98.05%

2354 SCADA Engineering Support - 67,200               66,934            69,600              N/A

2357 Regulatory Consultant 163,593        186,400             152,337          163,900            -12.07% EOA

2358 Pass-thru & Gen. Small Projects (2355) 14,411          15,900               55,912            57,600              262.26% Increase in general small engineering projects

2359 Feasibility Studies 75,711          91,600               82,000            100,000            9.17% Sea Level Rise and Drought Contingency

2360 Consultants - Other 112,538        198,700             246,979                      374,900 88.68%

2713 Legal 190,966        186,600             87,642                        179,600 -3.75%

2717 Audit 27,160          27,200               22,710            22,700              -16.54%

2718 Financial Services 4,849            35,400               28,622            35,400              0.00% Specify and update

2801 Private Lateral Rehab Assist. Program 46,400          59,800               68,045            60,500              1.17%

2802 Low-Income Rate Assistance Program - 50,000               1,468              25,000              N/A

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES 999,513        1,459,300          1,146,083                1,523,500 4.40%

UTILITIES
2533 Internet 7,905            7,800 10,456            11,000              41.03% Adjusted costs between internet and telephone

2534 Telephone 48,177          49,600               41,729            44,600              -10.08% Adjusted costs between internet and telephone

2535 Utility Power 557,748        476,100             732,103          765,700            60.83% Increased electrical costs until solar PV installed

2536 Water 29,609          33,900               49,939            52,000              53.39% Increase of water to actual is 4.13% higher

TOTAL UTILITIES 643,438        567,400             834,227          873,300            53.91%

Last update:5/18/2023 3 of 4123



2021-22 2022-23 2022-23 2023-24 % Change

Acct. Final Adopted Projected Draft Over Prior
Num. Actual Budget End of Year Budget Year Budget Notes

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE EXPENSE

Expense Description

PROPOSED BUDGET FY 2023-2024  - JUNE 1, 2023

GENERAL & ADMINSTRATIVE

1006 Payroll Processing 23,438          24,900               20,525            24,900              0.00%

2477 Conferences 21,592          52,600               57,258            71,200              35.36% Rise in 2022-23 after COVID Emergency lifted

2479 Mileage and Travel 920               4,600 2,583              5,200 13.04%

2129 Election - 25,000               250 25,300              N/A

2133 Office Supplies & Equipment 37,887          42,800               64,350            69,800              63.08% New employee equipment, new computers and monitors

2134 Meeting Supplies 2,689            2,100 4,614              5,800 176.19% Increase in in-person meetings

2716 Computer Services and Software 50,065          97,600               91,233            157,300            61.17% Includes CORE IT services, SaaS annual licenses

2135 Bank Charges 1,850            200 1,850              1,900 850.00% US Bank 2017 Bond Fee

9778 User Charge Collection Fee 35,363          36,900               36,762            38,300              3.79% County Property Tax and SSC Collection Fees 

2221 Publication and Legal  Ads 13,079          12,800               11,969            11,300              -11.72%

2223 Public Education and Outreach (1) 45,975          74,700               69,287            55,200              -26.10% Ribbon cutting for STPUWRE in 22/23, lower in 23/24

2264 Taxes, Other 1,949            1,900 1,397              1,400 -26.32% Use tax, out of state sales tax

2272 Memberships (CASA, CSDA, NBWRA) 49,526          69,100               65,657            67,900              -1.74%

2363 Permits (NPDES, Biosolids, BAAQCD) 64,320          119,300             80,248            83,500              -30.01% NPDES, BAAQMD, Regional Monitoring, stormwater.

2364 Penalties & Fines - - 66,462            - 

2246 Rents and Leases 65,694          192,700             149,028          153,100            -20.55% 101 LVR rent, generators, copiers, postage meter

9786 Employee Recognition (1) 1,893            5,600 7,326              8,400 50.00%

9787 Employee Training and Education (1) 13,373          49,400               15,319            45,300              -8.30%

9999 Miscellaneous expense  (2137, 2499) 16,305          15,900               69,280            18,700              17.61% Includes $56,700 JSilver settlement & COVID-19 expenses

TOTAL GENERAL & ADMINSTRATIVE 445,919        828,100             815,396          844,500            1.98%

OPERATING EXPENSE TOTALS 9,498,124$   11,458,900$      10,760,146$   12,604,100$     9.99%

Last update:5/18/2023 4 of 4124



2021-22 2022-23 2022-23 2023-24
Total Adopted Projected Draft
Actual Budget End of Year Budget

2005 Certificates of Participation/
Refunded 2014 709,125$        708,665$           708,665$         717,380$     

2010 State Revolving Fund Loan 285,464          285,464             285,464           285,464$     

2011 Bank of Marin Loan 332,681          332,681             332,681           332,681       

2012 Bank of Marin Loan 235,346          39,224               39,225             -                   

2017 Revenue Bonds (1) (2) 2,447,800       2,445,000          2,445,000        2,445,600    

2019 IBank Loan 717,892          716,688             716,688           715,448       

4,728,310$     4,527,723$        4,527,724$      4,496,574$  

(1) Includes treatment plant upgrade, recycled water treatment plant expansion and operations control center.

(2) Per Board action on May 25, 2017, amounts collected for the treatment plant upgrade and operations
  control center projects prior to the bonds being issued were reclassified as Reserves and are reflected in
  the Reserve Budget for all years presented.

Principal Interest Annual Fee

2005 Certificates of Participation/
Refunded 2014 660,000$           57,380$           -$                 

2010 State Revolving Fund Loan 224,604             60,860             -                   
-                   

2011 Bank of Marin Loan 247,186             85,495             -                   
-                 

2017 Revenue Bonds 1,155,000          1,290,600        -                   
-                   

2019 IBank Loan (4) 370,445             313,134           31,869         

2,657,235$        1,807,470$      31,869$       

(4) Annual IBank fee treated as Operation & Maintenance Expense but recognized as debt service for budget purposes.

Expenditure

Debt  Service  Breakdown FY 2023-2024

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
DEBT SERVICE

PROPOSED BUDGET FY 2023-2024  - JUNE 1, 2023

Expenditure

Last update:5/18/2023 1 of 1125



2021-22 2022-23 2022-23 2023-24
Actual Adopted Projected Draft

Budget End of Year Budget

Beginning Reserve Balance 7,911,256$     5,715,213$              5,715,213$      11,142,222$    

Operating & Rate Stabilization Reserve
Beginning Balance 2,185,612$     2,973,576$              2,973,576$      3,608,771$      

Plus: Additions 787,964        635,195                 635,195           639,823        
Less: Use of Funds -                   -                              -                      -                    

Ending Balance 2,973,576$     3,608,771$              3,608,771$      4,248,594$      
Purpose: Insure minimum of 7 months of O&M + Debt Service is available Target: 10,007,000$          

Rate Stabilization (Final year FY 2021-22 )
Beginning Balance 300,000$        -$                         -$                 -$                

Plus: Additions -                   -                              -                      -                    
Less: Use of Funds / Transfer to Ops Reserve (300,000)      -                    

Ending Balance -$                   -$                             -$                     -$                    
Combined with Operating Reserve per Policy F-50 on 5-16-22 Target: -$                      

Emergency Repair -               -                         -                 -                
Beginning Balance 1,000,000$     1,000,000$              1,000,000$      1,000,000$      

Plus: Additions -                   -                             -                     166,667        
Less: Use of Funds -                   -                             -                     -                   

Ending Balance 1,000,000$     1,000,000$              1,000,000$      1,166,667$      
Purpose: Fund emergency repairs, replenish over 2 to 3 year period. Target: 1,500,000$            

Capital Reserves (STPURWE, OCC, and other CIP)
Beginning Balance 3,425,644$     899,969$                 899,969$         5,649,747$      

Plus: Undesignated 229,727          336,464                   336,464           535,025          
Plus: Operations Control Center Designated Reserve -               -                               3,000,000        3,000,000       
Plus: STPURWE LGVSD Bond Reserve (1) 222,915        -                                   225,715           -                    
Plus: STPURWE MMWD Buy-In (2) 154,911          -                               159,196           -                      
Plus: 2017 Bond MMWD Debt Service Share  (3) 256,720        -                              256,427           -                    
Plus: Corr. to incld. PY BoM MMWD Reserves (4) -             -                              2,968,141        -                    
Less: Authorized Use of Funds (3,389,949)   (800,000)                (2,196,165)       -                    

Ending Balance 899,969$        436,433$                 5,649,747$      9,184,772$      
Purpose: To provide capital for major capital projects. Target: 11,000,000$          

Vehicle and Equipment Reserve (VERF)
Beginning Balance 1,000,000$     841,668$                 841,668$         883,704$        

Plus: Additions 379,090        150,755                 150,755           58,148          
Less: Authorized Use of Funds (537,422)      (480,000)                (108,719)          (442,476)       

Ending Balance 841,668$        512,423$                 883,704$         499,376$        
Purpose: To fund large vehicle and equipment replacements, replenish over 2 to 3 years. Target: 1,000,000$            

Ending Reserve Balance 5,715,213$     5,557,627$              11,142,222$    15,099,409$    

Target Total 23,507,000$          

(1) Excess funds over debt payments put aside for project.

(2) MMWD quarterly buy-in payments down to $26,890 beginning August 2023 - Held in Bank of Marin (BoM) Bus Money Market (BMM) #3983

(3) MMWD semi-annual Revenue Bond payments toward project - Held in Bank of Marin (BoM) Bus Money Market (BMM) #3983

(4) Bank of Marin (BoM) contributions from prior year MMWD buy-ins not included in Capital Reserve balance, corrected as of 12/31/22.

      Authorized use of funds towards STPURWE project to draw down BoM MMWD account and LAIF held Capital Reserves in Spring 2023.

Total Budgeted New Reserve Funding: 4,399,663$      

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT

PROPOSED BUDGET FY 2023-2024  - JUNE 1, 2023
RESERVES

Last update:5/18/2023 1 of 1126



2021-22 2022-23 2022-23 2023-24
Actual Adopted Projected Draft

Budget End of Year Budget

Restricted Funds

Capacity / Capital Facilities / Connection Fee Fund (#5025)
Beginning Balance 316,998$        587,687$                 587,687$         985,449$        

Plus: Additions 470,689        1,741,536              397,761           872,019        
Less: Use of Funds (200,000)      -                             -                     -                   

Ending Balance 587,687$        2,329,223$              985,449$         1,857,468$      
Purpose: To pay for collection system and plant capacity improvements to serve new connections.

Captains Cove Fund (#5019)
Beginning Balance 17,266$          1,498$                     1,498$             9,178$            

Plus: Additions 48,025          16,025                   16,003             16,010          
Less: Use of Funds (63,793)        (12,400)                 (8,324)             (25,000)         

Ending Balance 1,498$            5,123$                     9,178$             188$               
Purpose: Special assessment fees in and class account 350 expenses out. 

Marin Lagoon Fund (#5005)
Beginning Balance 84,595$          15,978$                   15,978$           17,462$          

Plus: Additions 74,372          21,106                   24,787             24,780          
Less: Use of Funds (1) (142,989)      (107,700)               (23,304)           (27,200)         

Ending Balance 15,978$          (70,616)$                  17,462$           15,042$          
Purpose: Special assessment fees in and class account 360 expenses out. 

(1) Prior Year Capital Expenditures for Marin Lagoon Pump Station #1 to be recovered over multiple years as balance insufficient
    to cover entire cost of project.   

Recycled Water Capital Repair and Replacement Fund (#5028) (2)

Beginning Balance - - - -$                
Plus: Additions -                   -                             -                     22,348          
Less: Use of Funds -                   -                             -                     -                   

Ending Balance - - - 22,348$          
Purpose: Capital repair or replacement costs at the Recycled Water Treatment Facility.  Fund shall not exceed $500K.

(2) Established May 2023 with first annual contribution by MMWD and LGVSD to be made in 2023-24.
    To be funded by LGVSD and MMWD by multiplying the total annual recycled water Operating & Maintenance producing costs by 10%. 
    

Total Restricted Fund Reserve Funding: 935,157$        

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
RESTRICTED FUNDS

PROPOSED BUDGET FY 2023-2024  - JUNE 1, 2023

Last update:5/18/2023 1 of 1127



 Line 
No. 

 
Mgr.  Project No. Project Name

 Proposed 
Budget
2023-24 

 PY CIP Carryover 
 Unrestricted 

Funds 
 Restricted 

Captains Cove 
 Restricted 

Marin Lagoon 

 Vehicle 
Replacement 

Fund 

 Capacity 
Connection 

Fees 
 Grants 

PLANNING, SOFTWARE, ADMINISTRATION & OTHER ENGINEERING

1 MC 20100-05 Integrated Wastewater Master Plan Phase 2 and Phase 3              100,000 100,000                                           - 

2 MC 21500-08 Biosolids Program Monitoring Research Support& Flood Protection              340,000 95,978                                 244,022 

3 GP  22600-03 Asset Management CMMS Centricity (Plant, PS, Rec Phases 2-4)              500,000 224,668                               275,332 

4 MC  22125-01 Sea Level Rise Mitigation Program Planning              100,000 40,000                                   60,000 

5 MC 23200-01 Hydraulic and Flow Modeling of Collection System                75,000 72,707                                     2,293 

6  MC  21600-01 Emergency Bypass Pumping Analysis & Response Plan                35,000 35,000                                             - 

7 MC 20125-01 On-Call Engineering Contract              200,000 28,607                                 171,393 

8 MC  22125-03 On-Call Inspection Capital Projects                60,000 4,910                                     55,090 

9 MC  22125-04 On-Call Construction Contract (2021-2023)              250,000 -                                          250,000 

10 MC  22125-02 Standard Specifications and Drawings Update Project                35,000 35,000                                             - 

11 DM 20100-01 Accounting Caselle ERP Integration                20,000 20,000                                             - 

12 DM 22100-01 Website Improvement Design and Implementation                25,000 25,000                                             - 

13 MC     21300-07     Arc Flash Study                10,000 10,000                                             - 

14 ML New Lab Software LIMS for TNI Standards Reporting                45,000 -                                            45,000 

Subtotal:           1,795,000                    691,870          1,103,130                         -                       -                           -                         -                  - 

FLEET & EQUIPMENT (To be procured through Vehicle Replacement Fund) and OTHER EQUIPMENT

19      GP VERF Fleet Replacement Vehicles              100,000 -                                                      - 100,000              

21      GP VERF Equipment for Collection System Response (trailers, hoses)                10,000 -                                                      - 10,000                

22       MC  21300-03 Standby/Towable Generators for Minor Pump Stations              281,125 281,125                                           - -                          

23       GP  Pending 2023 Vac-Con Flusher Truck - clean diesel  (upon Board approval)              332,476 -                                                      - 332,476              

24       GP  Pending 2023 Ford Transit Cargo Van Hybrid for Camera                50,000 50,000                                             - -                          

Subtotal:              773,601                    331,125                         -                         -                       -                442,476                         -                  - 

 Peach = Pump Station Capital Assets

 Blue = Force Main Sewer

 Green = Collection System Sewers

 Pink = Reclamation Capital Assets

 Purple = Reclamation Maintenance Programs

FUNDING SOURCES

Capital Outlay Budget for Fiscal Year 2023-2024
(Proposed Draft Budget - June 1, 2023)

DRAFT

Page 1 of 3 Printed: 5/18/2023 7:26 AM128



 Line 
No. 

 
Mgr.  Project No. Project Name

 Proposed 
Budget
2023-24 

 PY CIP Carryover 
 Unrestricted 

Funds 
 Restricted 

Captains Cove 
 Restricted 

Marin Lagoon 

 Vehicle 
Replacement 

Fund 

 Capacity 
Connection 

Fees 
 Grants 

FUNDING SOURCES

Capital Outlay Budget for Fiscal Year 2023-2024
(Proposed Draft Budget - June 1, 2023)

DRAFT

COLLECTION SYSTEM (INCL. PUMP STATIONS "PS" & FORCE MAINS )

40  MC  11200-03 John Duckett PS & HWY 101 Terra Linda Trunk Sewer Design           1,520,368 1,520,368                                        - 

41  GP  Pending Electrical System VFD Upgrade & SCADA Integration for (7) PS              500,000 250,000                               250,000 

42  MC  21350-01 Automatic Transfer Switches for Pump Stations              225,000 225,000                                           - 

43  MC  21300-04 Pump Station Site Lighting, Safety, & Security Improvements              206,877 206,877                                           - 

44  MC  22300-01 Rafael Meadows Pump Station - Fencing, full perimeter 150,000             -                                          150,000 

45 MC 21600-03 Annual Site Improvement - Paving, Fencing, Lighting                35,000 23,197                                   11,803 

46  GP  18350-01 Captains Cove Pump Station Upgrades (2)                25,000 -                                                      - 25,000              -                      

47  MC  New Marin Lagoon Pump Stations Upgrades (2)                20,000 -                                                      - 20,000            

50 MC 20200-01 Force Main Assessment, Install Ports, Cleaning, Location Marking, & Mapping              380,000 305,000                                 75,000 

53  MC  Ongoing Sewer Main Collection System Rehabilitation Program           2,000,000 1,000,000                         1,000,000 

54 MC  New Sewer I&I Reduction Program (annual per SSMP)              500,000 -                                          500,000 

55  GP  19200-02 Manhole Frame & Cover Adjustment Allowance                50,000 50,000                                             - 

Subtotal:           5,612,245                 3,580,442          1,986,803               25,000              20,000                           -                         -                  - 

RECLAMATION

78  GP  21500-01 Reclamation Pump Station Improvements  - MCC, Pumps, Wet Well              150,000 150,000                                           - 

79  MC  22500-04 Solar PV System Replacement              265,000 265,000                                           - 

80 MC 23500-05 Center Pivot No. 1 Replacement                25,500 25,500                                             - 

81  MC  Pending Sludge Lagoon Liner Replacement/Repair                75,000 70,000                                     5,000 

84 MC 11500-09 Miller Creek Vegetation Maintenance Repair & Maintenance                75,000 25,000                                   50,000 

Subtotal:              590,500                    535,500               55,000                         -                       -                           -                         -                  - 

TREATMENT PLANT (INCL. RECYCLED WATER)

100 MC  New Laboratory Building Design (Lab / Education Center / Boardroom)              750,000 750,000                                           - 

103 MC  22600-03 Primary Clarifier #1 Repair           1,000,000 295,000                               705,000 

104 MC  New Primary Clarifier Sludge Pump Addition              150,000 -                                          150,000 

105 MC New Treatment Plant Upgrade Phase 2 Design - Primary Clarifiers              400,000 300,000                               100,000 

107 MC 21600-06 Digester Room MCC #2 Upgrade Design & Construction           1,400,000 625,988                               774,012 

108 MC  New TWAS Enclosure / Sludge Basin and Reception Pad           1,400,000 -                                       1,400,000 

109 MC  New Fueling Station Project (diesel & gas)              300,000 -                                          300,000 

110 MC 21600-09 Plant Lighting Improvements and Other Electrical              110,000 50,000                                   60,000 

111 MC 21600-11 Annual Site Improvement - Paving, Fencing, Lighting                60,000 -                                            60,000 

Subtotal:           5,570,000                 2,020,988          3,549,012                         -                       -                           -                         -                  - 

Page 2 of 3 Printed: 5/18/2023 7:26 AM129



 Line 
No. 

 
Mgr.  Project No. Project Name

 Proposed 
Budget
2023-24 

 PY CIP Carryover 
 Unrestricted 

Funds 
 Restricted 

Captains Cove 
 Restricted 

Marin Lagoon 

 Vehicle 
Replacement 

Fund 

 Capacity 
Connection 

Fees 
 Grants 

FUNDING SOURCES

Capital Outlay Budget for Fiscal Year 2023-2024
(Proposed Draft Budget - June 1, 2023)

DRAFT

TOTAL PLANNING, FLEET, COLLECTION , RECLAMATION, & TREATMENT PROJECTS (Non-Financed)

Total (Non-Financed):         14,341,346                 7,159,925          6,693,945               25,000              20,000                442,476                         -                  - 

FINANCED AND BOND PROJECTS

125 MC  12600-07 & 
16650-02 

Secondary Treatment Plant Upgrade & Recycled Water Expan.           1,591,194 1,591,194                -                       

129 MC Operations Control Center (OCC) Building Construction & Soft Costs  (Cash)  (1)           3,000,000 -                              3,000,000        

Subtotal:           4,591,194                 1,591,194          3,000,000                         -                       -                           -                         -                  - 

Total Financed          1,591,194 

GRAND TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY:         18,932,540                 8,751,119          9,693,945               25,000              20,000                442,476                         -                  - 

(1) - Buildup of $9M in cash reserves over 3 years, 2022-23 through 2024-25
(2) - Funded by Captains Cove & Marin Lagoon HOA.

PY CIP Carryover 
46%

Unrestricted Funds 
52%

Restricted Captains Cove 
0%

Restricted Marin Lagoon 
0%

Vehicle Replacement Fund 
2%

Capacity Connection Fees 
0%

Grants 
0%

FUNDING SOURCES

Page 3 of 3 Printed: 5/18/2023 7:26 AM130



 Line 
No. 

 
Mgr.  Project No. Project Name

 Year 1     
Budget
2023-24 

 Year 2
2024-25 

 Year 3
2025-26 

 Year 4
2026-27 

 Year 5
2027-28 

 Year 6
2028-29 

 Year 7 
2029-30 

 7-Year Total 
Expenditures 

PLANNING, SOFTWARE, ADMINISTRATION & OTHER ENGINEERING

1 MC 20100-05 Integrated Wastewater Master Plan Phase 2 and Phase 3             100,000                          -               100,000 

2 MC 21500-08 Biosolids Program Monitoring Research Support& Flood Protection             340,000              350,200                          -                          -                            -                          -                            -               690,200 

3 GP  22600-03 Asset Management CMMS Centricity (Plant, PS, Rec Phases 2-4)             500,000              250,000              116,600                          - -                           -                         -                                         866,600 

4 MC  22125-01 Sea Level Rise Mitigation Program Planning             100,000                          -                          -                          - -                           -                         -                                         100,000 

5 MC 23200-01 Hydraulic and Flow Modeling of Collection System               75,000                77,250                79,500                81,750                  84,000                86,250                   88,500               572,250 

6  MC  21600-01 Emergency Bypass Pumping Analysis & Response Plan               35,000                36,050                          -                          -                            -                          -                            -                 71,050 

7 MC 20125-01 On-Call Engineering Contract             200,000              206,000              212,180              218,545                225,102              231,855                 238,810            1,532,492 

8 MC  22125-03 On-Call Inspection for Capital Projects               60,000                61,800                63,600                65,400                  67,200                69,000                   70,800               457,800 

9 MC  22125-04 On-Call Construction Contract (2021-2023)             250,000              257,500              265,225              273,182                281,377              289,819                 298,513            1,915,616 

10 MC  22125-02 Standard Specifications and Drawings Update Project               35,000                          -                          -                          - -                           -                         -                                           35,000 

11 DM 20100-01 Accounting Caselle ERP Integration               20,000                          -                          -                          - -                           -                         -                                           20,000 

12 DM 22100-01 Website Improvement Design and Implementation               25,000                          -                          - -                        -                           -                         -                                           25,000 

13 MC     21300-07     Arc Flash Study               10,000                          -                          -                          -                            -                          -                            -                 10,000 

14 ML New Lab Software LIMS for TNI Standards Reporting               45,000                          -                          -                          -                            -                          -                            -                 45,000 

Subtotal:          1,795,000           1,238,800              737,105              638,877                657,679              676,923                 696,624            6,441,008 

FLEET & EQUIPMENT (To be procured through Vehicle Replacement Fund) and OTHER EQUIPMENT

20      GP VERF Fleet Replacement Vehicles             100,000                          -                          -              109,000                            -              115,000                 118,000               442,000 

21      GP VERF Utility Collection System Replacement Trucks                         -                          -                          -              560,000                            -                          -                            -               560,000 

22      GP VERF Equipment for Collection System Response (trailers, hoses)               10,000                10,300                10,609                10,927                  11,255                11,593                   11,940                 76,624 

23       MC  21300-03 Standby/Towable Generators for Minor Pump Stations             281,125                          -                          -                          -                            -                          -                            -               281,125 

24       GP  Pending 2023 Vac-Con Flusher Truck - clean diesel  (upon Board approval)             332,476                          -                          -                          -                            -                          -                            -               332,476 

25       GP  Pending 2023 Ford Transit Cargo Van Hybrid for Camera               50,000                          -                          -                          -                            -                          -                            -                 50,000 

Subtotal:             773,601                10,300                10,609              679,927                  11,255              126,593                 129,940            1,742,225 

 Peach = Pump Station Capital Assets

 Blue = Force Main Sewer

 Green = Collection System Sewers

 Pink = Reclamation Capital Assets

 Purple = Reclamation Maintenance Programs

7-Year Capital Improvement Program (CIP)
(Proposed Draft Budget - June 1, 2023)

PROJECTED EXPEDITURES

DRAFT

Page 1 of 4 Printed: 5/18/2023 7:32 AM131



 Line 
No. 

 
Mgr.  Project No. Project Name

 Year 1     
Budget
2023-24 

 Year 2
2024-25 

 Year 3
2025-26 

 Year 4
2026-27 

 Year 5
2027-28 

 Year 6
2028-29 

 Year 7 
2029-30 

 7-Year Total 
Expenditures 

7-Year Capital Improvement Program (CIP)
(Proposed Draft Budget - June 1, 2023)

PROJECTED EXPEDITURES

DRAFT

COLLECTION SYSTEM (INCL. PUMP STATIONS "PS" & FORCE MAINS )

41  MC  11200-03 John Duckett PS & HWY 101 Terra Linda Trunk Sewer Design          1,520,368                          -                          -                          -                            -                          -                            -            1,520,368 

42  GP  Pending Electrical System VFD Upgrade & SCADA Integration for (7) PS             500,000           1,030,000           1,060,000                          -                            -                          -                            -            2,590,000 

43  MC  21350-01 Automatic Transfer Switches for Pump Stations             225,000                          -                          -                          -                            -                          -                            -               225,000 

44  MC  21300-04 Pump Station Site Lighting, Safety, & Security Improvements             206,877                          -                          -                          -                            -                          -                            -               206,877 

45  MC  22300-01 Rafael Meadows Pump Station - Fencing, full perimeter 150,000                                    -                          -                          -                            -                          -                            -               150,000 

46 MC 21600-03 Annual Site Improvement - Paving, Fencing, Lighting               35,000                36,050                37,100                38,150                  39,200                40,250                   41,300               267,050 

47  GP  18350-01 Captains Cove Pump Station Upgrades (2)               25,000                          -                          -                          -                            -                          -                            -                 25,000 

48  MC  New Marin Lagoon Pump Stations Upgrades (2)               20,000                60,000                61,800                63,654                  65,564                67,531                   69,557               408,106 

49  MC  New Mulligan PS & 18" TS  and Hwy 101 Undercrossing Capacity Upgrades                          -                          -              981,000             6,720,000                          -                            -            7,701,000 

50  MC  New Smith Ranch Pump Station Generator Diesel Conversion                         -                          -                          -              109,000                560,000                          -                            -               669,000 

51 MC 20200-01 Force Main Assessment, Install Ports, Cleaning, Location Marking, & Mapping             380,000              250,000              257,500              265,225                273,182                          -                            -            1,425,907 

52  MC  14300-05 Smith Ranch Rd Combined Force Main                         -                          -              257,500           2,650,000                            -                          -                            -            2,907,500 

53  MC  New Lower Marinwood TS Capacity Upgrade & Relocation                         -                          -              257,500           1,590,000                            -                          -                            -            1,847,500 

54  MC  Ongoing Sewer Main Collection System Rehabilitation Program          2,000,000           1,030,000           1,060,000           1,090,000             1,122,700           1,156,381              1,191,072            8,650,153 

55 MC  New Sewer I&I Reduction Program (annual per SSMP)             500,000              515,000              530,000              545,000                560,000              575,000                 590,000            3,815,000 

56  GP  19200-02 Manhole Frame & Cover Adjustment Allowance               50,000                51,500                53,000                54,500                  56,000                57,500                   59,000               381,500 

57  MC  New Upper Terra Linda TS and Siphon Improvements                         -              500,000           4,000,000                          -                            -                          -                            -            4,500,000 

58  MC  New Northgate Industrial Park 8" Hwy 101 Undercrossing                         -                          -                          -              180,250             1,855,000                          -                            -            2,035,250 

59  MC IWMP Pump Station & Force Main Projects (Placeholder)                         -                          -                          -                          -                            -           1,700,000              5,900,000                           - 

60 MC Sea Level Rise Mitigation Construction (Placeholder)                         -                          -                          - -                        -                           -                         1,090,000                                      - 

Subtotal:          5,612,245           3,472,550           7,574,400           7,566,779           11,251,646           3,596,662              8,940,929          39,325,211 

Page 2 of 4 Printed: 5/18/2023 7:32 AM132



 Line 
No. 

 
Mgr.  Project No. Project Name

 Year 1     
Budget
2023-24 

 Year 2
2024-25 

 Year 3
2025-26 

 Year 4
2026-27 

 Year 5
2027-28 

 Year 6
2028-29 

 Year 7 
2029-30 

 7-Year Total 
Expenditures 

7-Year Capital Improvement Program (CIP)
(Proposed Draft Budget - June 1, 2023)

PROJECTED EXPEDITURES

DRAFT

RECLAMATION

79  GP  21500-01 Reclamation Pump Station Improvements  - MCC, Pumps, Wet Well             150,000              257,500                          -                          -                            -                          -                            -               407,500 

80  MC  22500-04 Solar PV System Replacement             265,000                          -                          -                          -                            -                          -                            -               265,000 

81 MC 23500-05 Center Pivot No. 1 Replacement               25,500                          -                          -                          -                            -                          -                            -                 25,500 

82  MC  Pending Sludge Lagoon Liner Replacement/Repair               75,000                77,250                79,500                          -                            -                          -                            -               231,750 

83  MC  New Storage Pond 1 Transfer Pipe Repair                         -                          -                          -                          -                100,000                          -                            -               100,000 

84  MC  22300-03 St. Vincent's Pump Station Improvements                         -                          -                          -                          -                            -              100,000                 257,500               357,500 

85 MC 11500-09 Miller Creek Vegetation Maintenance Repair & Maintenance               75,000                          -                          -                          -                            -                          -                            -                 75,000 

86 MC 20500-05 Marsh Pond Vegetation Removal & Long-Term Vegetation Management Plan                         -                61,800                          -                          -                  67,200                          -                            -               129,000 

87  MC  Pending Levee Road Restoration                         -                          -                63,600                          -                  67,200                          -                            -               130,800 

88  MC  New Reclamation Levee Capping - SLR mitigation                         -                          -                          -                          -                            -              567,500                            -                           - 

89 MC Biosolids Program Implementation & Construction (Placeholder)                         -                          -                          -                          -                            -           2,300,000              2,300,000                           - 

90 MC Sea Level Rise Mitigation Construction (Placeholder)                         -                          -                          - -                        -                           -                         1,090,000                                      - 

Subtotal:             590,500              396,550              143,100                          -                234,400           2,967,500              3,647,500            1,722,050 

TREATMENT PLANT (INCL. RECYCLED WATER)

101 MC  New Laboratory Building Design (Lab / Education Center / Boardroom)             750,000                          -                          - -                        -                           -                         -                                         750,000 

102 MC 21100-01 Operations & Admin Building Design                         -                          -           1,200,000                          -                            -                          -                            -            1,200,000 

103 MC  New Corporation Yard Design                         -              500,000                          - -                        -                           -                         -                                         500,000 

104 MC  22600-03 Primary Clarifier #1 Repair          1,000,000                          -                          -                          -                            -                          -                            -            1,000,000 

105 MC  New Primary Clarifier Sludge Pump Addition             150,000                          -                          - -                        -                           -                         -                                         150,000 

106 MC New Treatment Plant Upgrade Phase 2 Design - Primary Clarifiers             400,000                          -                          -                          -                            -                          -                            -               400,000 

107 MC 20600-04 Treatment Plant Upgrade Phase 3 Design- Flow Eq, UV, Headworks                         -                          -              500,000                          -                            -                          -                            -               500,000 

108 MC 21600-06 Digester Room MCC #2 Upgrade Design & Construction          1,400,000                          -                          -                          -                            -                          -                            -            1,400,000 

109 MC  New TWAS Enclosure / Sludge Basin and Reception Pad          1,400,000                          -                          - -                        -                           -                         -                                      1,400,000 

110 MC  New Fueling Station Project (diesel & gas)             300,000                          -                          - -                        -                           -                         -                                         300,000 

111 MC 21600-09 Plant Lighting Improvements and Other Electrical             110,000                          -                          -                          -                            -                          -                            -               110,000 

112 MC 21600-11 Annual Site Improvement - Paving, Fencing, Lighting               60,000                61,800                63,600                65,400                  67,200                69,000                   71,070               458,070 

113 MC  New Digester Replacement and Solids Improvement Design                          -                          - -                        1,300,000            -                         -                                      1,300,000 

114  MC  New Vac Truck Recycled Water Filling Station & Wash Rack                         -                          -                          -                63,600                            -                          -                            -                 63,600 

115 MC  New Boiler Relocation Project                          -                          - -                        -                           515,000             -                                                     - 

116 MC Sea Level Rise Mitigation Construction (Placeholder)                         -                          -                          - -                        -                           -                         1,090,000                                      - 

Subtotal:          5,570,000              561,800           1,763,600              129,000             1,367,200              584,000              1,161,070            9,531,670 

Page 3 of 4 Printed: 5/18/2023 7:32 AM133



 Line 
No. 

 
Mgr.  Project No. Project Name

 Year 1     
Budget
2023-24 

 Year 2
2024-25 

 Year 3
2025-26 

 Year 4
2026-27 

 Year 5
2027-28 

 Year 6
2028-29 

 Year 7 
2029-30 

 7-Year Total 
Expenditures 

7-Year Capital Improvement Program (CIP)
(Proposed Draft Budget - June 1, 2023)

PROJECTED EXPEDITURES

DRAFT

TOTAL PLANNING, FLEET, COLLECTION , RECLAMATION, & TREATMENT PROJECTS (Non-Financed)

Total (Non-Financed):        14,341,346           5,680,000         10,228,814           9,014,583           13,522,180           7,951,678            14,576,062          58,762,164 

FINANCED AND BOND PROJECTS

125 MC  12600-07 & 
16650-02 

Secondary Treatment Plant Upgrade & Recycled Water Expan.          1,591,194                          -                          -                          -                            -                          -                            -            1,591,194 

126  MC John Duckett PS & HWY 101 Terra Linda TS Crossing Construction                         -           7,612,500           7,612,500                          -                            -                          -                            -          15,225,000 

134 MC  New Laboratory Building Construction - (Lab / Education Center / Boardroom)                         -           4,000,000           3,500,000 -                        -                           -                         -                                      7,500,000 

135 MC  New Corporation Yard Construction                         -                          -           5,000,000 -                        -                           -                         -                                      5,000,000 

129 MC Operations Control Center (OCC) Building Construction & Soft Costs  (Cash)  (1)          3,000,000           6,000,000                          -                          -                            -                          -                            -            9,000,000 

130 MC Operations Control Center (OCC) Building Construction & Soft Costs  (Financed)                         -                          -           6,500,000                          -                            -                          -                            -            6,500,000 

138 MC 20600-04 Treatment Plant Upgrade Phase 2 Construction - Primary Clarifiers                         -           7,500,000                          -                          -                            -                          -                            -            7,500,000 

139 MC New Treatment Plant Upgrade Phase 3 Construction - Flow Eq, UV, Headworks                         -                          -                          -           3,975,000             3,975,000                          -                            -            7,950,000 

140 MC  New Digester Replacement and Solids Improvement Construction (Financed)                          -                          - -                        -                           6,540,000          6,540,000                                      - 

Subtotal:          4,591,194         25,112,500         22,612,500           3,975,000             3,975,000                          -                            -          60,266,194 

Total Financed         1,591,194        19,112,500        22,612,500          3,975,000             3,975,000                         -                            -                   51,266,194 

GRAND TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY:        18,932,540         30,792,500         32,841,314         12,989,583           17,485,925           7,825,085            14,446,122        117,286,133 

(1) - Buildup of $9M in cash reserves over 3 years, 2022-23 through 2024-25

(2) - Funded by Captains Cove & Marin Lagoon HOA.

2023‐24 2024‐25 2025‐26 2026‐27 2027‐28 2028‐29 2029‐30

Financed ‐ 19,112,500 22,612,500 3,975,000 3,975,000 6,540,000 6,540,000

Cash 18,932,540 11,680,000 10,228,814 9,014,583 13,510,925 7,825,085 14,446,122

 ‐

 5,000,000

 10,000,000

 15,000,000

 20,000,000

 25,000,000

 30,000,000

 35,000,000
Total Projects ‐ 7 years ‐ Cash and Financed

Cash

Financed

 ‐

 2,000,000

 4,000,000

 6,000,000

 8,000,000

 10,000,000

 12,000,000

 14,000,000

 16,000,000

 18,000,000

 20,000,000

 Year 1     Budget…  Year 2…  Year 3…  Year 4…  Year 5…  Year 6…  Year 7…

Capital Projects By Type / Department

Treatment Plant Collection System Reclamation

Page 4 of 4 Printed: 5/18/2023 7:32 AM134



 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2023\Agenda Packet 2023\06012023\Budget\ASR Budget Setting Date for Hearing.docx Page 1 of 1 
 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Dale McDonald, Administrative Services Manager 
 (415) 526-1519   dmcdonald@lgvsd.org 
Meeting Date: June 1, 2023 

Re: Resolution No 2023-2307 Setting Time and Place for Public Hearing on the 
Budget for the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 

Item Type:   Consent   Action      X  Information  Other             

Standard Contract:    Yes     No  (See attached) Not Applicable      X        
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Board approve Resolution 2023-2307 setting the time and place of the 
Public Hearing for the Budget for the Fiscal Year 2023-2024. 

BACKGROUND 
One of the major steps in completing the annual budget is to allow the public an opportunity to 
review and make comments on the budget itself. While the State of California requires this 
procedure, it is also in the best interest of the community to be able to attend a public hearing so 
that the public can review and comment on how the District revenue is being calculated and how 
disbursements are proposed to be expended. 
 
In that regard, the Board of Directors is requested to approve a date for a public hearing to review 
the 2023-2024 annual budget.  The date for the budget hearing is proposed to coincide with the 
public hearing on the sewer service charge rate increases, since the rates are part of the process 
to complete the 2023-2024 Budget. 
 
If approved, staff will publish once a week for two consecutive weeks a notice regarding the public 
hearing in the local newspaper. 
 

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
None 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
  
FISCAL IMPACT 
None. 
 

Item Number______4________ 

GM Review   ______CP________ 

135

mailto:dmcdonald@lgvsd.org


Resolution No. 2023-2307  
  

RESOLUTION No 2023-2307 
 

A RESOLUTION FIXING TIME AND PLACE FOR PUBLIC HEARING 
ON THE DISTRICT BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 

 
LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT 

 

WHEREAS, this District is in the process of developing a budget for fiscal year 

2023-2024; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the community to allow the public an 

opportunity be a part of the budget process, to see how the budget is calculated and 

how proposed disbursements are being expended, and to allow the public to comment 

on the budget. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary 

District herein shall at a special meeting place of said Board located at the San Rafael 

City Schools Board Room, 310 Nova Albion Way, on the 2nd Floor, San Rafael, 

California, is hereby set on Friday, June 30, 2023 at 4:30 p.m. as the time and place 

for a public hearing on the 2023-2024 Budget Report filed with the Secretary of this 

District, and the Board Secretary shall publish notice of said hearing and the filing of 

said report, once a week for two successive weeks prior to the date set for said 

hearing, in the Marin Independent Journal, a newspaper of general circulation, printed 

and published in Marin County, there being no other newspaper of general circulation 

printed and published in the District; post it at the District’s offices at 101 Lucas Valley 

Road, Suite 300, San Rafael, CA; and post it at its website at  www.lgvsd.org. 

 

*  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  * 
 

I hereby certify that the forgoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a resolution duly and 
regularly passed and adopted by the Sanitary Board of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary 
District, Marin County, California, at a meeting thereof held on the 1st day of June 2023, 
by the following vote of the members thereof: 
 

AYES, and in favor thereof, Members: 
NOES, Members: 
ABSTAIN, Members: 
ABSENT, Members: 
      ________________________________ 

       Teresa L. Lerch, Board Secretary 
       
Approved: 
           (seal) 
_____________________________________ 
Megan Clark, Board President 

136

http://www.lgvsd.org/


Page 1 of 1 

  Agenda Summary Report 

To: Board of Directors 
From: Michael P. Cortez, PE, District Engineer 

(415) 526-1518; mcortez@lgvsd.org  
Mtg. Date: June 1, 2023 

Re: Proposed Ordinance 193 – Amendment to Title 3, Chapter 2, Sanitary Code of 
the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District  

Item Type:  Consent  Action    X  Information  Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes     No (See attached) Not Applicable       X      . 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board to set a Public Hearing Date of July 6, 2023 for Ordinance No. 193, An Ordinance 
Amending Title 3, Chapter 2, An Ordinance Relating to Reimbursement for Public Sewer Main 
Extensions and/or Sewer Capacity Upgrades of the Ordinance Code of the Las Gallinas Valley 
Sanitary District. 

BACKGROUND 
The current District Ordinance only addresses reimbursement for sewer main extensions by land 
developers without referencing capacity upgrades, which both may be required to adequately 
serve new land developments. Each land development project will be reviewed by the District 
Engineer and capacity upgrade requirements will be determined on a case-by-case basis. 

District staff discussed proposed revisions with the Land Development Ad Hoc Committee on 
April 3, 2023, and legal counsel has prepared the attached memorandum outlining the revisions. 
Attached is the existing Ordinance (“Exhibit A”) for reference. Also attached are the proposed 
revisions (“Exhibit B”) and draft Ordinance (“Exhibit C”) for Board to review.  

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
Board adopted Ordinance No. 164 incorporating revisions to the various sections of the District’s 
Ordinance Code on May 28, 2015. 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 

FISCAL IMPACT 
N/A 

Item Number__________5______ 

GM Review   _______CP_________ 

137

mailto:mcortez@lgvsd.org


MEMORANDUM  

 

TO:  Board of Directors LGVSD 

 

FROM:  Patrick M.K. Richardson District Counsel 

 

DATE:  June 1, 2023 

 

SUBJECT:  Proposed Ord. No. 193 - Amendment to Title 3, Chap. 2, “An Ordinance 

Relating to Reimbursement for Public Sewer Main Extensions,” of the 

Ordinance Code of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 

 

 

 

This Memorandum is meant to inform the Board regarding Staff’s proposal to amend Title 3, 

Chap. 2, of the Ordinance Code of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

Title 3, Chap. 2 relates to the District requiring a developer or seeking reimbursement from said 

developer for necessary expenses to increase in size and/or capacity of other upgrades to the 

District’s existing gravity sewers/sewer mains, trunk lines, pump stations and/or force mains etc. 

due to a proposed land development within the District’s boundaries.  

Currently, there are several proposed developments that District Staff are working on with the 

developers and the City of San Rafael, some of which include 245 Nova Albion Way and 

Northgate Mall Redevelopment. 

AMENDMENT TO TITLE 3, CHAP. 2:  

A copy of the current copy of Title 3, Chap. 2, is attached as Ex. “A” for reference.  As currently 

written, Chap. 2 only refers to a situation that would require an extension of a District’s sewer 

main in order to service a parcel of land.  The expense of such an expense would be borne by the 

landowner/developer.  Chap. 2 further provides that the District may enter into a 

“Reimbursement Agreement” with the landowner/developer for reimbursement of the 

proportional costs for the main line extension from later developers or landowners that wish to 

have the District provide service subsequent to the original extension construction.  The District 

Engineer would calculate the proportional cost to any later applicants for service.  At this time, a 

Reimbursement Agreement would last for a period of ten (10) years. 

Proposed Amendment:  A copy of the proposed Amendment to Title 3, Chap. 2, is attached 

hereto as Ex. “B.”  This copy shows the edits made to the existing Ordinance.  A clean copy of 

the proposed Ordinance 193 amending Title 3, Chapter 2  is attached hereto as Ex. “C.” 

138



Memorandum to Board 

June 1, 2023 

Page 2 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

The proposed amendment seeks to address the situation where the costs of providing service to a 

new development extends beyond just the extension of the sewer main, but encompasses any 

potentially required upgrades to the size of existing sewer mains or the capacity of said mains or 

trunk lines.  In addition, it envisions the potential upgrades that may be necessary to any pump 

stations, force mains, or the sewer collection system.  This is not intended to be an exhaustive list 

of needed upgrades. 

The District also reserves the right to perform the work itself and then bill the owner, in lieu of 

having the owner/developer perform the necessary work.  The option, at the discretion of the 

District, to enter into a Reimbursement Agreement, remains in place for a ten (10) year period 

(the period can be extended by the District).   

Potential Effect of Prop 218 on these Development Fees:   

Proposition 218 specifically excludes two kinds of fees from its provisions, more specifically, 

“Developer fees”: 

 

• Developer fees (“Nothing in this article or Article XIIIC shall be construed to . . . 

[a]ffect existing laws relating to the imposition of fees or charges as a condition of 

property development”), Cal. Const., art. XIIID, § 1(b); …”1 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

From a legal standpoint, any such reasonable fees associated with a necessary increase in size, 

capacity or upgrades to the District’s system in order to serve a new development should pass 

muster as long as the evidence supports such system upgrades. And as noted above, there should 

not be any Prop 218 effect upon the imposition of these types of “developer fees.” 

Therefore, Counsel recommends that the Board pass Ordinance No. 193. 

 
 

139



CHAPTER 2 
AN ORDINANCE RELATING TO REIMBURSEMENT FOR PUBLIC 

SEWER MAIN EXTENSIONS 

ARTICLE I. PURPOSE.  The extension of a public sewer  to serve any parcel or tract of 

land shall be done by and at the expense of the owner, although, the District reserves the 

right to perform the work and bill the owner for the cost, to perform the work itself, or to 

perform the work pursuant to special assessment proceedings. 

Where the public sewer is more than four hundred (400) feet from the exterior 

wall of a proposed structure to the main sewer line the District may enter into a 

Reimbursement Agreement with the applicant to reimburse the applicant when others 

connect to the new main sewer line.  The Reimbursement Agreement shall be valid for 

ten (10) years.  Other applicants who connect to this main sewer line will contribute their 

proportionate share of the construction costs which shall be paid to the original applicant. 

The District Engineer in his sole discretion shall determine the relevant proportionality 

analysis to be used in a repayment calculation.  No interest shall be due any applicant. 

Title 3 Chapter 2 Page 1 of 1 
Rev 05/28/2015

Exhibit A

140



CHAPTER 2 

AN ORDINANCE RELATING TO REIMBURSEMENT FOR PUBLIC 

SEWER MAIN EXTENSIONS AND/OR SEWER CAPACITY UPGRADES 

ARTICLE I. PURPOSE.  Where tThe extension of a public sewer and/or sewer capacity 

upgrades, to include but not limited to the increase in size and/or capacity of gravity 

sewers/sewer mains,  trunk lines or lateral extensions, the increase in size of sewer main lines or 

lateral extensions, pump stations, and/or force mains and/or gravity sewers,  to the existing sewer 

collection system that to  are necessary in order to serve any parcel or tract of land, the expense 

of such public sewer extension and/or sewer capacity upgrades shall be done by and borne by at 

the expense of the owner of said parcel or tract of land.  However, although, the District reserves 

the right to perform the work and bill the owner for the cost, to perform the work itself, or to 

perform the work pursuant to special assessment proceedings. Where the public sewer is more 

than four hundred (400) feet from the exterior wall of a proposed structure to the main sewer line 

Tthe District, in its sole discretion,  may enter into a Reimbursement Agreement with the 

applicant to reimburse the applicant when others connect to the new main sewer line.  The 

Reimbursement Agreement shall be valid for ten (10) years but may be extended at the discretion 

of the District.  Other applicants who connect to this main sewer line will contribute their 

proportionate share of the construction costs which shall be paid to the original applicant. The 

District Engineer in his sole discretion shall determine the relevant proportionality analysis to be 

used in a repayment calculation.  No interest calculation shall be part of the relevant 

proportionality analysis due any applicant. 

Exhibit B

141



_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Ordinance 193   Page 1 of 2 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT 

ORDINANCE NO. 193 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 3, CHAPTER 2, 

OF THE ORDINANCE CODE OF THE 

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT 

AN ORDINANCE RELATING TO REIMBURSEMENT 

FOR PUBLIC SEWER MAIN EXTENSIONS AND/OR SEWER CAPACITY 

UPGRADES 

The Board of Directors of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, Marin County, California, 

does ordain as follows: 

Section 1.  Title 3, Chapter 2, An Ordinance Relating to Reimbursement for Public Sewer Main 

Extensions, is amended to read as follows: 

ARTICLE I. PURPOSE.  Where the extension of a public sewer and/or sewer capacity upgrades, 

to include but not limited to the increase in size and/or capacity of gravity sewers/sewer mains, 

trunk lines , pump stations, and/or force mains, to the existing sewer collection system that  are 

necessary in order to serve any parcel or tract of land, the expense of such public sewer extension 

and/or sewer capacity upgrades shall be done by and borne by  the owner of said parcel or tract 

of land.  However, the District reserves the right to perform the work and bill the owner for the 

cost, to perform the work itself, or to perform the work pursuant to special assessment 

proceedings. The District, in its sole discretion, may enter into a Reimbursement Agreement with 

the applicant to reimburse the applicant when others connect to the new main sewer line.  The 

Reimbursement Agreement shall be valid for ten (10) years but may be extended at the discretion 

of the District.  Other applicants who connect to this main sewer line will contribute their 

proportionate share of the construction costs which shall be paid to the original applicant. The 

District Engineer in his/her sole discretion shall determine the relevant proportionality analysis to 

be used in a repayment calculation.  No interest calculation shall be part of the relevant 

proportionality analysis. 

Section 2. Upon adoption of this Ordinance, it shall be entered in full in the minutes of the Board 

of Directors, shall be posted in one place in the District, shall be published once in the Marin 

Exhibit C

142



 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Ordinance 193   Page 2 of 2 

 

 

Independent Journal, and shall take effect immediately upon the expiration of one (1) week of 

said publication and posting. 

 

********************** 

 

 

 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of the Ordinance duly 

and regularly passed and adopted by the Board of Directors of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary 

District of Marin County, California, at a meeting hereof held on July 6, 2023, by the following 

vote of members thereof: 

 

 

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:  

 

__________________________________ 

Teresa Lerch, Board Secretary  

Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 

 

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

______________________________    

Megan Clark, Board President 

 

(seal) 

 

143



 

 
 

 

6/1/2023 
 

BOARD MEMBER REPORTS 
CLARK 

NBWA Board Committee, 2023 Operations Control Center 
Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports 
 

FORD 
NBWRA, 2023 Operations Control Center Ad Hoc 
Committee, 2023 GM Evaluation Ad Hoc Committee, 2023 
McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc Committee,  2023 Fleet Management 
Ad Hoc Committee, 2023 SF Bay Trail Ad Hoc Committee, 
Other Reports  
 

MURRAY 
Marin LAFCO, CASA Energy Committee, 2023 Biosolids Ad 
Hoc Committee, 2023 Development Ad Hoc Committee, 
2023 SF Trail Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports  
  

ROBARDS 
Gallinas Watershed Council/Miller Creek, 2023 Engineering 
Ad Hoc Committee re: STPURWE,  2023 McInnis Marsh Ad 
Hoc Committee, 2023 GM Evaluation Ad Hoc Committee, 
2023 Development Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports  

 
YEZMAN 

Flood Zone 7, CSRMA,  Marin Special Districts Association, 
2023 Ad Hoc Engineering Sub-Committee re: STPURWE, 
2022 Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports 
 

AGENDA ITEM 6 

144



                                                                                  AGENDA ITEM 7A 
                                                                                 DATE: June 1, 2023             

REVISED 06012021 

 
 

BOARD MEMBER 

 MEETING ATTENDANCE REQUEST 
 

 

Date:___________Name:__________________________________________________ 

 

I would like to attend the __________________________________________Meeting 

of _____________________________________________________________________ 

To be held on the ______ day of ___________ from ________ a.m. / p.m. to 

_______day of ___________ from  _________ a.m. / p.m. 

Location of meeting:____________________________________________________ 

Actual meeting date(s):____________________________________________________ 

Meeting Type: (In person/Webinar/Conference)_______________________________ 

Purpose of Meeting:______________________________________________________  

________________________________________________________________________ 

Meeting relevance to District:__________________________________________  

                  YES     NO 

Request assistance from Board Secretary to register for Conference:          

 

Frequency of Meeting: ____________________________________________________ 

 

Estimated Costs of Travel (if applicable):____________________________________ 

 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

 

Date submitted to Board Secretary:________________________________________ 

 

Board approval obtained on Date:_________________________________________ 

 

Please submit this form to the Board Secretary no later than 1 week  prior to the 

Board Meeting.  

 

  

145



 

 
 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2023\Agenda Packet 2023\06012023\Board Agenda Item Requests.docx 

6/1/2023 
 

BOARD AGENDA ITEM REQUESTS 
 

Agenda Item 7B 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

 Verbal Report 

□ Presentation 

 

146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163


	Agenda 06012023
	1 Public Comment
	2A Board Mintues 05182023
	2B Warrant List 06012023
	2C Yezman CASA CWEA meeting attendance
	2D Call for Bids PC#1 Rehabilitation
	2E RGS Master Agreement Extension
	2F SCADA Support Services Proposal for FY 2023-26
	2G Data Instincts
	2F Data Instincts Amendment #1
	Data Instincts Agreement Amendment 1

	2H Award of Contract Standard Specs
	ASR Standard Specs & Dwgs
	LGVSD-Standard Specifications-Proposal_040723

	2I Las Gallinas 2023 Sewer Rate Study
	2J Strategic Plan Adoption
	3.1 General Manager Report
	3.2 Engineering Department Report
	3.3 Operations Department Report
	3.4 Proposed Budget
	Financial Statements Budget 2023-2024.pdf
	0_Balance Statement
	1_Revenue
	2_Budget Summary
	3_Operating Compact
	4_Debt Service
	5_Reserves
	6_Restricted
	7_2023-2024 Capital Outlay Budget v8
	8_2023-2024 Capital  7-Year CIP v8 Draft


	4 Resolution 2023-2307 Set Budget Hearing
	5 Draft  Ordinance 193
	Memo to Board - Recovery of Costs for System Upgrades from Developer
	Exhibit A Title-3-Chap-2-Reviewed-by-Bd-0514151
	Exhibit B Proposed Revision to Title 3 Chap 2
	Exhibit C Draft Ordinance 193

	6 Board Member Reports
	7A Board Member Meeting Attendance Request
	7B Board Agenda Item Requests
	8 Various Industry Articles



